
Town of Rico Memorandum 

Date: March 13, 2024 

TO:          Town of Rico Boad of Trustees   
FROM:          Chauncey McCarthy, Rico Town Manager 
SUBJECT:     March Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 

Consideration of road building and disturbance permit application Hancock Alley Block 18, Leah 
Chmielewski applicant 

Included in the packet is a road building and disturbance permit application to extend the alley that runs 
perpendicular to Hancock Street of block 18. The applicant is proposing to extend the alley to the end of 
lots 15 and 26 of block 18. The proposed improvements are within the wetland buffer and require a 
disturbance permit. This hearing is for two permit applications, a road building permit, and a disturbance 
permit. Included in the packet, in addition to the required submittal materials for both applications, are 
staff memos reviewing the RLUC standards and requirements against the applications. 

This application went before the Planning Commission at their February 14, 2024 meeting: 

Motion 

I recommend the approval of road building and disturbance permit application Hancock Alley/unknown 
named alley Block 18, Leah Chmielewski with the following conditions: 

Resolve all comments from the SMG review dated February 8, 2024 and the applicant address all 
concerns from the Rico fire protection review. 

Moved by Kiplynn Smith, seconded by Michael Contillo. 

Vote A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 4-0. 

The applicant has since provided revised plans that address SGM’s review and the concerns that the Rico 
Fire Protection District noted. The revised plans have been sent out for final review and have been 
recommended by SGM for approval once the engineer stamps and signs the plans. 

Additionally, the applicant has provided a narrative and supporting documentation starting at page 42 – 
128 of the packet.  

Consideration of second reading of Ordinance 2024-01, an ordinance of the Town of Rico, 
Colorado amending the Rico Water Operations Rules and Regulations to provide for payment of 
water system impact fees.   

Included in packet is Ordinance 2024-01, an ordinance of the Town of Rico, Colorado amending the Rico 
Water Operations Rules and Regulations to provide for payment of water system impact fees. The 
calculation for the fee was done by Bryan Mantz of GovRates.  If this ordinance is adopted the structure 
of it allows the fee to be adopted and revised yearly by resolution. The ordinance was presented to the 
Board at their February 28 meeting and the first reading was approved 6-0.   

Recommended Motion: 

• I move to approve the second reading of Ordinance 2024-01, an ordinance of the Town of Rico,
Colorado amending the Rico Water Operations Rules and Regulations to provide for payment of
water system impact fees.

1



Consideration of Resolution 2024-01 a resolution of the Board of Trustees of the Town of Rico, 
Colorado, setting the water system improvement fee for the period beginning March 20, 2024 and 
ending December 31, 2024, and providing for the annual adjustment of water system improvement 
fees. 

Included in the packet is Resolution 2024-01 a resolution of the Board of Trustees of the Town of Rico, 
Colorado, setting the water system improvement fee for the period beginning March 20, 2024 and ending 
December 31, 2024, and providing for the annual adjustment of water system improvement fees. The 
proposed resolution is the mechanism that will set the water system improvement fee for the calendar year 
2024. The resolution is structured in a way that if the board does not adopt a new resolution for 2025 the 
fee will be adjusted based on the prior years’ average inflation as established by the Engineering News 
Record McGraw-Hill Construction Weekly Building Cost Index for Denver, Colorado  

Recommended Motion: 

• I move to approve Resolution 2024-01 a resolution of the Board of Trustees of the Town of Rico,
Colorado, setting the water system improvement fee for the period beginning March 20, 2024 and
ending December 31, 2024, and providing for the annual adjustment of water system
improvement fees.

Proposed deed restriction changes Bedrock Subdivision Lot 6 

BRD LLC, owners of Bedrock Subdivision Lot 6, would like to propose some amendments to the housing 
restriction covenant for lot 6. Included in the packet is the original lot 6 housing restriction, the proposed 
redline, and a clean copy of the document. BRD LLC would like to discuss the proposed changes with the 
intent to provide a new housing restriction covenant during the final phase of their subdivision review.  

Voluntary lead soils clean up (“VCUP”) status 

Included in the packet are letters of public comment that have been submitted to the Town since the 
VCUP Public Forum on March 7, 2024. Mayor Pieterse to provide an update on the Voluntary lead soils 
clean up status.  

Dark Sky Association lighting ordinance review and next steps  

There has been a community driven initiative for Rico to be designated as an International Dark Sky 
community. A petition and letter of support have been included in the packet. Aaron Watson, dark sky 
certification specialist, presented at last month’s board meeting. The board directed staff to provide 
examples of lighting ordinances and next steps. Those items have been included in the packet for the 
Board’s consideration. This was a discussion item at the February meeting but was continued to March. 

2



 
RICO TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 
Date: February 15 2024 
Call to order 6:31PM 
 
Trustees Present:   Mayor Nicole Pieterse 
   Mayor Pro Tem Patrick Fallon 
   Trustee Benn Vernadakis  
   Trustee Chris Condon (zoom) 
   Trustee Joe Dillsworth    
  
Trustees Absent:   
   Trustee Jordan Carr 
   Trustee Joe Croke 
    
                                              
Staff Present.   Chauncey McCarthy, Anna Wolf,  
 
Approval of the Agenda 
Motion 
To approve the agenda. 
 Moved by Trustee Benn Vernadakis, seconded by Mayor Nicole Pieterse. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 4-0. Joe Dillsworth not present at 
vote. 
 
 
Discussion Items 
2023 Sewer preliminary engineering report 
Bohannan Huston gives presentation.   
 
 
 
 ___________________                                                                         ________________                                                       
        Anna Wolf                 Nicole Pieterse 
       Rico Town Clerk                                                                                          Mayor 

3



 
RICO TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 
Date: February 28, 2024 
Call to Order 7:01PM 
 
Trustees Present:   Mayor Nicole Pieterse 
   Mayor Pro Tem Patrick Fallon 
   Trustee Joe Dillsworth  
   Trustee Benn Vernadakis  
   Trustee Chris Condon 
   Trustee Joe Croke    
  
Trustees Absent:   
   Trustee Jordan Carr 
                                              
Staff Present.   Chauncey McCarthy, Anna Wolf 
 
Approval of the Agenda 
Motion 
To approve the agenda. 
 Moved by Trustee Benn Vernadakis, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Patrick Fallon. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 5-0.  
 
Approval of the Minutes 
Motion 
To approve the minutes. 
 Moved by Trustee Chris Condon, seconded by Trustee Benn Vernadakis. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 5-0.  
 
 
Consent Agenda 
Payment of the Bills 
Motion 
To approve payment of the bills. 
 Moved by Trustee Chris Condon, seconded by Trustee Benn Vernadakis. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 5-0.  
 
 
Public Comment: 
Mayor Nicole Pieterse: Resignation letter from Trustee Jordan Carr. Opening to be posted. 
 
Action Items:  
Swearing in of the recently appointed Trustee of the Rico Board of Trustees 
Mayor Nicole Pieterse swears in Trustee Joe Croke. 
 

4



Consideration of first reading of Ordinance 2024-01, an ordinance of the Town of Rico, Colorado 
amending the Rico Water Operations Rules and Regulations to provide for payment of water 
system impact fees.  
Town Manager Chauncey McCarthy gives summary of the Ordinance.  
Brian Mantz gives presentation. 
Board of Trustees has discussion. 
 
Motion 
Move to approve the first reading of Ordinance 2024-01, an ordinance of the Town of Rico, 
Colorado amending the Rico Water Operations Rules and Regulations to provide for payment of 
water system impact fees.  
 Moved by Mayor Pro Tem Pat Fallon, seconded by Mayor Nicole Pieterse. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 6-0.  
 
Consideration of Rico Fire Protection District request to host the 86th annual Tri-State Firemen’s 
Association Convention and Training in the Town Park. 
Town Manager Chauncey McCarthy gives summary. 
Board of Trustees has discussion. 
 
Motion 
To approve the request to host the 86th annual Tri-State Firemen’s Association Convention and 
Training in the Town Park 
 Moved by Trustee Joe Croke, seconded by Trustee Chris Condon. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 6-0.  
 
Consideration of second reading of Ordinance 2023-06, an ordinance of the Town of Rico, 
Colorado amending the short-term rental restrictions and licensing requirements in the Rico Land 
Use Code. 
Mayor Nicole Pieterse gives summary. 
Motion 
To approve the second reading of Ordinance 2023-06, an ordinance of the Town of Rico, 
Colorado amending the short-term rental restrictions and licensing requirements in the Rico Land 
Use Code. 
 Moved by Trustee Joe Dillsworth, seconded by Mayor Nicole Pieterse. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 5-0. Joe Croke abstains from 
voting. 
 
Consideration of liquor license renewal, Garden Bar LLC applicant 
 
Motion 
To approve the amendments to the short-term rental ordinance as written. Ordinance 2023-06. 
 Moved by Trustee Benn Vernadakis, seconded by Trustee Joe Croke. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 6-0.  
 
 
 

5



Consideration of preliminary plat (condo conversion) subdivision Bedrock subdivision Lot 6, BRD 
LLC applicant 
Town Manager Chauncey McCarthy gives introduction.  
BRD gives summary 
Board discussion was had. 
Public Comment was taken. 
Motion 
To approve the preliminary plat of the proposed Bedrock conversion to condominium subdivision 
based on the findings that the application complies with the provisions of the RLUC section 538/3 
and the other laws of the Town of Rico subject to the following conditions: 

1. Parking spaces 1, 6, and 14 shall be modified so as not to exceed the maximum grade of 
12 percent, Land Use code 538.1c&f 

2. Retaining walls shall be finished as shown on the site plan 
3. Retaining wall for the drive isle shall be finished or landscaped in a manner that reduces 

its visual impact pursuant to section 5.2 of the Bedrock subdivision improvements PUD 
agreement Land use code section 280 and LUC section 104.6 

4. Individual water tap fees shall be paid per each unit and pursuant to Town ordinance 
number 2019-06 in our Water rules and regulations the applicant shall either comply with 
the engineering requirements under the current rules and regulations or provide an 
engineering solution acceptable to the Town’s engineer in lieu of that 

5. Town attorneys revisions on the applicants condominium documents shall be incorporated 
as a condition of final condominium subdivision plat approval 

6. Condominium documents shall reference the recorded deed restriction and that such deed 
restriction may be amended only with the Town Board of Trustees approval. 

 
 Moved by Mayor Nicole Pieterse, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Pat Fallon. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 6-0.  
 
Appointment of timekeeper/time keeping method for public comment 
Town Manager Chauncey McCarthy gives recommendation. 
Board Discussion was had. 
Public comment was taken. 
 
Staff Report 
Clerk’s report:  
Q4 and last year closed out. 
Paperless and autopay working smoothly. 
Breezeway updated. 
 
Manager’s report 
Massive water leak repaired 
Reorganization of the school district 
Town has been recommended for the GOCO grant. March 15th to be announced. The town has 
been invited to apply for a grant from the Gates foundation 
 
Discussion Items 
 
 
Voluntary lead soils clean up (“VCUP”) update 
Mayor Nicole Pieterse gives summary. 

6



New public forum date set to March 7, 2024. Board work session March 6, 2024. 
 
2024 and beyond work plan 
Board discussion was had. 
 
Roles and responsibilities of town staff and elected officials  
Board has discussion.  
 
2024 and beyond work plan 
May work session. 
Motion 
To table a work session until May 
 Moved by Mayor Nicole Pieterse, seconded by Trustee Benn Vernadakis. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 6-0.  
 
 
Water rates 
Town Manager Chauncey McCarthy gives summary. 
Board gives staff direction. 
 
Adjourn at 9:24 PM 
   
 
 
 
 ___________________                                                                         ________________                                                       
        Anna Wolf                 Nicole Pieterse 
       Rico Town Clerk                                                                                          Mayor 

7



 
RICO TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 
Date: March 6, 2024 
Call to Order 7:00PM 
 
Trustees Present:   Mayor Nicole Pieterse 
   Mayor Pro Tem Patrick Fallon 
   Trustee Joe Dillsworth  
   Trustee Benn Vernadakis  
   Trustee Chris Condon 
       
  
Trustees Absent:   
   Trustee Jordan Carr 
   Trustee Joe Croke 
                                              
Staff Present.   Chauncey McCarthy, Tom Bloomfield (VCUP attorney), Samantha 
Carvello (VCUP attorney), Dave Folks (Geotechnical Engineer) 
 
Approval of the Agenda 
Motion 
To approve the agenda. 
 Moved by Trustee Benn Vernadakis, seconded by Trustee Chris Condon. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 5-0.  
 
Discussion Items 
Representatives of Atlantic Richfield presented on the road sampling results and next steps along 
with the proposed repository at the Columbia Tailings  
 
Trustees had clarifying questions, representatives of Atlantic Richfield and town VCUP attorney 
and geotechnical engineer provided answers. 
 
Motion 
To table go into executive session to discuss Townwide Voluntary Cleanup financial assurance 
and funding agreement. Determination of positions relative to matters that may be subject to 
negotiations, Development of strategy for negotiations and instruction of negotiators  
 Moved by Trustee Chris Condon, seconded by Mayor Nicole Pieterse. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 5-0.  
 
Adjourn at  
   
 
 
 
 ___________________                                                                         ________________                                                       
        Anna Wolf                 Nicole Pieterse 
       Rico Town Clerk                                                                                          Mayor 

8



 
RICO TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 
Date: March 7, 2024 
 
Trustees Present:   Mayor Nicole Pieterse 
   Mayor Pro Tem Patrick Fallon 
   Trustee Benn Vernadakis  
   Trustee Chris Condon 
       
  
Trustees Absent:   
   Trustee Jordan Carr 
   Trustee Joe Croke 
   Trustee Joe Dillsworth 
                                              
Staff Present.   Chauncey McCarthy, Anna Wolf, Tom Bloomfield (VCUP attorney), 
Samantha Carvello (VCUP attorney), Dave Folks (Geotechnical Engineer) 
 
 
Discussion Items 
Voluntary lead soils clean up public forum 
Forum was led by Atlantic Richfield representatives as well as Town Board of Trustees, and Town 
representatives.   
 
 
 
 ___________________                                                                         ________________                                                       
        Anna Wolf                 Nicole Pieterse 
       Rico Town Clerk                                                                                          Mayor 

9



10



11



12



13



14



Mission: Promoting 
forest, watershed and 
community resilience 
through collaboration.

Vision: A resilient 
and adaptive upper 
Dolores River that 
provides ecosystem 
services, maintains 
ecological integrity and 
sustains community 
values in the face of 
environmental change, 
supported by a diverse 
and active collaborative 

group. 

15



Federal Agencies/Entities
� Bureau of Land 

Management
� US Forest Service 
� Ute Mountain Ute Tribe
� Natural Resources 

Conservation Service
 
Timber Industry 
� Aspen Wall Wood
� Colorado Timber Industry 

Association
� Ironwood Group LLC
� Montrose Forest Products
� Short Forestry LLC
� Underwood Forestry LLC
 
Other
� Empire Electric Association
� Interested community 

members 
� Retired professionals in 

related fields
� SWCO Cycling Assoc
� Agricultural producers

State Agencies
� Colorado Parks and 

Wildlife
� Colorado State Forest 

Service 
� Colorado State 

University Extension
 
Fire Management & 
Preparedness
� Colorado Division of 

Fire Prevention and 
Control

� Dolores Interagency 
Fire 

� Dolores Volunteer Fire 
Protection District

� Wildfire Adapted 
Partnership

� Fire Adapted Colorado

Local Government 
� Dolores County
� Montezuma County
� City of Cortez 
� Town of Dolores
� Town of Dove Creek
 
Nonprofits
� Mountain Studies 

Institute 
� San Juan Citizens Alliance 
� Southwest Conservation 

Corps
� Trout Unlimited
 
Water Managers
� Bureau of Reclamation
� Dolores Water 

Conservancy District
� SW Basin Roundtable
� Montezuma Valley 

Irrigation Company
� Mancos Water 

Conservancy District

16



17



18



19



20



21



CFLRP Priority Landscapes
22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



 

TOWN OF RICO 
INCORPORATED OCTOBER 11, 1879 

2 North Commercial Street 
Post Office Box 9 

Rico, Colorado 81332 
Office # 970.967.2861 

Fax # 970.967.2862 
www.ricocolorado.gov 

 

To: Rico Board of Trustees         03/13/2024 
From: Chauncey McCarthy, Town Manager 
Subject: Hancock Alley Extension Disturbance permit review 
 
 

823. Disturbance permit application submittal requirements: 

In addition to other submittal requirements for development applications, an Applicant shall submit the 
information identified below for any development that requires a Disturbance Permit pursuant to these 
Wetland Protection Regulations. Upon request, the Town Planner may perform a site inspection, verify 
that no wetland, water areas, or associated buffer zone exist on the site, and waive this submittal 
requirement. 

823.1 Boundary Map. A map or diagram separately depicting the boundary of water areas, wetlands, and 
riparian areas, depicting the boundary of the restrictive inner buffer zone from water areas and wetlands, 
depicting any site specific triggers for a variable outer buffer zone listed in 824.3, and depicting the 
boundary of the proposed disturbance in wetland areas, water areas and buffer zone areas.  
 Submittal requirement met  
823.2 Proposed Disturbance. A description of the proposed activity causing disturbance, including the 
amount, location, and acreage of water area or wetland fill, removal, or other alteration proposed, and 
location and extent of proposed disturbance in the buffer zone.  
 Submittal requirement met  
823.3 Grading Plan. A grading and erosion control plan, utilizing soil stabilization measures and practices 
to minimize the impacts of the proposed disturbance described in 827, including a timeframe for 
installation of erosion control measures. 
 Submittal requirement met (Timeframe not provided) 
 823.4 Re-vegetation Plan. Plan showing quantity and type of plant material to be used for re-vegetation, 
time frame for re-vegetation, and proposed soil stabilization measures.  
 No re-vegetation plan provided  
823.5 Mitigation Plan. A plan to mitigate the impacts of proposed fill of water areas or wetlands showing 
the proposed on-site restoration improvements, including information of those wetland areas to be 
restored and/or created, in accordance with 828.  
 N/A 
 

31



823.6 Alternative Analysis. A statement and analysis of any practicable on-site development 
configuration alternatives to the proposed development activity causing disturbance which reduce or 
avoid such disturbances, including reduction in the scale of the proposed development.  
 N/A 
823.7 Army Corps. For activities that involve the fill of wetland areas, evidence of compliance acceptance 
of the Plan by the U.S. Army Corp of Engineers 
 N/A  
 

Section 825 Review Standards for Disturbance Permit states: 

The reviewing entity shall use the standards in this section for review of Disturbance Permits for 
site development in wetlands, water areas, and buffer zones. The reviewing entity must find that the 
application meets at least one of the following standards in order to issue a Disturbance Permit. In all 
cases where an application for a Disturbance Permit meets one of the standards below, an acceptable 
Disturbance Plan that meets the standards in 826 and, if required, an acceptable Mitigation Plan that 
meets the standards in 827 are required as a condition to issuance of a Disturbance Permit. Unless 
otherwise approved by Town, the requirements set out in the Disturbance Permit shall be completed prior 
to acceptance of any improvements involving wetland disturbance. 
 
The proposed disturbance within the buffer zone of the wetlands depicted on the SGM delineation map, 
dated May 12, 2023 meets multiple standards: 

825.2 The proposed activity is necessary to achieve access to property or provide utility service to 
property, and no other access route avoiding wetland and buffer zone areas is practical or the proposed 
access route results in better overall design of the site development; 

825.3 The proposed activity in a buffer zone is a temporary disturbance for customary construction and 
development of a property; 

826. DISTURBANCE PLAN PRACTICE STANDARDS.  

A Disturbance Permit for site development in a wetland area, water area or associated buffer zone include 
a Disturbance Plan that meets the following standards for development practices to the extent practicable. 

A disturbance plan was not provided by the engineer or wetland delineation firm. The applicant states the 
site plan provides the necessary information. The review of the standards below was compiled from 
information on page C000 and C100 of titled: LOTS 15-16 AND 26-30 BLOCK 18 INFRASTRUCTURE 
IMPROVEMENT PLANS Dated 10/12/2023 

826.1 Disturbed wetland soils shall be retained for on-site revegetation, on-site mitigation, or off-site 
mitigation, as set forth in the Disturbance Permit;  

N/A 
826.2 Site development in wetland, water areas, and buffer zones shall be confined to the designated 
boundaries of the Disturbance Permit; 
 Standard met 
826.3 Appropriate erosion and siltation controls must be utilized. Areas not meant for development shall 
be protected with silt fence, snow fence, or other such barriers, and all exposed soil and other fill shall be 
permanently stabilized at the earliest practicable date;  

Standard met 
826.4 Grading and construction shall be timed to minimize soil exposure to heavy run-off and rainy 
periods; 

Timeframe not provided 

32



826.5 Runoff from impervious surfaces such as walkways, parking areas and driveways shall be detained 
and infiltrated;  
 Standard  met 
826.6 The grade of exposed slopes shall be minimized and erosion shall be controlled by utilizing 
mulching, erosion control blankets, barriers, such as straw bale dikes and silt fencing, and other 
appropriate means; 

Standard met  
826.7 Runoff velocities shall be maintained to prevent high erosion by using flow barriers (i.e., 
vegetation, rip-rap, etc);  
 Standard met  
826.8 Drainage ways and outlets shall be protected from increased flows;  
 Standard  met 
826.9 On-site sediment shall be trapped by using check dams, temporary diversions, detention basins, 
straw bales, silt fences, or other appropriate means;  

Standard met 
826.10 Disturbed areas shall be revegetated with native vegetation or other appropriate vegetation 
acceptable to Town;  

Standard met 
826.11 Existing hydrologic flow shall be maintained through the site through the use of culverts, French 
drains, or other devices;  

Standard met 
826.12 Cut and fill shall be minimized;  

Standard met 
826.13 Heavy equipment working within a wetland area shall use measures to minimize soil disturbance;  

Standard met 
826.14 Security in the amount of one hundred twenty five percent (125%) of the written estimated cost of 
the disturbance plan measures shall be provided;  
  Written estimate not provided  
826.15 Any other appropriate measure as deemed necessary by the reviewing entity shall be followed;  

826.16 The project’s runoff shall not violate other applicable regulations and laws (e.g., state water 
quality regulations, Endangered Species Act, National Environmental Policy Act), or significantly 
degrade wetland or water areas. 

Standard met 
 
827 Mitigation Plan. A Mitigation Plan for proposed fill of, or impact to, wetland areas shall include the 
following information 

A mitigation plan was not included with this application as the proposed disturbance is temporary and 
within the buffer zone not the wetlands.  

 

 

 

33



 

TOWN OF RICO 
INCORPORATED OCTOBER 11, 1879 

2 North Commercial Street 
Post Office Box 9 

Rico, Colorado 81332 
Office # 970.967.2861 

Fax # 970.967.2862 
www.ricocolorado.gov 

 

To: Rico Board of Trustees       03/12/2024 
From: Chauncey McCarthy, Town Manager 
Subject: Hancock Alley Extension road building application permit review 
 

Below is a review of the application to the submittal requirements.   

475. Road building application submittal requirements: 

Road Building applications shall contain the following materials and information in addition to a 
completed Road Building permit application form provided by Town.  

475.1. Site map showing location and extent of work to be performed;   

Standard met 

475.2. proposed design specifications, including two-foot contour lines and cross sections at five-foot 
intervals which adequately illustrate significant grading and drainage conditions;  

Standard met 

475.3. copy of a certified survey;  

Standard met 

475.4. proposed off-street parking plan; 

Standard met 

475.5. proposed snow removal plan;  

Standard met 

475.6. statement describing the proposed use of the road; and  

Standard met 

34



475.7. where applicable, an improvements agreement with acceptable financial guarantees for Road 
Building applications that are not part of a subdivision application 

To be determined by the reviewing entity 

478. Road design standards

The following standards apply to Road Building applications. All Road Building applications shall be 
reviewed by the Town Engineer who may require additional improvements or conditions. The Town 
Board shall have the right to approve Road Building applications that vary from the standards set forth 
below where the variance in design does not result in safety, emergency vehicle access, or long-term 
maintenance problems. 

The first round of plans that were submitted have been reviewed by one of the town’s contract engineers. 
This memo has been included as a separate document. Since the planning commission’s hearing on 
February 14, 2024 the applicant’s engineer has revised the plans and included a memo dated 3/12/24 
providing comments/response to the engineers review. SGM has revised the plans dates 3/12/24 and 
have recommended approval. 

35



 

February 19, 2024 

Chauncey McCarthy 

Rico Town Manager 

PO Box 9 

Rico CO 81433 

 

RE: Leah Lane Improvements -  Engineering Plans Review 

Dear Chauncey: 

SGM provides the following responses based on the Mountain Civil Consulting response email dated 

February 15, 2024. 

Plan Sheet Comments,    

Sheet-C000 

1. The requirement for a legend on the plan set remains. Legends clarify for all parties who 

prepare, review, and use the plans the intent of the design. Note: SGM provides a legend on its 

plan sets as a professional standard of care, no matter what the local agency requires. 

2.  There were two legacy non-comments within our review comments for C000; they are to be 

ignored. 

Sheet-C100 

1.  The culvert extension minimum cover is a concern as the roadway will be a graveled surface, 

which, over time, will degrade in depth. Twelve inches is an old standard that assumes the 

depth will be maintained (ideal conditions). CDOT, for example, requires in the 2019 M-

Standards no less than 24” of cover. The engineer can consider using enhanced structural fill 

material if the 12” cover depth cannot be resolved or as they offered rebuild in the entire 

culvert system to achieve sufficient cover. Either option is acceptable. 

 

This concludes the SGM review and comments on the referenced project. We are prepared to 

recommend approval to the Town of the provided plans when these comments are addressed. 

Please let me know if there are any questions. 

Sincerely, 

 SGM 

 

Eric L. Krch, PE, CFM 

Senior Engineer III 

 

 
 www. sgm - i n c . com  

GRAND JUNCTION   259 Grand Ave., Suite 200 | Grand Junction, CO 81501 | 970.245.2571  

  

36



Road Building Application 

Applicant Name __________________________ Phone Number ___________________________

Address __________________________________ Cell Phone Number _______________________

Email ____________________________________ Fax Number ______________________________

Address of Subject Property _______________________________________________________

Legal Description of Subject Property ____________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________________

Zone District of Subject Property _________________________________________________________

Attachments Required:

☐ Site map showing location and extent of work to be performed

☐ proposed design specifications, including two-foot contour lines and cross sections at twenty-five foot
intervals which adequately illustrate significant grading and drainage conditions;

☐ Proposed off-street parking plan

☐ Proposed snow removal plan

☐ Statement describing the proposed use of the road; and

☐ Where applicable, an improvements agreement with acceptable financial guarantees for Road Building
applications that are not part of a subdivision application. 

☐ An application fee in the amount of $350.00

Leah Chmielewski	 571.249.3339

PO Box 151 571.249.3339

Leahchm@yahoo.com NA

NA - Town Plated Right of Way

NA - Plated Right of Way North annd perpendicular 
to Soda Street and west/parallel to Hancock Street

Section 35, Township 40, Range 11

Not Applicable - already part of Rico 
Subdivision per plat and Major 
Street Plan.

T

T

37



I swear that the information provided in this application is true and correct and that I am the owner of the 

property or otherwise authorized to act on behalf of the owner of the property.

Signature:  _________________________________________________________  Date _____________17 October 2023

38



Development Permit for Areas of Environmental Concern

Development Permits for Areas of Environmental Concern are required when any of 
the following conditions exist on the subject property:

▪ Avalanche Hazard Areas

▪ Flood Plane Areas

▪ Steep Slopes

▪ Wetland Areas

▪ Wildfire Hazard Areas

▪ Wildlife Habitat Areas

Maps of Areas of Environmental Concern are available on the Town Rico GIS system, on the 

ricocolorado.gov web site and at Town Hall in the Rico Land Use Code.

Schedule a pre-
application meeting 

with the Town 
Manager / Planner.

Fill out the application 
and provide the 
documents and 

payment as shown on 
the check list.

Review of application 
by Town Manager / 

Planner for application 
completeness.

Development Permit for Areas of 

Environmental Concern Process Chart

39



Areas of Environmental Concern Development Permit  Process 
Chart

Applicant shall notice 
neighbors within 200 feet of 

subject property 20 days 
prior to scheduled hearings 
and post notice at the Post 

Office and Town Hall 10 
days prior to the hearings.

The Rico Planning 
Commission hears 

the request and 
recommends  

approval, denial or 
approval with 

conditions.

The Board of 
Trustees hears the 
request and either 
approves, denies 
or approves with 

conditions.

If the approval is 
conditional, the 
applicants must 

prove that they have 
met the required 

conditions prior to 
final approval.

Permit 
issued

The Rico Planning Commission is authorized to review these applications and make a 
recommendation to the Board of Trustees. Development activities shall avoid areas of 
environmental concern wherever possible unless the reviewing body finds the following:

▪ Allowing the development activity would result in a better overall design with respect 
to the purposes set forth in Article 104, Purpose of the Rico Land Use Code.

▪ The affected area can be fully mitigated and supported by recommendations contained 
in engineered mitigation proposals.

Requirements, restrictions and recommended mitigations for specific hazards are addressed in 
Article VIII of the Rico Land Use Code.  Some approvals may require indemnity agreement with 
the Town.

40



Disturbance Permit Application 

Applicant Name __________________________ Phone Number ___________________________

Address __________________________________ Cell Phone Number _______________________

Email ____________________________________ Fax Number ______________________________

Street Address of Subject Property _______________________________________________________

Legal Description of Subject Property ____________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________________

Zone District of Subject Property _________________________________________________________

Contractor Name _________________________ Phone Number ___________________________

Address __________________________________ Cell Phone Number _______________________

Email ____________________________________ Fax Number ______________________________

Attachments Required:

☐ Two (2) 24” by 36” Site Plans and (1) electronic (pdf) site plan showing the following:

North Arrow Boundary areas: Water. wetlands, riparian 
areas, inner buffer zone, and boundary of 
proposed disturbance 

Scale not greater than 1” = 20’ unless the 
entire site will not fit on a 24”x 36” sheet

Topography 5 foot interval maximum, 2 
foot preferred

Vicinity Map Proposed grading and drainage 

Lot lines with dimensions Location of existing buildings if applicable

Easements with dimensions Location of proposed building if applicable

Acreage of lot Location of existing utilities if applicable

Adjacent streets with labels Location of proposed utilities if applicable

Leah Chmielewski 571.249.3339

PO Box 151 571.249.3339

Leahchm@yahoo.com

NA - Town platted right of way

NA - platted right of way north and perpendicular to 
Soda Street and west and parellel to Hancock Street

Sectin 35, Township 40, Range 11

TBD

41



☐ Proposed Disturbance description : Including: activity causing disturbance, amount, location and acreage 

of water are or wetland fill, removal or other alteration proposed, and location and extend of proposed 

disturbance in buffer zone. 

☐ Grading, re-vegetation, and mitigation plan 

☐ Alternative Analysis

☐ Army Corps. Permit (if required)

☐ Letter of agency if applicant is other than the owner of the property 

☐ An application fee in the amount of $400.00.

☐ A copy of the deed for the property.

Flood planes must be determined by an Engineer licensed in the state of 

Colorado.  Wetlands must be delineated by a certified technician and 

surveyed. 

I swear that the information provided in this application is true and correct and that I am the owner of the 

property or otherwise authorized to act on behalf of the owner of the property.

Signature:  _________________________________________________________  Date _____________

Date Application Received _________________ Application Reviewed by ___________________

Application Fee Received __________________ Date of Hearing ___________________________

Application Complete _____________________ Rico Planning Commission Action ___________

Mailing Notice Complete __________________ Approval Subject to Conditions _____________

Other comments:

NA

NA

See site plan.  No revegitation or significant 
grading required - disturbance in buffer one 
only.

NA

18 Oct 2023

Z

42



712 Eagle Pass
Durango, CO 81301
970-946-3175

1 | P a g e

To: Leah Chmielewski
From:  Mountain Civil Consulting, LLC
Date: 3/12/24
RE: Comment – Response Letter – Town Engineer and Fire Department Review

Leah Lane

Please find below comment/response email per Town of Rico Contract Engineer comments (SGM, Eric

Krch) dated 2/19/24.

Response:

1. As requested by the Town Contract Review Engineer, a general legend has been added to the

cover sheet.

2. OK.

Response:

1. The proposed improvements within Soda St. ROW have been revised to provide 12” of cover

over the proposed culvert extension.  Culvert bedding and backfill material shall be CDOT Class I

and CDOT Road base as shown on Detail sheet C101.  This has been approved by Town Public

Works.

43



712 Eagle Pass
Durango, CO 81301
970-946-3175

2 | P a g e

Please find below comment/response email per Town of Rico Fire Dept. comments dated 2/19/24.

Comments:

Raegan Ellease moved to approve access to the lots subject to the following conditions: the road surface

be improved to 12' wide (minimum); that trees and foliage be maintained so that they are vertically clear

of the road surface to a height of 14' minimum, and to waive the requirement for a turnaround. These

variance conditions are considered due to: the short distance of the single proposed residence beyond the

150' access road length, and existing site-specific drainage and foliage conditions. Tyler Lapp seconded.

Approval was unanimous, with Anderson abstaining.

Response:

The proposed improvements have been revised to provide a 12’ min. width alley within the Town of

Rico ROW. Notes have been added to the plans requiring trees/foliage be removed to provide a 14’ min.

vertical clearance.

44



LEAH LANE, BLOCK 18
TOWN OF RICO, CO

INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT PLANS
PERMIT SUBMITTAL

3/12/24

 

MOUNTAIN CIVIL
CONSULTING, LLC

712 Eagle- Pass
Durango, CO 81301

970-946-3175

R
e
v
is

io
n
s
:

#
  
  
D

A
T

E
  
  
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

MCC Project:

Date issued:

Sheet of1 3

2023-017

3/12/24

45

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK: : 1. BENCHMARK INDICATED ON SHEET C100. TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY PROVIDED BY ALL POINTS LAND BENCHMARK INDICATED ON SHEET C100. TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY PROVIDED BY ALL POINTS LAND SURVEYING 970-708-7694. CONTACT SURVEYOR TO ESTABLISH OR VERIFY BENCHMARK AND CONSTRUCTION CONTROL AS REQUIRED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERAL NOTES: : 1. THESE PLANS ARE FOR INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS ONLY AS SHOWN IN THE PLANS.  THESE PLANS ARE FOR INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS ONLY AS SHOWN IN THE PLANS.  2. EXISTING CONDITIONS SHOWN IN THESE PLANS IS FROM TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY DATA PROVIDED BY ALL POINTS EXISTING CONDITIONS SHOWN IN THESE PLANS IS FROM TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY DATA PROVIDED BY ALL POINTS LAND SURVEYING. 3. ALL MATERIALS AND CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE COMPLETED PER TOWN OF RICO LAND USE CODE AND/OR ALL MATERIALS AND CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE COMPLETED PER TOWN OF RICO LAND USE CODE AND/OR STANDARDS AND REQUIREMENTS, MOST CURRENT VERSION.  WHERE TOWN OF RICO STANDARDS AND REQUIREMENTS DO NOT COVER THE SCOPE OF WORK, CDOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROAD AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION SHALL APPLY. 4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE ONE APPROVED AND SIGNED (TOWN AND ENGINEER) COPY OF THE PLANS ON THE THE CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE ONE APPROVED AND SIGNED (TOWN AND ENGINEER) COPY OF THE PLANS ON THE JOB SITE AT ALL TIMES. CONTRACTOR SHALL ALSO HAVE THE JOB SPECIFICATIONS, AND CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS ON SITE. 5. CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN ALL NECESSARY PERMITS AND APPROVALS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.  CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN ALL NECESSARY PERMITS AND APPROVALS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.  CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE A COPY OF ALL APPLICABLE PERMITS ON SITE. 6. AT LEAST TWO (2) FULL WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES OF ANY KIND THE CONTRACTOR AT LEAST TWO (2) FULL WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES OF ANY KIND THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT THE UTILITY NOTIFICATION CENTER OF COLORADO AT 1-800-922-1987 OR 811 TO OBTAIN AN INQUIRE IDENTIFICATION NUMBER AND TO REQUEST THE UTILITY OWNERS TO MARK THE LOCATION OF ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES WHICH MAY BE IMPACTED BY CONSTRUCTION. 7. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING THE LOCATION OF ALL EXISTING UTILITIES, INCLUDING CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING THE LOCATION OF ALL EXISTING UTILITIES, INCLUDING UTILITIES NOT SHOWN ON THE CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS.  PRIOR TO ADJUSTING ANY UTILITIES THE CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN APPROVAL FROM THE UTILITY OWNER. 8. IF THERE ARE EXISTING UTILITIES IN CONFLICT WITH THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS THE CONTRACTOR SHALL STOP IF THERE ARE EXISTING UTILITIES IN CONFLICT WITH THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS THE CONTRACTOR SHALL STOP WORK AND NOTIFY THE OWNER, ENGINEER, AND UTILITY OWNER TO DETERMINE A SOLUTION FOR THE CONFLICT. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT ALL UTILITIES AND STRUCTURES FOUND AT THE SITE UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED IN THESE PLANS. 9. ALL TRENCHING CONSTRUCTION SHALL MEET OSHA STANDARDS AND REQUIREMENTS. ALL TRENCHING CONSTRUCTION SHALL MEET OSHA STANDARDS AND REQUIREMENTS. 10. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR IMPLEMENTING AND MAINTAINING CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR IMPLEMENTING AND MAINTAINING CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES STORMWATER MANAGEMENT BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES.  CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN ALL REQUIRED LOCAL AND STATE CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PERMITS. 11. IMPROVEMENTS SHOWN IN THIS PLAN INCLUDE ROAD BUILDING, DRIVEWAY, AND UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS TO PROVIDE IMPROVEMENTS SHOWN IN THIS PLAN INCLUDE ROAD BUILDING, DRIVEWAY, AND UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS TO PROVIDE UTILITIES AND ACCESS TO TOWN OF RICO LOTS 26-32 AND LOTS 15 AND 16, BLOCK 18, TOWN OF RICO. 12. PROPOSED OFF STREET PARKING FOR LOTS 26-32 IS FROM ALLEY ROW. PROPOSED OFF STREET PARKING FOR PROPOSED OFF STREET PARKING FOR LOTS 26-32 IS FROM ALLEY ROW. PROPOSED OFF STREET PARKING FOR LOTS 15-16 SHALL BE FROM HANCOCK ST. OR ALLEY. 13. ALLEY IMPROVEMENT AND SNOW REMOVAL PLAN HAS BEEN COORDINATED WITH AND APPROVED BY PUBLIC WORKS. ALLEY IMPROVEMENT AND SNOW REMOVAL PLAN HAS BEEN COORDINATED WITH AND APPROVED BY PUBLIC WORKS. 14. CONSTRUCTION OF THE ALLEY IMPROVEMENTS WITHIN THE 10' WETLAND BUFFER ZONE IS PROPOSED UNDER CONSTRUCTION OF THE ALLEY IMPROVEMENTS WITHIN THE 10' WETLAND BUFFER ZONE IS PROPOSED UNDER CONDITIONS OF TOWN OF RICO LAND USE CODE SECTION 825.2 AND 825.4. 15. ALL DISTURBED AREAS NOT RECEIVING FINISHED IMPROVEMENTS (ALLEY, DRIVEWAY, PAVEMENT, BUILDING, ALL DISTURBED AREAS NOT RECEIVING FINISHED IMPROVEMENTS (ALLEY, DRIVEWAY, PAVEMENT, BUILDING, LANDSCAPING, ETC...) SHALL BE PLANTED WITH NATIVE SEED AND MULCH. 16. WATER TAP LOCATIONS ARE SHOWN IN CONCEPT ONLY.  FINAL LOCATION TO BE COORDINATED WITH BUILDING WATER TAP LOCATIONS ARE SHOWN IN CONCEPT ONLY.  FINAL LOCATION TO BE COORDINATED WITH BUILDING PERMIT PLANS AND OWTS DESIGN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADING AND EROSION CONTROL NOTES: : 1. ALL EARTHWORK SHALL MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE PROJECT GEOTECH REPORT. ALL EARTHWORK SHALL MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE PROJECT GEOTECH REPORT. 2. EARTHWORK SHALL NOT BE COMPLETED WHEN THE GROUND IS FROZEN. EARTHWORK SHALL NOT BE COMPLETED WHEN THE GROUND IS FROZEN. 3. TOPSOIL SHALL BE STOCKPILED FOR USE ON FINAL LANDSCAPING. STOCKPILES SHALL BE PROTECTED FROM EROSION. TOPSOIL SHALL BE STOCKPILED FOR USE ON FINAL LANDSCAPING. STOCKPILES SHALL BE PROTECTED FROM EROSION. 4. AT ALL TIMES THE CONSTRUCTION SHALL INCORPORATE TECHNIQUES TO LIMIT WIND-CAUSED EROSION INCLUDING BUT AT ALL TIMES THE CONSTRUCTION SHALL INCORPORATE TECHNIQUES TO LIMIT WIND-CAUSED EROSION INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO WATERING. 5. CONTRACTOR SHALL KEEP STREET CLEAN OF DEBRIS AT ALL TIMES. CONTRACTOR SHALL CLEAN STREET AND CONTRACTOR SHALL KEEP STREET CLEAN OF DEBRIS AT ALL TIMES. CONTRACTOR SHALL CLEAN STREET AND ADJACENT PROPERTIES AS REQUIRED. 6. CONTRACTOR SHALL ESTABLISH A CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE AND STORAGE/STAGING AREA. CONTRACTOR SHALL ESTABLISH A CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE AND STORAGE/STAGING AREA. 7. ALL CULVERT INLETS AND OUTLETS SHALL RECEIVE RIP RAP PROTECTION. ALL CULVERT INLETS AND OUTLETS SHALL RECEIVE RIP RAP PROTECTION. 8. CONTRACTOR SHALL SALVAGE AND REUSE EXISTING ROAD BASE MATERIALS AS POSSIBLE.CONTRACTOR SHALL SALVAGE AND REUSE EXISTING ROAD BASE MATERIALS AS POSSIBLE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER UTILITY NOTES: : 1. ALL WATER MAIN OR SERVICE LINE UTILITY WORK, MATERIALS, AND CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE COMPLETED PER TOWN ALL WATER MAIN OR SERVICE LINE UTILITY WORK, MATERIALS, AND CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE COMPLETED PER TOWN OF RICO WATER OPERATIONS RULES AND REGULATIONS, MOST CURRENT VERSION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANCHISE UTILITY NOTES: : 1. FRANCHISE (GAS, ELECTRIC, TELECOM, FIBER, ETC...) ARE SHOWN IN CONCEPT ONLY.  FINAL DESIGN IS BY THE FRANCHISE (GAS, ELECTRIC, TELECOM, FIBER, ETC...) ARE SHOWN IN CONCEPT ONLY.  FINAL DESIGN IS BY THE UTILITY PROVIDER.  DEVELOPER SHALL PROVIDE CONTRACTOR FRANCHISE UTILITY DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION IMPROVEMENT INFORMATION AND PERMITTING.   2. CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLETE ALL WORK PER FRANCHISE UTILITY PROVIDER REQUIREMENTS.CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLETE ALL WORK PER FRANCHISE UTILITY PROVIDER REQUIREMENTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET INDEX # TITLE    NAME TITLE    NAME    NAME 1. C000 - COVER SHEET C000 - COVER SHEET 2. C100 - ALLEY IMPROVEMENT PLAN C100 - ALLEY IMPROVEMENT PLAN 3. C101 - ALLEY DETAILS C101 - ALLEY DETAILS 4. EXISTING CONDITIONS / TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY - PROVIDED BY OTHERSEXISTING CONDITIONS / TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY - PROVIDED BY OTHERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF RICO APPROVAL PRINTED NAME                                                                                   SIGNATURE                 DATE                          DATE                       

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION MAP: 1"=300'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SH 145

AutoCAD SHX Text
HANOVER ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIANCE REQUESTS: 1. LUC 478.2 - ROAD DESIGN STANDARDS, WIDTH LUC 478.2 - ROAD DESIGN STANDARDS, WIDTH LUC 478.3.A.,B. - ROAD BASE SURFACES THE TOWN OF RICO LAND USE CODE DOES NOT PROVIDE STANDARDS FOR ALLEY CONSTRUCTION.  THE PROPOSED ALLEY WILL BE CONSTRUCTED WITHIN THE EXISTING 16' RIGHT OF WAY.  THE  PROPOSED ALLEY WIDTH VARIES FROM 12' MIN. TO 14' MAX. WHICH IS A WIDER OVERALL WIDTH  COMPARED TO EXISTING ALLEYS WITHIN THE TOWN OF RICO WHICH APPEAR TO BE AROUND 10' IN WIDTH AND AS NARROW AS 8.5' IN CERTAIN LOCATIONS. THE PROPOSED ALLEY SHALL HAVE A CROWN WITH A SLOPE OF 4.17% WHICH IS CONSISTENT WITH THE TOWN OF RICO REQUIREMENT OF A 6" CROWN FOR A 24' WIDE ROAD. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
C000

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEAH LANE, BLOCK 18

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVER SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF RICO, CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
SODA ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE CALCULATIONS AND NOTES: : 1. DRAINAGE CALCULATIONS WERE COMPLETED FOR THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS IN THE EXISTING AND PROPOSED DRAINAGE CALCULATIONS WERE COMPLETED FOR THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS IN THE EXISTING AND PROPOSED CONDITION.  THE ANALYSIS WAS COMPLETED USING THE FOLLOWING: 1.1. MODIFIED RATIONAL METHOD MODIFIED RATIONAL METHOD 1.2. TYPE B SOILS TYPE B SOILS 1.3. NOAA ATLAS 14 RAINFALL DATA (RICO STATION) NOAA ATLAS 14 RAINFALL DATA (RICO STATION) 1.4. MIN. Tc = 5 MIN. MIN. Tc = 5 MIN. 1.5. AUTODESK STORM AND SANITARY ANALYSIS SOFTWARE USED TO COMPLETE HYDROLOGIC CALCULATIONS AS AUTODESK STORM AND SANITARY ANALYSIS SOFTWARE USED TO COMPLETE HYDROLOGIC CALCULATIONS AS SUMMARIZED IN THE TABLES BELOW. 2. THE PROPOSED SWALE ALONG THE ALLEY AND CULVERT PROVIDE ADEQUATE CAPACITY TO CONVEY RUNOFF FROM THE PROPOSED SWALE ALONG THE ALLEY AND CULVERT PROVIDE ADEQUATE CAPACITY TO CONVEY RUNOFF FROM THE ALLEY TO THE EXISTING ALLEY DITCH.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND NOTES: : 1. WETLANDS AS SHOWN IN THESE PLANS DELINEATED BY SGM, INC. DATE OF WETLAND DELINEATION EXHIBIT 5/12/23 WETLANDS AS SHOWN IN THESE PLANS DELINEATED BY SGM, INC. DATE OF WETLAND DELINEATION EXHIBIT 5/12/23 2. THE PROPOSED ACCESS IMPROVEMENTS WITHIN THE WETLAND BUFFER ARE NECESSARY TO ACHIEVE ACCESS TO THE PROPOSED ACCESS IMPROVEMENTS WITHIN THE WETLAND BUFFER ARE NECESSARY TO ACHIEVE ACCESS TO BLOCK 18 LOTS 26-32 AND 15-16 PER RICO LUC 825.2. THE ACCESS IMPROVEMENTS HAVE BEEN DESIGNED TO LIMIT DISTURBANCE TO WITHIN THE TEN (10) FOOT GRANDFATHER CLAUSE WETLAND BUFFER ZONE AS DEFINED BY RICO LUC 824.1.  WORK WITHIN THE BUFFER ZONE INCLUDES A BORROW DITCH ASSOCIATED WITH THE ALLEY IMPROVEMENTS.  WORK IN THE BUFFER ZONE WILL BE COMPLETED PER CONDITIONS OF THE DISTURBANCE PERMIT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE DEPARTMENT NOTES: : 1. FIRE DEPARTMENT REQUIRES 12' MIN. WIDTH FOR ALLEY AS PROPOSED. FIRE DEPARTMENT REQUIRES 12' MIN. WIDTH FOR ALLEY AS PROPOSED. 2. TREES OVERHANGING ALLEY ROW SHALL BE TRIMMED TO PROVIDE 14' VERTICAL CLEARANCE.TREES OVERHANGING ALLEY ROW SHALL BE TRIMMED TO PROVIDE 14' VERTICAL CLEARANCE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND ITEM     EXISTING   PROPOSED EXISTING   PROPOSED PROPOSED WATER MAIN SEWER MAIN CULVERT SWALE/FLOWLINE ELECTRIC LINE FIBER OPTIC OVERHEAD POWER GRAVEL ROAD/DRIVEWAY TREE FENCE STRAW WATTLE WETLAND WETLAND BUFFER CONTOUR LANDSCAPE WALL



K
E

N
D

R
IC

K

16' R.O.W.

(UNIMPROVED)

S
H

E
D

V
A

C
A

N
T

 (N
O

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S
 O

B
S

E
R

V
E

D
)

3
0
0
0
 S

Q
U

A
R

E
 F

E
E

T

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
 IS

 N
O

T
 F

IE
L
D

 P
O

S
T

E
D

V
A

C
A

N
T

 (N
O

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S
 O

B
S

E
R

V
E

D
)

7
3
8
8
 S

Q
U

A
R

E
 F

E
E

T

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
 IS

 N
O

T
 F

IE
L
D

 P
O

S
T

E
D

EDGE OF TRAVELED WAY

EDGE OF TRAVELED WAY

GRAVEL ALLEY

D
IT

C
H

A
1

0

S
P

R
1

4

TRAN
S

S
H

E
D

8740

8745

8750

8755

8760

8765

8770

MOUNTAIN CIVIL
CONSULTING, LLC

712 Eagle- Pass
Durango, CO 81301

970-946-3175

R
e
v
is

io
n
s
:

#
  
  
D

A
T

E
  
  
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

MCC Project:

Date issued:

Sheet of2 3

2023-017

3/12/24

 

46

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ALLEY/DRIVEWAY MAINTAINED BY TOWN PER TOWN OF RICO ROAD MAINTENANCE MAP (DIRT/GRAVEL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOWOFF HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING   STREET (GRAVEL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENCROACHMENT INTO 10' WETLAND BUFFER FOR ACCESS PER L.U.C. 825.2 AND 825.4 (14.5 SF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 26-30 DRIVEWAY IMPROVEMENTS (ROAD BASE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 15 AND 16  ALLEY DRIVEWAY IMPROVEMENTS (ROAD BASE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLANDS (0.02 AC.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLANDS (.032 AC.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOTS 26-32 0.25 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOTS 15-16 0.12 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL DRAINAGE SWALE TO CONVEY RUNOFF FROM ALLEY AND DRIVEWAY TO DISCHARGE INTO EXISTING DITCH OUTSIDE OF WETLANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH EXISTING GRAVEL / DIRT ALLEY EDGE ALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL WATER SERVICE LINE AND CORP STOP @ PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF EXISTING WATER MAIN.  6" DIA. MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
135 LF FIBER OPTIC AND ELECTRIC CONDUIT, SIZE TYPE PER UTILITY PROVIDER REQUIREMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRID AND FIBER OPTIC CONDUIT EXTENSION IN SODA ST. TO PROVIDE SERVICE TO LOTS 26-30 AS REQUIRED BY UTILITY SERVICE PROVIDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ALLEY (DIRT/GRAVEL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
8751.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
8751.46±

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.17%

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG:8752.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5%

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG:8751.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5%

AutoCAD SHX Text
8752

AutoCAD SHX Text
8751

AutoCAD SHX Text
RELOCATE BLOWOFF HYDRANT TO EDGE OF ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLEY ROW SNOW STORAGE AREA (420 SF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWALE ALONG DRIVEWAY  2' WIDE 6" DEEP (ESTABLISH WITH NATIVE SEED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING DRAINAGE DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CULVERT INV: 8747.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTINUE SWALE WITHIN ROW TO TIE INTO EXISTING ALLEY DITCH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL STRAW WATTLE ALONG EDGE OF DISTURBED AREA AND WETLAND BUFFER TO MITIGATE IMPACTS TO WETLAND AREA.  REMOVE ONCE SEEDING IS ESTABLISHED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SODA ST. ROW ACCESS, GRADING, AND DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
10 LF 12" DIA. 16 GAUGE CMP @ 1.0% 

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE LANDSCAPE PLANTER IN ROW AS REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
BORROW DITCH IMPROVEMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
8749

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.17%

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.17%

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.17%

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.17%

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.17%

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5%

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING DRAINAGE DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ALLEY WIDENING TO ACHIEVE 12' WIDTH MIN. ALLEY SURFACE IN ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
9 LF 6"  DIA. WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE HYDRANT INSTALL 6" DIA. 90° BEND W/ T.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROTECT EXISTING TREE IN PLACE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROTECT EXISTING TREE IN PLACE. TRIM BRANCHES TO PROVIDE 14' VERTICAL CLEARANCE PER FIRE DEPT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA: 0+50.00 BEGIN ALLEY IMPROVEMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA: 2+20 END ALLEY IMPROVEMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE CONCRETE APRON AROUND CULVERT, CONNECT TO EXISTING CULVERT W/ CONCRETE COLLAR INV: 8747.97  

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ALLEY CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SODA ST. ROW SNOW STORAGE AREA  (SODA ST. ROW)

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.17%

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.17%

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECONSTRUCT ALLEY WITHIN ROW TO ACHIEVE PROPOSED GRADES AND IMPROVE ALLEY SURFACE /BASE TO CURRENT TOWN STANDARDS. SALVAGE AND REUSE ROAD BASE AS POSSIBLE (765 SF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROTECT EXISTING TREE IN PLACE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLEY BEYOND DRIVEWAY FOR SNOW REMOVAL MANEUVERING AND MAINTENANCE ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8752

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEAH WAY CL ALIGNMENT N2° 05' 59.86"W 230.78' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
8749

AutoCAD SHX Text
8750

AutoCAD SHX Text
8749

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.17%

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSFORMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA: 0+31.5 BEGIN SODA ST. IMPROVEMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSITION TO CROWN ALLEY SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.17%

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.17%

AutoCAD SHX Text
8750

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEATHER GRADE TO MATCH EXISTING GRADE AS REQUIRED 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISHED GRADE AT ALLEY CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GRADE AT ALLEY CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROVIDE 12" COVER OVER CULVERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
C100

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEAH LANE, BLOCK 18

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLEY, GRADING, DRAINAGE AND UTILITY IMPROVEMENT PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF RICO, CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
 SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
INCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
CULVERT NOTES: 1. CONCRETE APRON SHALL BE CAREFULLY REMOVED AROUND CONCRETE APRON SHALL BE CAREFULLY REMOVED AROUND EXISTING CULVERT AS REQUIRED TO ACCOMMODATE THE PROPOSED CONCRETE COLLAR. 2. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE BID ALTERNATE TO REMOVE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE BID ALTERNATE TO REMOVE EXISTING CULVERT AND REPLACE THE EXISTING CULVERT WITH A NEW 32 LF 12" DIA. 16 GAUGE CMP PIPE EXTENDING FROM THE END OF THE EXISTING CULVERT TO THE PROPOSED CULVERT INLET.



MOUNTAIN CIVIL
CONSULTING, LLC

712 Eagle- Pass
Durango, CO 81301

970-946-3175

R
e
v
is

io
n
s
:

#
  
  
D

A
T

E
  
  
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

MCC Project:

Date issued:

Sheet of3 3

2023-017

3/12/24

 

47

AutoCAD SHX Text
C101

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEAH LANE, BLOCK 18

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLEY DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF RICO, CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLEY AND DRIVEWAY TYPICAL  SECTION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CDOT CLASS 2 ROADBASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOISTURE CONDITIONED AND RE-COMPACTED SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CDOT CLASS 6 ROAD BASE, GRADE PER PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1. SUBGRADE SHALL BE SCARIFIED AND RECOMPACTED TO A DEPTH OF 8" SUBGRADE SHALL BE SCARIFIED AND RECOMPACTED TO A DEPTH OF 8" TO 90% MAX DRY DENSITY MODIFIED PROCTOR AT ±2% OPTIMUMMOISTURE CONTENT. 2. CLASS 2 AND CLASS 6 BASE COURSE SHALL BE COMPACTED TO 95% CLASS 2 AND CLASS 6 BASE COURSE SHALL BE COMPACTED TO 95% MAX. DRY DENSITY MODIFIED PROCTOR AT ±2% OPTIMUM MOISTURECONTENT. 3. ALL DISTURBED AREAS OUTSIDE OF ROAD BASE SHALL RECEIVE NATIVE ALL DISTURBED AREAS OUTSIDE OF ROAD BASE SHALL RECEIVE NATIVE SEED AND MULCH.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
 SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
INCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE SWALE OR FILL SLOPE PER PLAN REVEGETATE W/ NATIVE SEED AND MULCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLEY TYPICAL SECTION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESS ROAD NOTES: 1. ALL ROAD WORK SHALL BE COMPLETED PER TOWN OF RICO ROAD CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS OR ALL ROAD WORK SHALL BE COMPLETED PER TOWN OF RICO ROAD CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS OR CDOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROAD AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION WHERE TOWN STANDARDS DO NOT COVER THE SCOPE OF WORK. 2. SUBGRADE SHALL BE COMPACTED TO 90% MAX. DRY DENSITY MODIFIED PROCTOR AT  2% OPTIMUM SUBGRADE SHALL BE COMPACTED TO 90% MAX. DRY DENSITY MODIFIED PROCTOR AT ±2% OPTIMUMMOISTURE CONTENT. 3. CLASS 2 AND CLASS 6 BASE COURSE SHALL BE COMPACTED TO 95% MAX. DRY DENSITY MODIFIED CLASS 2 AND CLASS 6 BASE COURSE SHALL BE COMPACTED TO 95% MAX. DRY DENSITY MODIFIED PROCTOR AT ±2% OPTIMUM MOISTURE CONTENT.4. DRIVEWAY SHALL BE PRIVATELY OWNED AND MAINTAINED. DRIVEWAY SHALL BE PRIVATELY OWNED AND MAINTAINED. 5. ALL DISTURBED AREAS OUTSIDE OF ROAD SURFACE SHALL RECEIVE NATIVE SEED AND ROLLED ALL DISTURBED AREAS OUTSIDE OF ROAD SURFACE SHALL RECEIVE NATIVE SEED AND ROLLED EROSION BLANKETS WHERE SLOPE IS GREATER THAN 3:1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CDOT CLASS 6 AGGREGATE BASE COURSE 3" DEPTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CDOT CLASS 2 AGGREGATE BASE COURSE 5" DEPTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOISTURE RECONDITIONED  NATIVE MATERIAL BENEATH ROAD 8" DEPTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.17%

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.17%

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROADSIDE DITCH DEPTH VARIES PER PLAN SEE DETAIL THIS SHEET REVEGETATE W/ NATIVE SEED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH EXISTING GRADE @ ROW 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROADSIDE DITCH STA: 1+50 -1+97

AutoCAD SHX Text
NATIVE MATERIAL W / NATIVE SEED

AutoCAD SHX Text
2:1 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH EXISTING GRADE @ ROW 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROADSIDE DITCH STA: 0+50 -1+50

AutoCAD SHX Text
NATIVE MATERIAL W / NATIVE SEED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE VARIES 1:1 MAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING DITCH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL STRAW WATTLE ALONG WETLAND BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE COLLAR STORM DRAIN CONNECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
WRAP INTERIOR W/ GEOTEXTILE FABRIC TO SUPPORT POUR

AutoCAD SHX Text
D = 12" L = 8" T = 6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRAW WATTLE OR SEDIMENT CONTROL LOG

AutoCAD SHX Text
CULVERT DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CDOT CLASS 1 STRUCTURE BACKFILL  (2" MINUS) UP TO TOP OF PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CDOT ROAD BASE PER PLAN (TRAVEL WAY) OR CDOT CLASS 2 STRUCTURAL BACKFILL OUTSIDE OF TRAVEL WAY (SCREENED NATIVE MATERIAL FREE OF ROCKS, ORGANICS, ETC..)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD BASE PER PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE 2' OF COVER OVER CULVERT CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE 2' OF COVER OVER CULVERT DURING CONSTRUCTION TO PROTECT PIPE FROM CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT TRAFFIC.



N

LEGEND:

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:

Lots 26, 27 and 28, Block 18, Townsite of Rico, according to the plat thereof filed for record in the office of

the Clerk and Recorder,

County of Dolores,

State of Colorado.

and

A portion of Lots 29 and 30, Block 18, Townsite of Rico, according to the plat thereof filed for record in the

office of the Clerk and Recorder,

County of Dolores,

State of Colorado.

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

I, Thomas A, Clark, being a Colorado Licensed Land Surveyor, do hereby certify that this Topographic Survey of the above described lots was made by me and

under my direct supervision, responsibility, and checking. This Topographic Survey does not constitute a Land Survey Plat or Improvement Survey Plat as defined by Title 38, Article 51 C.R.S

__________________________________

Thomas A. Clark                                PLS. 38014

NOTES:

1. Easement research and property description provided by ALPINE TITLE COMPANY - TELLURIDE, File Number 3397CEA effective  on December 27, 2021, 8:00 am. and File Number 3403CEA

effective  on January 7, 2022, 8:00 am.

2. According to FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Map for The Town Of Rico dated August 5, 1986 this parcel is within Zone A; Areas 100-year flood, base flood elevations and flood hazard factors not

determined.

3. Field work was performed in April 2022.

4. Elevation datum for this survey is based on GPS observation and OPUS solution (NAVD 88)  on benchmark at the west angle point of Lot 28, that elevation being 8750.18.

5. This survey is valid only if a printed or electronic copy has a seal and signature of the surveyor noted within the statement above.

6. NOTICE: According to Colorado law you must commence any legal action based upon defect in this survey within three years after you first discover such defect. In no event may any action based

upon any defect in this survey be commenced more then ten years from the date of the certification shown hereon.

RECORDER'S CERTIFICATE:

Deposited this_________day of __________. 2022, at _____m., in Book Number_______of the

County, surveyor's land survey plats/right-of-way surveys at Page_________,

File number_____.

_________________________________

Dolores County Clerk

H
A

N
C

O
C

K
 S

TR
EE

T

SODA STREET

21

DO
LO

RE
S 

RI
VE

R

KENDRICK

LOT 25 BLOCK 18

LOTS 26, 27 AND 28

LOTS 29 AND 30 BLOCK 18

E

D

G

E

 

O

F

 

R

I

V

E

R

 

A

T

 

T

H

E

 

T

I

M

E

 

O

F

 

T

H

I

S

 

S

U

R

V

E

Y

RIVERSIDE LODE

DSS LLC

A
LL

EY
1
6
'
 
R

.
O

.
W

.

(
U

N
I
M

P
R

O
V

E
D

)

SHED

VACANT (NO BUILDINGS OBSERVED)

3000 SQUARE FEET

ADDRESS IS NOT FIELD POSTED

VACANT (NO BUILDINGS OBSERVED)

7388 SQUARE FEET

ADDRESS IS NOT FIELD POSTED

E
D

G
E

 
O

F
 
T

R
A

V
E

L
E

D
 
W

A
Y

E
D

G
E

 
O

F
 
T

R
A

V
E

L
E

D
 
W

A
Y

G
R

A
V

E
L
 
A

L
L
E

Y

SMUGGLER MS#5912

D

I

T

C

H

T

O

P

 

O

F

 

R

I

V

E

R

 

B

A

N

K

A10

SPR14

LOT 15

LOT 16

TRANS

SHED

LOT 17

LOT 14

CONTOUR INTERVAL=1'

DATE:_5/4/2022

DRAWN_BY
TC

CHECKED_BY

JOB#_22003

SHEET-1-OF-1

PO BOX 754 OPHIR, COLORADO 81435 (970) 708-9694

ALL POINTS LAND SURVEY L.L.C.

TOPOGRAPHIC MAP OF LOTS 26, 27 AND 28, AND LOTS 29 AND 30, BLOCK 18,

 TOWN OF RICO, SECTION 35, T40N, R11W, N.M.P.M., DOLORES COUNTY, COLORADO.

JCC

48

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET #5 REBAR, 18" LONG WITH 1 1/2" ALUMINUM CAP LS 38014

AutoCAD SHX Text
: . 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE HYDRANT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(REC) INDICATES RECORD BEARING AND DISTANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(MEAS) INDICATES FIELD MEASURED BEARING AND DISTANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
38014

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
11/6/2023



Lot 15

Lot 16

Do
lor

es 
Riv

er

DrainageAl
le

y

Ha
nc

oc
k 

St
re

et

40N 11W

35 36

26 25

Figure 2b
Lots 15 and 16 Wetland Delineation

Chmielewski Property The information displayed above is intended for general planning purposes. Refer to legal documentation/data sources for descriptions/locations.

Map Legend
Wetland Area
PLSS Section
PLSS Township
40N Range
11W

0 30 60
Feet

1 inch = 30 feet

Date:  5/12/2023 Job No. 2022-323.001 Map by: ANW
Data Sources: All Points Land Survey LLC (Lot Boundaries & Drainage Lines), SGM (Wetland Boundaries)

Checked by: AJA Scale: 1:360 

File: I:\Durango\2022-323-Chmielewski\001-WetlandsDelineation\H-Dwgs\GIS\MXDs\Fig2b.Chmielewski-
www.sgm-inc.com

555 RiverGate Ln, Suite B4-82
Durango, CO 81301
970.385.2340

49



50



51



52



53



PARCEL # NAME ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP CODE PROP ADDRESS 
504735102002 CHMIELEWSKI  LEAH FELICE P.O. BOX 151 RICO CO 81332
504726401018 STACK  VINCENT J. & HUDELSON, SARAH E. (JT) 7650 MEADOWLARK LANE SALIDA CO 81201 RIVERSIDE LODE
504736206002 MULDOON  CORNELIUS F. & BARBARA D. MULDOON (JT)(50%),   (50%)(JT) MULDOON/DOW ETAL 3418 RIDGELINE DR. MONTROSE CO 81401 119 N. RIVER STREET
504735101002 ROBERTSON  DYLAN J. P.O. BOX 87 RICO CO 81332 116 N. HANCOCK ST.
504725303007 ROBERTS  MARIA G. 2900 S. PALO VERDE LANE, UNIT 18 YUMA AZ 85365 131 N. RIVER STREET
504735101001 SMITH  KIPLYNN J. TRUST DATED 8/12/20 P.O. BOX 352 RICO CO 81332 102 N. HANCOCK
504701100002 SAN  JUAN NATIONAL FOREST DEPT. OF AGRICULTURE 15 BURNETTE COURT DURANGO CO 81301 48540 HWY 145
504735100518 DSS  LLC P.O. BOX 8 RICO CO 81332 SMUGGLER
504735102014 MILSTEAD  JAY & MARY LOU MILSTEAD REVOCABLE TRUST DATED 5/16/19 1420 SOUTH 6TH AVENUE YUMA AZ 85364 117 N. HANCOCK ST.
504735102010 CHMIELEWSKI  LEAH FELICE P.O. BOX 151 RICO CO 81332 109 N. HANCOCK STREET
504735102007 BRITTON  JAMES W. P.O. BOX 26 RICO CO 81332 107 N. HANCOCK STREET
504735102008 ROBERTSON  DYLAN J. & JESSE S. ROBERTSON (JT) P.O. BOX 87 RICO CO 81332 131 N. HANCOCK STREET
504735102017 MC JOYNT  KATHLEEN A. & JOSEPH V. CROKE (JT) P.O. BOX 8 RICO CO 81332 216 W. SODA STREET
504735102003 KENDRICK  GARY 832 CROSSTIMBERS DRIVE FT. WORTH TX 76108
504735103013 RICO  TOWN OF P.O. BOX 9 RICO CO 81332 213 W. SODA STREET
504735103006 ANDERSON  GREGORY E. & BENSETT, MONIQUE D. (JT) P.O. BOX 2171 TELLURIDE CO 81435 39 N. HANCOCK STREET
504735104012 ELLEASE  RAEGAN P.O. BOX 87 RICO CO 81332 135 W. SODA ST.
504701100002 SAN JUAN NATIONAL FOREST 15 BURNETTE COURT DURANGO CO 	81301

54



Chmielewski

Milstead

Britton

Robertson

Kendrick

Chmielewski

McJoynt

Stack

DDS LLC

Roberts

Robertson

Smith

Town of Rico Anderson
Ellease

Muldoon

San Juan
National 

Forest

DDS LLC

55



NOTICE OF PENDING ROAD BUILDING AND DISTURBANCE PERMIT 
APPLICATION 

Date: 18 October 2023 

RE: Public Hearing on Road Building Application 

Dear Property Owner, 

You are receiving this public notice as required by the Town of Rico Land Use Code 

because you own property adjacent to the proposed road construction and/or within 200 

feet of the proposed disturbance. 

Name of Applicant: Leah Chmielewski  

Type of Development Application(s):  Road Building and Disturbance Permit Application 

Legal Description: NA - Town Platted Right of Way, north and perpendicular to Soda 

Street and west/parallel to North Hancock Street 

Address:  NA - Town Platted Right of Way, north and perpendicular to Soda Street and 

west/parallel to Hancock Street 

Review Authority:  Rico Planning Commission and Rico Board of Trustees 

Rico Planning Commission Hearing Date: November 8, 2023 7:00 PM 

Rico Board of Trustees Hearing Date:   November 15, 2023 7:00 PM 

Location of Public Hearing:  Rico Town Hall, 2 Commercial Street, Rico Colorado, 

81332 

The application is available for public inspection in the Town Clerks office during normal 

operating hours. 

Send emailed comments addressed to the townmanager@ricocolorado.gov 

Or by surface mail to: 

Chauncey McCarthy  

Town of Rico 

PO Box 9 

Rico Colorado, 81332 

56



Site Plan
57



Statement Describing Proposed Use of the Road


This application is to improve additional area in the plated town right of way that extends north 
of Soda street (located parallel and west to Hancock Street through to lots 25-28 and 15-17, 
Block 18, Rico, CO.  The improvements would extending the existing improvement that is 
already in place from Soda Street north to lots 21-24 and 17-20, Block 18 in Rico, CO, and as 
per is currently maintained by the Town of Rico and documented in the Major Street Plan.  The 
improvement is consistent with the plated Town of Rico right of way, and is slightly wider than 
the current improved way, but still within the plated width constraint of 16 feet.  The proposed 
use would be access to lots 26-28 and 15-16, Block 18 properties.


58



59



60



61



62



To Whom It May Concern, 
 
 
On 08 November, 2023, the Town of Rico’s planning commission passed a motion to continue my road building and 
disturbance permit applications for improvements to a platted town right of way with the next scheduled hearing in February 
2024, with the three options below: 

1. Provide an agreement through the private property owner, or 
2. Provide past records or information pertaining to current access, or 
3. Provide a plan of access through the current platted right of way. 

I have since reached out to the private property owner about easement documentation, found additional past records and 
information pertaining to access, and with my civil engineer drafted a new improvement plan to change access to only 
through the platted right of way (ROW).  
 
The private property owner expressed no interest in discussing easements with me. 
Although past records, to include ordinances, records of town approvals of water main work to the property, maintenance 
history, town maintenance plan, private property owner statement of town maintenance per Dolores public records, and 
planning commission and board of trustee meeting minutes from the time previous improvements were made in the right of 
way in the 1990’s, all providing evidence for public right to access through the current travelled way, I do not wish the town 
or myself to get involved in a potentially costly legal battle and would rather those funds be spent on improvements to the 
platted ROW.  Although rights and history is clear with these discoveries, I would prefer that we all minimize our 
expenditures by spending them on a resolution rather than a legal pursuit. 
 
Therefore, attached are revised infrastructure improvement plans addressing access only in the platted right of way.  This 
letter and revised plan and attachments supplement my prior submissions.  Upon approval of the road building and 
disturbance permits referencing the attached revised infrastructure improvement plans, access through private property to 
reach the existing water main would no longer be required by the town nor to reach my private property.  Access would be 
rerouted through only the platted right of way. 
 
My top concerns are simply: 

1. improve access in order to extend access to my lots on Block 18, and 
2. minimize significant impact to trees and the environmental integrity of the area.  

Of note is that the alley right of way in discussion is the only public ROW that can enable access to Kendrick and 
Chmielewski properties Lots 25-32, Block 18 The attached revised plans for ROW improvements address permit application 
and land use code criteria and request variances pertaining to road width and road base surfaces as cited.  A road width 
variance is requested because the minimum road width criteria of 24ft is not possible in a 16ft wide platted ROW. The width 
thus impacts the road base surface criteria.  As there are no specifications to minimum improvement widths of platted 16ft 
alleys, a combination of the environmental landscape, previously made improvements to the ROW, drainage, researched 
width requirements for our local plow/loader, delivery, and fire department trucks being found to be 10ft minimum travelled 
way width, and researched widths of primary access alleys that already exist in town being found to be typically 10ft wide, 
were all used to help determine an improvement plan.  Of note is that although some existing improved platted alleys in Rico 
narrow as small as 8.5ft in width.  Two large trees on the boarder of the ROW and private properties are preserved.  These 
provide both shade and sound barriers among neighbors.  Previous drainage improvements are revamped and rerouted to 
allow for ROW widening.  The wetland buffer zone is minimally disturbed.  You will find in the revised attached plans the 
width within the platted ROW at its most narrow point is 11ft and at its widest is 14ft in width.  The overall span of both the 
original travelled way together with the proposed improvements increases to 20ft at its widest point.   The required right of 
way length to access the properties is less than 150ft from the edge of Soda Street.  All permit and LUC requirements are 
met, except as outlined in variance requests on the attached plans dated 30 January 2023. 
 
Also included in the revised plans, highlighted in a different shading color and beyond the scope of the alley improvements, 
are improvements to marry up the previously installed culvert and drainage work in Soda street with the proposed new 
drainage work in the proposed widened alley ROW. 
 
Additionally, although not required for access to the Block 18 properties, an improved area for town maintenance vehicle 
maneuvering is added, depicted on the plan with hashed lines.  These improvements include moving the town water line, the 
location of which the town had previously approved for installation in order to provide water access to lots 21-28, to the edge 
of the platted way.  This was a request from Public Works in order to provide greater ease for maneuvering for snow 
removal.  The town previously choose to place the hydrant in its current location in order to provide water access to lots 21-
28.  The town approved both prepaid water taps for owners of those lots with no monthly fees until tap installation, one of 
which I inherited through the deed and purchase of my lots, as well as the water main installation plans through the right of 
way for the properties, all in coordination with the mining company who had sold the properties (reference 09 NOV 1993 
Town Meeting Minutes attached).  Although my property access plans do not require access beyond the length of the town 
approved and already installed water main, the proposed plans include work to move the end of the water line to the edge of 
the ROW.   
 
The goal of the applications is to secure a motion to approve a road building permit and disturbance permit. 
 

63



If approved, I am also open to possibilities of additional motions and/or discussion about possible pass throughs, waivers or 
cost sharing, or other ideas you may have, given the unique historical documentation discovered and included here as 
background information (attached), for reference and consideration. 
 
Again, the attached and below background information is not as a plea for legal pursuits to right any past wrongs or 
mistakes, but rather as background information for consideration in hopes that relevant parties come together to entertain 
ideas you may have for a fair, equitable execution path. 
 
Sincerely, 
Leah Chmielewki 
 
 
Background: 
My original submission included plans to improve the right of way from the point of where the right of way was previously 
improved and used through where it has never been improved to reach my lots.  The revised attached plans I paid to have 
made include further revisions to address option 3 of the 08 November 2023 motion to expand plans into only the platted 
ROW, and, for convenience, show via differing shading/coloring   

1. portions of new improvements in the alley right of way,  
2. added maneuvering space for public works, which extends beyond the 148’ portion of the right of way length that 

provides access to my property 
3. portions of previous improvements of the current traveled way, to be partially re-improved, and  
4. suggested improvements in Soda Street, beyond the alley, to marry up original drainage work in Soda Street with 

new drainage in the alley. 
The Soda Street and alley ROW have already been improved as indicated in the provided survey.  At the time the 
improvements were made, there was legal guidance in place for approval processes and design standards for building in 
town rights of ways via ordinances 275 and 315.  Ordinance 275 specifies road building design standards.  Ordinance 315, 
passed 17 April 1996, replaces ordinance 310 and imposes a temporary development restriction to include on excavations 
in rights of ways. 
Included for reference is also documentation pertaining to town maintenance agreements for the current traveled way/right 
of way to include a town maintenance plan, photos of the town maintaining the right of way, and Mr. Croke’s own statement 
in Dolores County records that the town maintains the right of way. 
 
Below is a timeline and referenced documentation to consider with this unique history. 

1. 27 OCT 1987 - Ordinance 274 adopted - “A zoning ordinance regulating the use of land and structures…” 
2. *08 DEC 1987 - Ordinance 275 adopted - “An ordinance classifying streets within the Town of Rico, regulating the 

development of said streets, and adopting maps identifying streets and classifications.” 
1. The ordinance defines design specifications for rights of way development and states:  “Any person or 

group of persons wishing to improve or construct a street or alley within the Town of Rico shall first 
appear before the Rico Planning Commission and submit a written application and drafting 
identifying…The Planning Commission shall make its recommendation to the Town Board based on the 
applicant’s compliance with the intent of the Street Plan and the requirements of this Ordinance.”  (Note: 
Much of the verbiage still found in today’s LUC describing road building requirements and approval 
processes is in the ordinance.) 

2. The ordinance also specifies penalties for violations to include misdemeanor and fines of up to $300 per 
day. 

3. The ordinance was valid until repealed with ordinance 1999-7, “Adopting the Rico Land Use Code”, on 31 
August 1999, signed by the mayor at the time, Joseph V Croke.  

3. 09 OCT 1990 - Ordinance 283 adopted to amend Ordinance 274 to add penalties for violation of its provisions 
4. 09 APR 1991 - Ordinance 285 adopted to amend Ordinance 274 with enforcement measures and penalties of 

$100 per day of violation. 
5. 09 NOV 1993 - Rico Town Board Minutes - Town of Rico approves Crystal Oil’s waterline installation plans in the 

right of way as well as water tap fee payment and agreement not to charge owners monthly water fees until meters 
are installed. 

6. 29 JUL 1995 - Kathy McJoynt purchases lots 21-24, Block 18 (ref deed) 
7. 29 AUG 1995 - Ordinance 310 adopted - An Interim Ordinance Establishing a Temporary Development Restriction 

within the Town of Rico, referencing ordinance 274,  
8. 17 APR 1996 - Ordinance 315 adopted enacting a temporary development restriction on excavations on rights of 

way and other property of the Town of Rico and repealing ordinance 310.  “Whereas, the Board of Trustees finds 
that the maintenance, oversight, and regulation of the placement of utility lines in the Town rights-of-way directly 
affects ability and costs of the Town to plan for and install future utility lines in Town rights-of-way and that such 
control over the Town rights-of-way is essential to preserving and promoting health, safety and general welfare of 
the Rico community;”.  “…the temporary development restriction shall apply to, and prohibit, the following 
development activities and permit applications….5. Excavations in Town rights-of-way or other Town property, 
except by the Town of Rico…”. Also included are Town Board Meeting minutes clarifying that 315 applies to work 
not yet under construction. 

64



9. 08 MAY 1996 - Rico Town Board Minutes - Town approval to build in flood zone, referencing Ordinance 281, 
contingent upon Engineers review and signing off on the application by Joe Croke and Kathy McJoynt. 

10. 1996 - Kathleen A Mc Joynt and Joseph V Croke home build completed.  Ordinances 275 and 315 were both still 
active. 

11. 14 JAN 1997 - Ordinance 334 adopted, repealing Ordinance 315  
12. 31 AUG 1999 - Ordinance 1999-7 adopted, signed by then Mayor Joseph V Croke, repeals ordinances 274, 275, 

281, 283, 285, 294, 300, 319, 325, 326, 334, 336, 109, 114, 138 and adopts the Rico Land Use Code, the Official 
Zone Map of the Town of Rico, the Street Plan for the Town of Rico, and a series of hazard and constraint maps 
entitled Avalanche Hazard, Geologic Hazard, Wildfire Hazard, Wildlife Hazard, Flood Hazard, Wetlands Hazard, 
and an informational non regulatory Mining Hazard map. 

13. Major Street Plan - Town Maintenance Plan Map - green indicates town maintained ROWs and includes the 
improved portion of the alley right of way on block 18 

14. 29 DEC 2022 - Town of Rico Water Fund Check Register documenting payment of $2,676.61 to Todd Jones for 
water main repair in the alley in front of lots 21-24, Block 18. 

15. WINTER 2023 - Photos documenting Town of Rico maintenance of the traveled way along the alley right of way to 
Soda Street.  Photos are dated 22 March, 11 March, 23 February, 21 January, and 02 January of 2023.  I 
understand Lots 21-24 property owners have since attempted to demand that the town stop maintaining the 
traveled way, post my purchase of my properties and post completion of water main work by the town. 

16. 21 FEB 2023 - Dolores County public records - complaint filing 102654773 in which Joe Croke writes “The only 
way to access the McJoynt/Croke residence is down the public access road that the Town of Rico maintains.” 

17. 08 NOV 2023 - Rico Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Recording - When asked if he would provide 
documentation of the historical approvals and improvement plans concerning Soda Street and the alley right of 
way, Joe Croke stated that there were no plans and they just did it. 

I went through both the Rico Town Board Meeting minutes and Planning commission meeting minutes spanning 1993-1997 
and there were not any agenda items about Kathy McJoynt’s or Joe Croke’s development in the right of way.  There were 
other proposals brought forward that were denied based on Ordinance 315 and 275.  The only reference to Joe and Kathy 
building  was in the Town Board Meeting minutes dated 08 May 1996, during which they received conditional approval to 
build their home in a flood zone, referencing ordinance 281, contingent upon town engineering review and sign off of their 
application.  During the November Planning commission meeting, Joe stated that there were no plans and that they just did 
it.  
 
If the town of Rico relinquishes its access to the current traveled way and the current platted way is not widened for access, 
the town no longer has access to the water main without private owner approval, putting the town at risk were a leak to 
occur again.  The December 2022 leak in front of the McJoynt/Croke property cost the town thousands of dollars in both 
water loss and repairs.  This occurred before the land owners recently began trying to stop the town from continuing to use 
and maintain the traveled way.   
 
 

65



ORDINANCE NO. 274

A ZONING ORDINANCE REGULATING THE USE OF LAND AND STRUCTURES;
DIVIDING THE TOWN OF RI CO INTO DISTRICTS FOR SUCH PURPOSES
A1)OPT I NB MAPS OF SAID TOWN SHOW INS BOUNDAR I ES AND THE
CLASSIFICATION OF SUCH DISTRICTS; ESTABLISHING A BOARD OF
ADJUSTMENT AND PRESCRIBING PENALT IES FOR THE: VIOLAT 1:ON OF ITS
PROViSIONS.

SECTION 1: AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE

tinder authority of Colorado Revised StatL&teS, Sections 31—
23—301, et seq. , the Town of Rico, Colorado, hereby establishes
zoning districts and regulations providing the citizens of Rico a
mechanism for regulating future devel opment activities within the
Town for the purposes of (1) promoting the public health and
safety and welfare of present and future residents of the Town,
including restri ctions on development in hazardous areas, (2)
promoting compatibility of land uses, and (3) promoting an
attractive community and protecting property values.

SECTION 2: ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT

A. Admi ni str-ati on
1. Enforcing Official: The provisions of this Zoning

Ordinance shall be administered and enforced by the c++ icer Cs) or
department Cs) designated by the Town Board.

2. Building Permit: No building construction shall be
intiated until a building permit is issued by the enforcing
official. Building permit application form and fees shall be
established by the Town Board. The foil owing improvements are
not considered to be buildings and therefore no building permit
is requireth

a. onestory detached accessory buildings with a
total area area of 120 square feet or less

b. decks
c. fences & feet tail or less
th retaining walls 4 feet or less above qrade
e. platforms, walks, and driveways
f. prefabricated swimming pools
g. roofing and siding
h. any remodeling which does not change, or

diminishes, the outside footprint o-F the
b u i 1 d i rig

All rd event zc’ni ng requi rements such as
appropriate heights and setbacks must be observed. >

B. Enforcement Procedure:
1. An alleged violation of any of the provisions of

this Zoning Ordinance shall be investigated by the enforcing
official or officials, either on their own initiative or upon

66



I

receipt of a signed vr tten compl a:Lnt fr rim a person or persons
who believe a viol ati on cxi sts, or by order of the Town L3oard.

violation is found to exlbt, it shall be
more of the foil owing ways:

a. The enforcing offici at shall notify the
property owner and any other persons responsi bi efor the
viol ati on in writing, and order the necessary correction. Said
correction shall be compl eteci within a prompt, reasonable pen ad,
as ordered by the enforcing official in said notice.

b. The enforcing official. may issue a stop work
order by notice in writing posted on the building or property or
in or upon which such violation is occurring.

c. Any law enforcement officer may cite the
property owner and/or any other persons who may be responsible
with a violation of an Ordinance of the Town of Rico, as provided
in section C herein.

d. Upon the failure of the enforcement
official(s) > to act in the case of a violation of this
Ordinance, the necessary notification of violation or
may he issued by the Town 8oard, either upon its own i
or that of the Planning Commission, or upon receipt of
cotnpl aint from an mdi vi dual or group 0+ individuals.

C. Violation and Penalty: Failure to comply with any of
the provisions of this Ordinance, unless a variance has been
authorized by the Eoard of Adjustment, shall constitute a
misdemeanor, end upon conviction is punishable by a -Fine of not
less than $10.00 nor more than $300. 00, or by impni sonment for a
period of not less than three (3) days nor more than one (1)
month. Each day that such violation continues to cxi st shall be
considered as a separate offense. The Town Eoard, at its
discretion, may withhold or wi thdraw ron—emergency town services
from any property not in comjii Lance with the provisions of this
Ordi nance.

0. Appeals rf Administrative Decisions: Appeals of any
decision or directive of an enforcing official shall be made to
the Board of Adjustment, in wri ti ng, and by such procedures as
are outlined in Section 3 of this Ordinance9 provided that such
appeal is made within 1.1 days foIl owing i ssLtEince of the
officials decision or directive.

E. Appeals of Board of Adjustment Decisions: Appeals of
any decision of the Board of Adjustment may be made to the
district court, as provided by state statute, provided, however,
that such appeal is made within sixty (60) days +l lowing the
date of notification of the Board of Adjustment s deci sion.

F. Conf 1 irt Whenever the requirements of this Ordinance
are at van ance with the requirements of any other lawfully
adopted rules, regul ations., resolutions or ordinances, the one
which is the most restrictive, or which requires the highest

2. If a
corrected in one or

stop order
nitiative

a written

67



standard, shall apply.

S. interpretation: In their interpretation and application
the provj sions of this Ordinance shall be held to he the mini mum
requirements adopted for the promotion of the public health,
safety and welfare.

SECTION 3: BoARD OF ADJUSTMENT

A. Creation and Members: A board of Zoning Adjustment is hereby
established which shall consist of five (5) members as foX lows:

Two members of the Rico Planning Commission appointed by the
Board of Trustees and three members who are citizens of Rico and
are not members of the P1 anning Commi ssi on, also to be appoi nted
by the hoard of Trustees. > “Loard” , when used in this section,
shall mean the board of Zoning Adjustment. The Board members
shall be legal residents of the Town of Ri cc, shall be appoi nted
for a term of three (3) years, and except as modified herein,
shal 1 have such powers and duti eE as are authorized by statute.

9. Organization and Records: The Board of Adjustment shall elect
a chairman, vice chairman, and a secretary from among the
members, whose terms shall he for- one (1) year, wi. th eligibility
for re--el ecti on. The chai rman shall preside at all meetings, the
vice—chairman shall act in the absence of the chairman, and the
secretary shall keep a record of the Board meetings showing the
action of the Board the vote of each member upon each question
considered, which record shall be a public record.

C. Purpose and Powers: The Board slial I meet at the call of
the chairman, by his request, or by petition of at least three
3) Board members, or by request of an official of the Town, or
by petition from an aggrieved party of an applicant for variance
or by order of the Town Board. The Board shall in general have
the right to grant either an exception to, or variance from, the
zoning ordinance for good cause. More particularly, the Board
shall i-ave the foil owing pc:wers:

1, To hear and decide appeals from and review any order,
requirement, decision or determination made by an administration
official charged with the enforcement of this zoning ordinance.

2. To hear and dcci de upon the granting of adjustments,
van rnce5 modifications or excepti ons to the requlati ons and
requirements of this ordinance relating to the use, construction
or alteration of buildings or structures, or the use of land, so
that the spirit of this ordinance is observed, public safety and
welfare secured, and substanti al justice done.

3. To interpret the zoning ordinance, including any
uncertainty as to boundary locati on or meaning of words, provided
such interpretation is not contrary to the purpose and intent of
th s or-di nance.

68



4

4. To permit the publtc- to attend and to be heard at all of
its meetings.

0. Prccedure
1.All requests for appeal of an administrative decision or

variance to the zoning ordinance shall be submitted, in writing,
to the Town Clerk, along with a $25.00 app! i cati on fee.

2. All appi i catzons shall contain a descripti Ofl 0+ the
property, md tiding lot and block numbers, as we! 1 as suffi ci ent
maps, di aqrams, and notat ons. it shall cite the Section of the
ordinance which is ± nyc! veil, state what relic-f is being souqht,
and the grounds and justification upon which such application is
being made. It shall also contain the adresses, names and the
signatures of the property owners abutting or adjacent to the
applicant’s property on all four sides, signifying that they have
been notified of the variance being requested in the
application.

3. All applications shall be referred by the Town Clerk, to
the board in a timely fashion. A public hearing shall be held,
with at least ten (10) days advance notice of the date, time,
place and purpose of such hearing to he published in the usual
manner of Town ordi nances. The board of Adjustment shall notify,
or direct the Town Clerk to notify, in writing, the applicant,
any administrative official involved, and the Town board of all
hearings scheduled, and of ad 1 dcci sions, van ances,
recommendations or directives issued.

4. Four (4) members of the board of Adjustment shall
constitute a quorum, and a concurring vote of four (4) members of
the Board shall be necessary to reverse any order, requirement,
decision or determination of any administrative official, or to
decide in favor of the applicant on any matter upon which the
board is required to pass under this ordinance, or to effect any
variance of exception to his ordinance.

5. All decisions of the board shall be made within 31 days
of the date of submission of the application. Any final
determination of the board shall he reported in writing over the
signature of the chairman or vice chairman of the board, and a
copy of said report shall b e furnished the applicant and filed
with the Town Clerk. All dcci si on of the Board may be appealed
to the district court.

SECT ION 4: AMENDMENTS DR CHANGES TO THE ZONING ORDINANCE

A. The regulations, restrictions, and boundaries
established by this Ordinance and the official Zoning District
Map may be amended, supplemented, changed, modified or repealed
by the Town board, following review and recommendati on by the
Planning Coinmi ssi on. Such amendments or changes may he initi ated
by the board, the Commission, or by application of any citizen or
group of citizens, 4± ru or- cor-poration r-esi ding, owning or
1 easi nr.j property in the Town of Rico.

69



5

E. Appi ication Procedure
1. Application for such action by citizens, firms or

corporations shall be filed, in writing, with the Town Clerk,
along with a $25.00 application fee.

2 Application for an amendment or change in the
Zoning Distict Map shall contain the following information:

a, Name, address, and phone number of
applicant(s).

b. A brief narrative describing the proposed
change and rationale for requesting the change.

c. Description of land area including tract or
1 cit and block numbers to be rezoned, and requested new
classification, along with a drawing to the scale of the Zoning
District Map showing boundaries of the area requested to be
rezons’d, and an indication of existing zoning for all adjacent
areas.

d. A statement of justification of the rezoning
requested.

e. Descripti on and sketches of bui ldinqs or uses
proposed if rezoni nq is granted, along wi U, a description of land
and building uses within 200 feet of the boundary of the proposed
area of chancie, in all directions, excl udinq thoroughfares.

Said description shall include, but not he limited to, a
drawing which locates any proposed hui i di nqs on the site and a
descri pti on of any structures to be constructed on the site
including dimensions, height, exterior construction materials,
usage, parking, traffic, and landscaping. >

f. Time scheduled for any contemplated new
construct ‘ on or uses,,

g. Effect that the new zoning would have on
adjacent uses

h. Signature of applicant (s) with date.
All applications shall he referred by the Town

Clerk to the Planning Commission, which shall review and return a
recommendation either for or against the proposed amendment or
change to the Town Poard within 31 days of the receipt of the
application by the Planning Crtmmission

C. hetore acti on is taken to amend or change this Drdi nance,
a public hearing shall he held by the Town Etoard. At least
fifteen (15) days advance notice of the date, time and place of
such hearing shall be published in the usual manner of town
ordinances. In addition, the property owners identified below
shall be notified by mail of the public hearing and shall be
provided a description of the proposed zoning change as
identified in sections b through q above.

1. The following property owners are to receive written
not if i cat i on

a, All owners of property located within a 200
foot radius of the requested zoning change.

h. All property owners on the same block as the

70



a

requested change.
c. All property owners on the facing street of the

facing block. >

P. The adoption of any amendment, supplement, change or
modification to the ordinance shall require a favorable vote of
two—thirds of all members of the Board of Trustees.

E. The Board shall render its decision within sixty (60)
days of the date of submission of the application, unless an
extension of said time is agreed upon, in writing, by the
applicant and the Board.

SECTION 5 USES SUBJECT TO REVIEW

A. Applications for uses subject to review and all uses in
the Commercial Distict (C—2) or Development Area District (D> or
in the Hazard Overlay District (H) shall be filed, in writing,
with the Town Clerk, along with a $15.00 fee f or advertisement
and processing. An additional application fee, sufficient to
meet the costs of acquiring any professional assistance necessary
for propertly evaluating the proposed use, may be assessed by the
Town Board. Applications shall contain the following site plan
information regarding the property in question, as applicable:

1. Name, address, and phone number of applicant(s).
2. A brief narrative description of the proposed

project.
3. Location and identification of all existing and

proposed public and private easements.
4. Boundaries of sites to be reserved or dedicated for

trails, parks, playgrounds, schools, or other public uses and the
location of any common open area not reserved or dedicated to
public use.

5. The areas, in square feet, and percentage of the
total area of the proposed development devoted to each type of
use.

6. The existing buildings, telephone and power lines,
and sewer, water, gas and drainage pipes located on the proposed
development and adjacent to its boundaries.

7. A legal description of the land area of the
request, along with a drawing to scale showing boundaries, and an
indication of existing zoning for all areas on the drawing.

S. Time schedule for any contemplated new construction
or uses.

9. Signature of applicant(s) with date.

B. Criteria for judging applications shall include, but not
be limited to, the effect of the proposed use on aesthetics, air
quality, density, noise generation, refuse generation, traffic
patterns, parking, drainage, snow removal, and adjacent land
uses.

71



7

C. All applications shall he referred by the Town Clerk to
the P1 anni ng Comnii ssi on, which shall review and return a
recommendation either for or against the proposed development to
the Town Eoard within 31 days of the receipt of the application

hearing shall be held, with
of the date, time and place
designated public

0. The Eoard shall render its decision within sixty (60)
days of the date of submission of the applicationS,
extension of said time is agreed upon, in writing,
applicant and the 9oard.

For the purpose of this Ordi nance, certain words and phrases
used herein shall be defined or- i nterpr-eted as fol lows

1. Accsoy Customaril y associ ated with but incidental to
another use or structure on the same lot.

2. Aflcy As platted and shown on the official town map, a
public way other than a street., permanently reserved as a
secondary means of access to abutting property. ,

3 &n.L Any device attached to an supported solely by a
building and designed to provide shade or shelter over a hui 1 ding
opening, vial Iu-iay or thoroughfare.

4. i That portion of a building with walls and floor
located wholly or par-ti ally underground

5. LIed and_Elrea[.:fast A service offering lodging
accommodations to the public, conducted within a r-esi denti al
structure, visits not to exceed thirty days for any one party,
with limited meal service for guests only, with a limitation of
four rental rooms if not located within the C—i, C-2, or I)
Districts. The allowable signaqe shall he the same as that
permitted in the district in which the Eed and l3reakfast is
1 ocateth

6. Ekti1thj Any temporary or permanent structure having a
roof or other covering, and designed or used for the shelter or
enclosure of any person, animal, or property of any kind,
excluding tents or vehicles.

7. çamp_ Any recreational, mobile vehicle designed for
temporary occupancy and having self--contained utilities.

9. Canine ParL Any property Lised to provide public parking
facilities for one (1) or more campers or camper units of any
type.

9. c..crt A
fully enclosed by wails.

10. Car Wash A lot on which
waxed, either by the patron or by

by the Planning Commission. A public
at least ten (10) days advance notice
of such hearing to be posted in three
locations.

SECTION 6 DEFINITIONS

unless an
by the

shelter for one or more vehicles which is not

motor vehicles are washed or
others, using machi nery

72



B

especially designed fc:r that purpose.
11. Qb _.r&ntgc A state licensed facility used for

the day care of Five (5) or more children under sixteen years of
age.

12. Clinic A place where mcdi cal or dental care is
furnished to persons on an out—patieiit basis by licensed medical
practitioners.

13. Club Any membership organization including a I edge
cater-i ng exclusively to members and their guests and whose
facilities are limited to meeting, eating, and recreational uses,
and whose activities are not conducted principally for monetary
gal n

14. Condominium A building, or buildings, consisting of
separate fee simple estates to individual Linits of a multi—unit

property together with an undivided fee simple interest in common
elements.

15. Dwelfl A permanent building, or portion thereof,
which is used as the private residence or sleeping place of one
or more persons or families, excluding hotels., hospitals, nursing
homes, or such temporary structures as tents or campers.

16. Dweflinfljt A building, or portion thereof, providing
complete housekeeping or residential facilities for one person or
one family.

17. Family Any individual , or two or more persons rd ated
by blood or marriage, or between whom there is a legally
recognized relationship, or a group of not more than five (5)
unrel ated persons, occupying the same dwelling unit.

16. Family Care Home A state licensed or approved facility
providing twenty—four (24) hour child care in a place of
residence of a family or person.

19. Floor Area The total gross living or busi ness area on
all floors, including finished basements, as measured to the
outside surfaces of existing walls, excluding crawl spaces,
garages, carports, vent shafts, courts, breezeways, open porches,
balconies, and terraces,

20. Gare An enclosed building designed for the private
storage of motor vehicles, excluding buildings from which motor
vehi dc fuels are sold, or where repair or other services are
performed for compensata on.

21. up ±qiIL.Agd An owner-occupied or non
profit group home for the excl usi ‘Ic residential use of not more
than eight (B) persons sixty (60) years of age or older.

22. Heisbt The vertical distance from the highest point on
a structure or building, excluding any chi mney, antenna, cupol a
or steeple., to the average ground level of the grade where the
walls or other structural elements intersect the ground.

23. H .ctLJiPnr1 faLc$bsia An end osed building, or
porti on thereof, wherein products, equi pment, appliances, or
other machinery are repaired.

24. Home Occupation Any business conducted principally
within a dwelling unit, enclosed garage, or accessory building.,
and carried on principally by the inhabitants, which use is

73



9

clearly incidental and secondary to the use of the dweil 1 ing and
property for residential purposes, and whi ch does not change or
adversely affect the character of the property or nei qhborhood

25. Hotel/Motel A structure designed, used or offered for
residential occupancy for any period less than one month
i nd tiding tourist homes and I odges, but not including hospitals
or nursing homes

26. kennEJ Any building, structt.tre or open space devoted
wholly or partially to the raising, boarding or harborinq of six
(6) or more animals that are over four (4) months old

27. < Ladlic..aas! An area covered with 1 i vi ng, ornamental
foliage including, but not limited to, grass, shrubs, trees, and
flowerz Landscaping by means other than living foliace subject
to approval by the Town Board.

29. Laundromat A facility where patrons wash, dry or
dryclean clothing or other fabrics in machines operated by the
patron.

29. Lot A parcel of real property as shown with a separate
and distinct number or letter on a plat recorded in the Dolores
County Courthouse. Al so, or when not platted in a recorded sub
division, a parcel of real property abutting upon at least one
public street and held under one separate ownership.

30. Lot_line A line marking the boundary of a lot or
parcel.

31, Lgv An enclosed buildang, or portion
thereof, wherein products1 equipment, appl i ances, or other
machinery are repaired, and from which no heat, glare, vibration,
or noise extends beyond the lot 1 inc.

32. Manufactured Home A single family dwelling which meets
the following criteria:

a. Is partially or entirely manufactured in a factory.
b. Is not less than twenty—four (24) feet in width and

thirty—six (36) feet in length, exclusive of any towing
apparatus, bumpers or additions.

c. Is installed on any engineered permanent foundation.
d. Has brick, wood, or cosmetically equi val ent exterior

siding and a pitched roof.
e. Is certified pursuant to the National Manufactured

Housing Construction and Safety Standards Act of 1974, 42 WS.C.
5401 et seq. , as amended.

- Meets or exceeds minimum Town of Rico Etui idinq Code
Standards..

:33. Mu-ge Any roofed structure attached to a building and
having columns, posts or otherc3upport, and which projects over
the public right—of—way.

34. Mobile Home A structure or mobile vehicle manufactured
partially or entirely in a factory, which is designed and used as
a permanent single family dwelling, and which has no self—
contained utilities. The structure shall be considered a mobile

N home whether or not its wheels or other rolling devices have been
removed, or it has been jacked up, skirted, or any addition to
the basic trailer has been built upon the grounch

74



1 C)

35. Mobile Home Park Any property under the same ownership

which had been planned, improved or used for the placement of

five (5) or more mobile homes for residential occupancy.
36. Multi—family weljJj A building or structure designed

or used for residenti cal occupancy by two or more families, with

or without common or separate kitchen or dining facilities,

including apartment houses, rooming houses, boarding houses,

fraternities, saran ties, dormitori et, row houses, townhouses,

and similar housing types.
37. !gn—c2n±QcjarJpkiUs!_aascJ2tnaatIir& A building or

structure or permanently affixed sign, or portion thereof

legally existing at the time of passage of this ordinance on

October 27, 1997, hut conflicting with the provi sions of this

ordinance applicable to the district

This shall not intl ude any bu ldi rig
variance to the Zoning Ordi nance.

3$. Non—conforming Use
premi ses, or porti on thereof
passage of this ordinance on
conflicts with the provisions of this ordinance.

include any use e>: i sting under a van ance to the

Ordinance, which shall not be considered

39. Nursing Horns A structure or hui
for residential occupancy and provi di rig 1
nursing care on the premises for occupants, hut

hospital or mental health center.
40 CffiflflYfl±±fl!ff&!._.hAafl. A sign securely attached

building or its own supporting structure which is in turn
securely affixed to ground.

41. < PrQperty A contiguous parcel of land owned by
person, one collection of persons, or one organization

Rear Lot Line A boundary line, or lines, opposite the

line, which (usually) separates the lot from the

alley.
43. B eliqicus; institution A bui lding wherein persons

regularly assemble for religious worship, which is used only for

that purpose and those accessory activities customarily

associ ated therewith.
44. RcniLa..bsia see High Impact Repair Shop and Low Impact

Repair Shop.
45. ftestaLn r A building, or portion thereof, in which

food or beverages are prepared and offered for sale, and where

consumpti on is permi tted on the premi ses, whether or not

entertainment is offered, including grill cc, cafes, taverns,

nightclubs, drive ins, and any fast food establishment permitting

consumption on the premises.
46. A facility where motor vehicle fuels

are sold at retail and at which repair or other service may be
performed for compensation.

47. Any yard area utilized for storage of

materials or supplies accessory to, or used in conjunction with,
the principal use of the lot or building, or used for trash or

in which it is located.
or structure cxi sting under a

or

not

The use of a building, structure
legally existing at the time of

October 27, 1997, but which
This shall

Zoning
a non—conforming use.
iding designed or used
imited medical or

not including a

42.
front lot
adjoining

to a

one

75



H

garbage contai ners, or for the location of mechanical eqt.iipment

or machinery accessory to the principal bLil I ding or use.
49. Setback The required distance between the farthest

prot i-usa on of a building or structure and any lot line of the lot
or parcel on which it is located.

49. Side Lot Line A line, or lines, which represent the
boundary between adjoining lots or parcels of property.

50. jfmily_Dwelling A structure, except a mobile

home, designed or used for residential occupancy by one family.
51. Sigg Any device affixed to, painted on, or incorporated

into a building surface, or free—standing upon the site, and
which is visible from the public right—of—way, designed to convey
or direct a message to the public concerning the identif icetion

of the premises or to advertise or promote the interest of any
private or public firm, person, or organization.

52 SaqAtea The area o1 Ihe plain geometric figure which
encompasses the facing of a sign, i ncluding copy, insignia,
background and borders.

53. ELq —Stan thnci A sign structurally separate from

the building, being supported on itself or on a standard or legs,
and which does not project into or over the public right—of—way.

54 L&ia E:r:.csiriast A sign attached to and projecting
(usually) perpendicular from a building, which may or may not
proj ect over the public right—of —way.

55. Sign, Wall Any sign painted on, incorporated in, or
affixed to the building wall, or any sign consisting of cut—out
letters or devices affixed to the building wall with no
background defined on said wall. Where no background is defined
on a wall sign, the sign area shall be the smallest geometric
figure which encompasses all of the letterinq or other elements
of the sign.

56. As platted and shown on the official town map, a

named or numbered public way which provided the princi pie means
of access to abutting property.

57. L.csactw:g Any constructed or erected material or
combi nati on of materials in or upon the ground, including but not

1 imtedto, buildings, mobile homes, radio towers, sheds, decks,

storage bins, and wails and fences over six feet hi qh, hut

excluding sidewalks and paving on streets, driveways, parking
areas and patios.

59. ucy& A certified document provided by a licensed
surveyor

59. Warehouse A building used for the public or business

storage of goods, materi .ai s , or vehic:l es.

SECTION 7: ZONING DISTRICTS

A. The Town of Rico is hereby divided into the Zoning
Districts listed below.

76



12

ZONING DISTRICTS

R—1 Single Family District
R—2 Medium Density District
C-i Commercial Hi stori cal
C—2 Commercial District
D Development Area
H Hazard Overlay Di

The boundaries of said use di stricts are hereby estahl ished as
shown on the Zoning District Map.

t. The Zoning Use District Map is hereby made a part of
this Ordinance. The Town of Rico Nil 1 maintain a Zoni rig Use
District Nap and the official copy shall be on file in the Town
Clerk’s office. The Zoning Use District Map has the same fcrce
and effect as if fully described and set forth herein.

C. General Recjuirements:
1. Compl iarice No bui

constructed converted,
nor shall any building,
any purpose other than

which it is located. No building or structure shall be erected,
constructed, converted, enlarged, mcved or structurally altered,
except in conformity with all regulations prescribed herein f or
the district in which it is located.

2, Seweragcn A waste disposal system which complies
with the individual waste disposal standards of the Colorado
State Health Department shall be installed on any property with a
structure ccntaaninq toilet faci 1 ities. Such a waste disposal
system will , at minimum, include an adequate septic system and
absorption area. < Exception: campers which contain self—
contained toilet facilities. >

3. Open to sky: Every part of a required yard or lot
area shall be open to the sky, unobstructed, except as otherwise
provided herein.

4. Drai nage: All structures and uses shall be designed
and maintai ned in such a manner that drainage from the property
will not adversely affect any other property or street.
Structures, wal kways, dri veways, gutters, etc. , may not obstruct
or interfere with municipal drainage systems, structures or
dcvi c es.

5. Mandatory demolition: In the event a structure,
hui 1 dinq , unit or improvement, either permanent or mobile, is
substantially damaged, destroyed or deteriorated by any means,
the owner of the property upon which said structure or facility
is located shall undertake demolition or repairs 0± said facility
no later than 30 days after such damage occurs. Any demolition
shall be compl eted and the land cleared and leveled no later than
ninety (90) days after said damage occurs.

6. Lights: Any light or lights used to illuminate

Residential
Residential

District

District
strict

erected,
altered,
used for

I ding or structure shall be
enlarged, moved or structurally
structure, land or premises be

as permi tted in the district in

77



13

parking areas or any other private property, shall be so arranged
as to reflect light away from nearby residential properties.

7. Service Yards: All service yards shall be fenced so
as not to be visible from any street, and such fences shall be a
minimum of six feet and a maximum of eight feet in height above
grade, and must meet applicable setback requirements if over sin
feet.

B. Scenic Views: Insofar as practicable, structures
shall be designed and sited in a manner which will have the least
impact on the scenic views of neighbors.

0. Non—Conforming Use: Any use of property or premises
existing at the time of passage of this ordinance on October 27,
1987, which does not conform to the regulations prescribed
herein, shall be deemed non—conforming use. Such use may be
continued indefinitely as long as there is no interruption of
active use. If there is a discontinuation of the non—conforming
use, the owner of the property or premises shall have one (1)
year from the date of the interruption of the non—conforming use
to reinstitute the non—conforming use. Failure to reinstitute
the non—conforming use within the one year limit shall require
that the non—conforming property or premises be brought into full
compliance with all the provisions of this ordinance and the use
district within which the property or premises is located.

E. Non—conforming Structure: Any building or structure,
including a permanently affixed sign, existing at the time of
passage of this ordinance on October 27, 1967, which does not
conform to the regulations prescribed herein, shall be deemed a
non—conforming building or structure. (Signs not permanently
affixed are subject to the provisions of Section 14—0.) Such
building or structure may remain indefinitely until such time
that it is moved or substantially damaged or destroyed.

1. Any non—conforming building or structure moved to
a new location shall be brought into conformance with the
standards of the district in which it is relocating.
Reconstruction on the vacated lot shall meet all requirements of
the use district in which it is located. Exception: Any non
conforming mobile home removed from its site may be returned to
the same property or be replaced within sixty (60) days by
another mobile home, provided the replacement meets all other
requirements of the district.

2. The owner of a damaged or destroyed non—conforming
structure shall have one (1) year from the date of damage or
destruction to reconstruct the structure. Failure to reconstruct
such damaged structure within one year shall require that the
structure be brought into full compliance with all the provisions
of this ordinance and the district within which the building or
structure is located.

3. Any addition built onto a non—conforming building
or structure must comply with all the provisions of this code and
the use district in which it is located.

78



14

4. The use o+ a building or structure is separate anddistinct from the actual building or structure itself , and shallcomply with all the provisions of this ordinance and the usedistrict in which it is located, or if applicable, with Section7--fl above.

Non--Conforming Signs: See: Section 7--S above and Section i4D.

F. Public Utilities: Nothing in these regulations shall beconstrued to prevent the construction or installation, in anydistrict, of a public utility use or structure necessary for thetransmission of commodities or services of a utility company,including mains, transmission and distribution lines,substations, and exchanges, provided that storage, mai ntenanceand business facilities shall be restricted to their appropriatedistrict. The construction and installation of all publicutzlities shall comply with the fol lowing:
1- No towers or apparatus for the transmission,emission, or reception of signals which are in excess of twenty(20) feet from base to tip, and no wind--driven apparatus which isin excess 0+ twenty (2W feet from base to tip, shall beconstructed, placed or maintained within the town limits, exceptin the Development Area District.
2. Substations, exchanges, and storage and maintenancefacilities shall he required to be obscured by natural vegetationscreening to conform with the surrounding environment, or byfencing which is a minimum of six feet and a maximum of eightfeet above grade and which meets the applicable setbackrequirements i -F over six feet.
3. New utility transmission and distribution linesshed 1 be buried in the R—i and R--2 districts and in the C—i,Commercial Hi storical District and in all mobile home parks.This shall not include relocating or resizing of existing lines.Duried utility lines shall be a minimum of 18” below grade.

< 6. Temporary Use Permits. When such action is deemed tobe in the public interest, the Town Board may grant permi ssi on toan individual or organization to conduct an activitiy which isnot normally permitted under the provisions of this zoningordinance. Any such temporary use shall be limited to a periodnot to exceed ninety (90) days Before action is taken to granta temporary use permit, a public hearing shall he held by theTown Board. At least ten (10) days advance notice of the date,time and p1 ace of suc:h hearing shall be publ i shed in the usualmanner of town ordi nances,

SECTION 9: R—l SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT

A. Purpose: This district is established for the purpose ofproviding an area for single family dwellings.

79



15

EL Uses Permitted by Riqht:
1. Single family dwelling
2. Manufactured home

C. Lises Subject to Review (See Section 5):
1. Child care center
2. Family care home
3. Group home for the aged
4. Group home for the developmentally disabled
5. Educational institution

t,. Relaqious institution
7. bed and breakfast establishment
2. Private storage or garage bui 1 di nq without residence

D. Accessory Uses and Structures:
1. Home occupation
2. Garage
3. Parking space
4. Greenhouse, tool house, playhouse, and sheds
5. Fences and walls

E. Requirements:
1. Minimum lot area of dwelling unit: 5001 square feet
2. Minimum lot width of dwelling unit: 50 feet
3. Maximum hei ght of structure: 50 feet
4. Minimum floor area of dwelling unit (other than

manufactured housi ng) : 550 square feet
5. Minimum setback:

a. Principal Structures:
Front setback: 12 feet
Side setback: 7 feet
Rear setback: 5 feet

b. Accessory Structures (walls and fences si>: feet
high or less excluded):

Front, Side, and Rear setbacks: 5 feet
Any building is to be designed so that all snow, water and ice
from the roof falls on the owner’s property.

6. Parking: one off—street parking space per dwelling
unit. Other than residential uses must consult with the P1 anni nq
Commission and obtain speci + ic off—street parking requirements.

7. Signs and out door adverti si nq devices: See Secti on
1. 4.

SECTION 9: R—2 MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT

A, Purpose: This district is established for the purpose of
providng an area for multiple and single family dwelling units.

El. Uses Permitted by Right:
1. Single family dwelling
2. Multi—family dwelling

80



16

3. Child car2 center
4. Family care home
5, Manufactured home
6. Group home for the aped
7. Group home for the developmentally

Subject to Review (See Section 5):
Educational insttutton
Religious institution
Bed and breakfast establ i shment

4. Clinic or hospital

0, Accessory Uses and Structures:
1. Home occupation
2. Garage
3. Greenhouse,
4, Fences and walls
5. Private garage or storage

E. Requirements:
1. Minimum lot area: Single family: 5000 square feet!

Multi—family: 7500 square feet.
2. Minimum lot area per multi—family dwelling unit:

1250 square feet.
3. Maximum lot coverage: 50X of lot area exclusive of

parking.
lot width: sc: feet.
hei qht of structure: 34) feet
floor area per dwelling unit: Single

eet/ Multi--family: 500 squre feet,
Setback: Same ReqLLirements as R—i District.

One off—street parking space per dwelling
denti al uses must consult with the Planning
specific off—str-eet parking r-equi r-ements.

See Section 14-

SECT I ON 10: C—i COMMERC I AL_ H I STOR I CAL DI 9Th I CT

A. Purpose: This di strict is established for the purpose of
providing an area for- a wide range of retail uses, offi ces,
personal and professional servi ces, places of amusement and
restaurants, which are readily accessi ble to a person on foot.
This district is also designed to preserve the historical
appearance of Rico ‘s central business district.

B. Uses Permitted by Right:
14 Retail Shop
2. Office
3, Place of recreation or entertainment
4. Financial institution
5. Personal or professi onal service

C. Uses
1.

disabled

and shedstool house, playhouse,

building without residence

4. Minimum
5. Max i (nun,
6. Minimum

family: 550 square f
7. Minimum
a. Parking:

unit, Other than resi
Commission and obtain

9. Signs:

81



17

6. Arts and crafts studio or shop
7. Post office
8. Print shop
9. Hotel
10. Restaurant, bar
11. Religious institution
12. Social or fraternal club
13. Transportation facility
14. Low impact repair shop
15. Child care center or family care home
16. Group home for the aged or developmentally disabled
17. Boarding house

C. Uses Subject to Review (See Section 5):
1. Any use or activity nDt conducted within an enclosed

building.
2. Any use not listed above.

0. Accessory Uses or Structures:
1. Garage
2. Greenhouse, tool house, playhouse, and sheds
3. Fences and walls
4. Service yards (subject to Section 7—C—7)
5. Parking lot

E. Requirements (including Dwellings in Conjunction with
Other Principal Use):
1. Minimum Lot Area: 2500 square feet for a storage

facility without employees and toilet facilites, 5000 square feet
for any other use.

2. Minimum Lot Width: 25 feet for a storage facility
without employees and toilet facilities, 50 feet for any other
use.

3. Man imum Height of Structure: 35 feet
4. Minimum height of front facade: 25 feet
5. Minimum Floor Area:

Per principal use (other than dwelling): 500
square feet.

6. Minimum Setback: Principal and Accessory Structures
(Walls and fences six feet high and less excluded)
Front setback: 0 feet
Side setback: 0 feet
Rear setback: 5 feet
Any building is to be designed so that all snow,
water and ice from the roof falls on the owner’s
property.

7. Maximum Setback: Front setbacks greater than 5 feet
are subject to review.

B. Exterior Building Materials; Exterior building
walls visible from Glasgow Avenue may be covered
only with the following materials: wood siding,
stone, or brick.

82



16

9. Sidewalk: A solid surface sidewalk with a minimum
width of 4 feet extendinci along the entire
frontage of property. Concrete rsidewal ks shall
have a mi ru mum thickness of 4 i riches.

10. Signs: See Section 14.

SECTION 11: C—2 COMMERCIAL

A. Purpose: This district is estahl ± shed for the purpose of
providing an ar-ea suited to the needs of customers arriving by
motor vehicle.

Ec Uses Permitted by Right, Subject to Site Plan Review
(See Section 5):

1. Hotel, motel
2. Multi —f and 1 y dwelling
3. Home occupation
4. Service Station
5. Service yard (subject to Section 7—C-7)
6. All uses Permitted by Right under C—i District

C. Uses Subject to Review (See Section 5):
1. Any use or activity not conducted within an end osed

b u i 1 di n g.
2. Any use not listed above.

D. Requirements:
Minimum Lot Area: 5,000 square feet

2. Minimum Lot Width: 50 feet
3. Max i mum Height of Structure: 35 feet
4, Mini mum Floor Area Per Principal Use or Per Dwelling

Unit: 500 square feet
5. Minimum Setback: Commercial Principal and Accessory

Structures (Walls and fences six feet high and
less excluded)
Front setback: 20 feet
Side setback: 7 feet
Rear setback: 5 feet

Residential setbacks same as R-1.
Any hui 1 ding is to be designed so that all snow,
water and ice from the roof fall is on the owner s
property.

6. Bite Plan: Required for review sixty (60) days
prior to issuance of building permit.

7. Landscapi ng: 30X of the area of any lot or parcel
must he landscaped

B. Parking: One off--street parking space per dwelling
unit. Other than residential uses must consult with the Planning
Commi ss ion and obtain recommended off-street parking
req u i r emen t s.

9. Signs: See Section 14.

83



19

SECTION 12: D DEVELOPMENT AREA DISTRICT

A. Purpose: This district is established for the purpose of
providing areas for diverse types of future development activity
compatible with neighboring Zoning Districts and uses and
compatible with good land use practices. Development areas allow
flexibility in development of large or small sites and are
designed to promote the unified development and use of such sites
while protecting environmental and ecological assets.

B. Uses Subject to Review: All uses in the Development
Districts are subject to review. Possible uses include but are
not limited to single family and multi—family housing
developments, mobile home parks, shopping centers, recreational
facilities, industrial parks, and warehousing, storage and
distribution facilities.

C. Requirements: All development within the Development
Area District shall be subject to the Town of Rico Master Plan,
Street Ordinance, and all applicable provisions of the Rico
Zoning Ordinance and Sub—division Ordinance. Additional
requirements may be imposed by the Rico Town Board. An
application fee shall be assessed sufficient to meet the costs of
acquiring any professional assistance necessary for properly
evaluating the proposed development.

SECTION 13: H HAZARD OVERLAY DISTRICT

A. Purpose: This district is formed for the purpose of
establishing rules for construction and uses, and limiting the
types of uses in areas of the Town of Rico which are subject to
flooding or avalance or which contain active or abandoned mine
materials or workings. Consideration should be given to uses in
this district such as parks, open space, recreation, and wildlife
sanctuaries which do not pose a hazard to life and property.

B. Uses Subject to Review: All uses are subject to review.
If a proposed development is designated by an underlying Zoning
District, the review is to determine if the requirements of the
underlying District relating to minimum lot area, minimum lot
width, maximum height and minimimum setback are sufficient to
mitigate the hazard or hazards affecting a lot. The Town Board
may impose requirements which exceed the requirements imposed by
the underlying Zoning District to lessen danger to the public
health, safety, and welfare which may be caused by the hazard.
If the proposed development is not designated by an underlying
Zoning District, the Town Board may impose such conditions and
requirements as are deemed necessary to protect the public
health, safety, and welfare which may be endangered by the

84



20

hazard.

C, Requirements The applicant for a permit to engage in
any activity or undertake any consttircti on in a Hazard Overlay
District must submit sufficient information to show the extent 0+

the hazard and the mitigation methods and design measures
proposed for use on the site. Activity in the designated flood
plain must comply with the requirements of Rico Ordinance No. 270
concerning Flood Damage Prevention. An application fee shall be
asseed suffi c:i ent to meet the costs of acquiring any
professional assistance necessary for properly evaluating the
proposed developiment.

SECTION 14: SIGNS AND OUTDOOR ADVERTISING DEVICES

A. No signs shall be allowed except as permitted by this
ordinance, and shall be subject to the requirements of the
district in which they are located, unless specifically excepted
elsewhere in this section. Signs shall be of a permanent nature
and shall be maintained in good repair or they may be removed by
order of the Board of Trustees.

B. Exceptions: Signs exempted from the provisions of this
ordinance are any signs painted onto or located on the interior
side of a window. Al so exempted are banners, buriti ng, and other
similar displays <erected temporarily. Such devices must be
removed if damaged or disrepaired or immediately following the
conclusion of any particular event being advertised,> and may not
be erected so as to obstruct the use or visibility of the public
ri ght—oF—viay.

C. Off—Premise Signs Prohibited: Signs shall identify or
advertise only the interests or business conducted on the
property on which they are located, un 1 ess the Board of Trustees,
following review and recommendation by the Planning Commission,
determines that an off—premise sign is necessary to promote the
interests of a use not occupying the same lot or property.

0. Non—Conforming Si gns: Permanantl y affixed signs
existing at the date of passage of this ordinance on October 27,
1997 and which do not comply with the provisions of this
ordinance shall he considered non—conforming structures subject
to the provisions of Section 7—E. Other signs which do not meet
all the applicable requirements of this ordinance shall be
discontinued and removed within five years from the date of
passage of the original ordinance, i e. no later than October 27,
1987, uni ess a variance for such sign was granted prior to the
removal date. No non—conforming sign shall be alter-ed
reconstructed, or moved in any matter without being made to
better cornpl y with the provisions of this ordinance.

85



C. Abandoned Signs Prohibited: Any sign which is located on
property which becomes vacant or is unoccupied for a period of
twelve (12) months or more, or any sign which was erected for an
occupant or business unrelated to the present occupant or
business, or any sign which pertains to a time, event, or purpose
which no longer exists or has passed, shall be determined to be
abandoned, and no person shall maintain or permit to be
maintained any such sign upon their property, building, structure
or business.

F. Parking of Advertising Vehicles Prohibited: No person
shall park any vehicle or other mobile unit on the streets or
alleys, or on private property, which has attached thereto or
suspended therefrom any advertising or sign, except a vehicle
which has a sign painted directly onto or permanently affixed to
the body or other integral part of the structure of the vehicle
for permanent decoration, identification, or display, including
magnetic signs.

G. Traffic Safety: No sign shall be located so that the
safety of a moving vehicle might be impaired by obstructing the
drivers vision. No sign shall resemble or conflict with traffic
signs or signals with regard to color, format, shape or other
characteristics.

H. Sign Illumination and Moving Parts: All illuminated
signs shall be illuminated by an external lighting source.
Internally illuminated signs shall not be permitted. No sign
with flashing or moving lights or any type of moving parts shall
be allowed.

I. Signs on Marquees: Projecting signs or signs affixed to
or located on posts or pillars supporting a marquee are
prohibited. Wall signs attached to the marquee are allowed,
provided they do not project above the eave or edge of the
marquee roof nor project lower than eight (8) feet above grade.
Such signs must meet all the requirements of this ordinance and
are to be included in the computation of maximum aggregate
allowable square footage.

3. Signs on Awnings: No signs may be attached to or
suspended from an awning; however, lettering on awnings is
permitted, provided it meets all the requirements of this
ordinance and is included in the computation of maximum aggregate
allowable square footage of sign area for the building.

K. Sign Materials: Exterior signs may not be constructed of
paper, cloth, canvas, cardboard, wallboard, or other light
material, nor may any spinners, pendants, balloons, banners or
streamers be used as or incorporated into any signs, except for
banners, etc. erected temporarily under the provisions of Section
(B) herein, and awnings erected under the provisions of Section

86



(3) herein.

L. Structural Characteri siti cs: The structural
characteristics and the location of signs shall be restricted to
the following categories of signs on1y

1. Free—standing and projecting signs shall be lxmited
to one sign per principal i.ise and shall be subject to the total
aggregate footage limits set forth herein. Any free-standing or
projecting sign which projects over any public pedestri an way
shall be located a minimum of eight (9) feet above grade and a
max i mum of twenty (20) feet, and shall not extend more than six
(6) feet over the public sidewa1l, Any free —standing or
projecting sign which does not project over the public right—of—
way shall not he subject to any minimum height requirement, but
shall not exceed twenty (20) feet in height at its highest point
above grade.

2. Wall signs shall not be higher than the eave line or
parapet vial I of the but lding on which they are located, and no
sign part, including cut—out letters, shall extend more than
twelve (12) inches from the building ‘iall. Such signs shall he
subject to the total aggregate footage limits herein.

N. Signs permitted by District:
1. P—i and R-2 Districts

a. A maximum of two residential identification
signs may be erected on the same lot or premises with any
dwelling, identifying the occupant thereof, or any home
occupation pursued therein. Each said sign shall not exceed two
(2) square feet per dwelling unit.

h. Institutional or park identification signs may

be erected on the same lot or premises as the institution or park
being identified. The aggregate sign area allowed along any one
street. frontage shall not exceed sixteen (16) square feet.
Illumination of such signs in any residential district shall be
subject to the approval of the [bard of Trustees.

c. Directional signs, non—illuminated and
conforming to a standard design six (6) by thirty (30) inches,
may he erected to cli rect persons to public, cultural or other
facilities or- attracti oris, subject to the approval of the
property owner and the board of Trustees.

d, For sale or rental signs, non—il lumi nated, may
be erected only on the premises or parcel being sold or rented.
Only one (1) sign shall he permitted per parcel of contiguous
ownershi p being offered for sale or rent. The total square
footage of the sign shall not exceed the following size
requi rements

For Sale For Rent
Sign Sign

Parcels containing i — 30,000 square feet B sq. ft. 3 sq. ft.
Parcels larger than 30,000 square feet 24 Sn-. ft. 12 sq. ft.

In addition one directional sign (of six (6) by thirty (30)

87



inches may be erected to direct persons to a sale or rental
property subject to the approval of the property owner where sign
is to be erected.

2. C--i and C— Districts
a. All siqns permitted in any residential district

shad 1 also he allowed in the C—i and C—2 Districts, in
conjunction with other permitted uses and si gns, provided they
identify or advertise a business or function occupying the
pr-emi ses, and meet all the requirements of this ordinance and the
aqgregate square footage limitations set forth below.

1. The max i mum allowable aggregate sign area
(including all sides of the sign) for any free--standing or
projecting sign shall be forty (40) sqLlare feet.

2. For all buildings having afrontaqe along
a public street of one (1) through fifty (50) feet in length, the
max i mum aggregate sign area shall be forty (40) square feet.

5. For those buildings having a frontage
along a public street in excess of fifty (50) feet in length, the
max i mum aggregate sign area allowable shall be eighty (80) square
-feet.

4. In addition to the limitations set forth
above, any building located on a corner lot which has an
additional street frontage shall be permitted to add an
additional aggregate sign area of twenty (20) square feet to that
specified above, provided that such additional sign area allowed
shall only be permitted to be placed on said additional frontage.

5. The aggregate sign area square footage
allowance may include any desired combination of sign styles and
types, hut in no event shall any sign, or the combination of all
signs on a building, be larger than the maximum LU 1 owabl e sign
area computed using the above restrictions.

6. For the purpose of computing the max i mum
sign area allowable, “frontage shall be defined as: That
portion of a building in which a business or businesses are
located which abuts upon or is adjacent to a public street or
sidewalk, measured in a straight line, and not including abutment
onto an alley, nor including any surrounding prc’perty or yard
area adjacent to the bui idi nj , and not including any portion of
the building used for some purpose other than busi ness. The
total max i mum sign area all owable shall apply to all businesses
located within that building.

SECT I ON 15: 108! LIE HOMES

A. No mobile home of any type shall he used -for any purpose
other than residential occupancy within the Town of Rico.

B, The placement of individual mobile homes for residential
purposes shad 1 be limited to the Development District, and must
meet all minimum and maximum specifications and regulations for
single—family housi rig. Manuf actured housi nq as defined in

88



24

Section é—31 is not considered to be a mobile home and may be
located in the R-1 and R—2 Districts.

C. A buildinq permit is required for each mobile home prior
to its p1 acement on any property, including those placed in a
mobile home park.

D. All mobile homes must be fully skirted within sixty (60)
days of placement.

E. Mobile homes eiisting in place prior to the passage of
this ordinance on October 27, 1907, may remain on the property
indefinitely subject to the provi sions of Section 7-E, Non-
Conforming Structures.

F. Mobile homes may be parked for occupancy on private
property by the property owner in any residential zone during the
actual construction of a dwelling unit. Mobile homes so parked
must meet all setback requirements of the zone. Said occupancy
shall not take place prior to the issuance of a building permit
for the new constructi on, and shall terminate upon occupancy of
the new dwelling.

SECTION 16: CAMPERS

A. Occupancy:
1. No Camper of any type shall be used for any

purpose other than as a temporary dwelling within the Town of
Rico. Campers may be parked for occupancy on pri vate property
only with the express permi ssi on of the property owner upon whose
property the unit is parked. Campers may be parked for occupancy
on public thoroughfares only with the express permi ssion of the
property owner whose property is adjacent to the street frontage
being used and provided a clear driving lane of twenty (20) feet
remains along the roadway. Camper units parked for continuous
occupancy under the above conditions shall be allowed to utilize
the parking area described for a period not to exceed ten (10)
days on a public thoroughfare and thirty (30) days on private
property. < No more than one camper unit may he parked in any
property in a residential zone for a period to exceed ninety (90)
days.

2, Camper units may he parl::ed for occupancy on private
property < with permi esion of the property owner in any zoning
district > during the actual construction of a building. Campers
so parked must meet all setback requirements of the zone. Said
occupancy shall not take place pri or to the issuance of a
bui lda ng permit for the new construct on, and shall terminate
upon occupancy of the new dwell i ng.

3. No campers shall he kept, stored, or parked in any
all cy.

E. Camper Parks: Camper parks may be established in the C—2
or D Use Districts only. Rental of camper space shall be
limited to designated camper parks only. >

89



25

SECTION 17: SEVERABILITY

If any part or parts of this ordinance are for any reason to
be held invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not
affect the validity or constitutionality or the enforceability of
the remaining portions of this ordinance. The Board of Trustees
hereby declares that it would have passed this ordinance and each
part or parts thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one part
or parts may be declared invalid or unconstitutional.

SECTION 16: EFFECTIVE DATE

The provisions of this ordinance shall be in effect on the
27th day of October, 1967, and thereafter until repealed.

READ, PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees
of the Town of Rico on this 27th day of October, 1967.

ATTEST: TOWN OF RICO.

Linda Yellowman Hike Maxwell
Town Clerk Mayor

< SECTION 19: FIRST REVISION

The first revisions to this Zoning Ordinance are identified
in the text by the symbols: < >. These revisions are subject
to the provisions of Sections 7—D, Non—conforming Uses, and 7—E,
Non—conforming Structures. The effective date for the revisions
so identified, shall be December 13, 1966.

SECTION 20: EFFECTIVE DATE OF FIRST REVISION

The provisions of the first revision shall be in effect on
the 13th day of December 1969, and thereafter until repealed.

READ, PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees
of the Town of Rico on this 13th day of December 19B6.

ATTEST: TOWN OF RICO:

Linda Yellowman Lonnie Cole
Town Clerk Mayor >

90



nd CflL_

ORDINANCE NO. 275

AN ORDINANCE CLASSIFYING STREETS WITHIN THE TOWN OF RICO,
REGULATING THE DEVELOPMENT OF SAID STREETS, AND ADOPTING MAPS
IDENTIFYING SAID STREETS AND THEIR CLASSIFICATIONS.

SECTION 1: AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE

Under authority of Colorado Revised Statutes, 1973, Sections
32—25—206, 207, 209, 212, 213, et. seq., the Town of Rico,
Colorado, hereby establishes street classifications and
regulations providing the Town a mechanism for regulating future
development of streets within the Town for the purposes of
facilitating street maintenance and promoting good quality
streets and acceptable traffic patterns in order to assure the
health, safety, and welfare of the residents of Rico.

SECTION 2: ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT

A. Administration
1. Enforcing Official: The provisions of this Street

Ordinance shall be administered and enforced by the officer(s) or
department(s) designated by the Town Board.

8.. Enforcement Procedure:
1. An alleged violation of any of the provisions of

this Street Ordinance shall be investigated by the enforcing
official or officials, either on their own initiative or upon
receipt of a signed written complaint from a person or persons
who believe a violation exists, or by order of the Town Board.

2. If a violation is found to exist, it shall be
corrected in one or more of the following ways:

a. The enforcing official shall notify the
property owner and any other persons responsible for the
violation, in writing, and order the necessary correction. Said
correction shall be completed within a prompt, reasonable period,
as ordered by the enforcing official in said notice.

b. The enforcing official may issue a stop work
order by notice in writing posted on the property in or upon
which such violation is occurring.

c. Any law enforcement officer may cite the
property owner and/or any other persons who may be responsible
with a violation of an Ordinance of the Town of Rico, as provided
in section C herein.

d. Upon the failure of any official to act in the
case of a violation 0+ this Ordinance, the necessary notification
of violation or stop order may be issued by the Town Board,
either upon its own initiative or that of the Planning
Commission, or upon receipt of a written complaint from an
individual or group of individuals.

91



2

C. Violation and Penalty: Failure to comply with any of
the provisions of this Ordinance shall constitute a misdemeanor,
and upon conviction is punishable by a fine of not less than
$10.00 nor more than $300.00, or by imprisonment for a period of
not less than three (3) days nor more than one Cl) month. Each
day that such violation continues to exist shall be considered as
a separate offense.

SECTION 3: CONTENT

The Ordinance consists of the Present Status Map, Designated
Street Use Map, specifications for future road construction,
procedures for vacations of street rights—of—way, and approval
and permit procedures.

SECTION 4: PRESENT STATUS MAP

A.. Street Classifications: The Present Status Map shows
the present classification of Rico’s Streets. The
classifications are as follows:

1. Improved: All roads currently maintained by the
Town of Rico, Dolores County, or the State of Colorado.

2. Unimproved: Existing roads or dirt tracks not
regularly maintained by any governmental entity, but which have
significant seasonal use; or, undeveloped but potentially
developable roads between platted town lots, e.g. extensions of
platted streets.

a. Questionable for Development: portions of
Unimproved platted streets which are not feasible to develop due
to unfavorable physical conditions.

B. Platted Streets: Previously unplatted streets which
have been platted on the Present Status Map are: West Rico
Access, Dump Road, Piedmont Access, Depot Road, Water Tank Road,
Jones Mine Road, Burnett Road, Piedmont to West Rico Road, Mill
Road to town boundaries, Newman Hill Road.

SECTION 5: DESIGNATED STREET USE MAP

A. The Designated Street Use Map designates streets based
on historical uses as follows:

ARTERIAL: Glasgow Avenue/State Highway 145

COLLECTOR: Mantz Avenue, portions of Silver Street, Soda
Street, Piedmont Access, Piedmont Street, West Rico Access,
Picker Street and Eder Street.

RESIDENTIAL: All streets not designated above.

92



3

B. The following prohibitions apply to street use:

1. Residential:
a. Access to subdivisions, commercial or

industrial sties, or multi—unit housing developments is
prohibited.

b. Regular use by trucks with more than two axles
is prohibited.

c. On—street parking for vehicles of more than two
axles is prohibited.

2. Collector:
a. On—street parking for vehicles of more than

two axles is prohibited.
b. On those streets designated as Collector,

reasonable care shall be used to protect residential
neighborhoods from commercial and industrial traffic, noise, dust
and hazardous materials as defined in CR5 43—6—101, et. seq.
including, but not limited to, gasoline, diesel fuel and
liquified petroleum gas being transported to or from commercial
or industrial sites.

SECTION 6: STREET IMPROVEMENTS AND EXTENSIONS

A. Application and Review: Any person or group of persons
wishing to improve or construct a street or alley within the Town
of Rico shall first appear before the Rico Planning Commission
and submit a written application and drawing identifying:
location and extent of the work to be performed, proposed design
specifications, copy of a certified survey, proposed parking
plan, proposed snow removal plan, and statement as to the
intended use of the road. The Planning Commission shall make its
recommendation to the Town Board based on the applicants
compliance with the intent of the Street Plan and the
requirements of this Ordinance.

B. Permit: Upon approval of the proposed street improvement
by the Board of Trustees, the Town Clerk shall issue a permit
valid for one year. Application and fees shall be established by
the Town Board.

C. Design Specifications: New streets or improvements to or
extensions of Unimproved Streets or Streets Questionable for
Development within the Town of Rico shall be constructed
according to the following design specifications.

1 Widths Residential rights—of—way shall be a minimum
of 40 feet in width and Collector rights—of—way shall be a

• minimum of 60 feet in width. Arterial rights—of—way shall be a
minimum of 80 feet in width. Street surfaces are to be a minimum
of 24 feet wide with a six—inch crown.

93



4

2. Base: Road base shall consist of a minimum of 5
inches of 4—inch or smaller aggregate topped by a minimum of 4
inches of 1—inch or smaller road mix if the street isto be
unpaved.

3. Drainage: All water diversions shall be installed
in such a manner as to prevent flooding downhill, erosion of the
shoulder, and water runoff from the drainage system flowing onto
private property.

a. Culverts: Culverts shall be installed wherever
water runoff crosses the roadway and at every intersection.
Culverts are to be a minimum of 12 inches in diameter, and large
enough to accommodate expected maximum runoff. Culverts shall be
installed with sufficient slope to prevent clogging.

b. Curbs and Gutters: All paved streets shall be
installed with curbs and gutters.

c. Bar ditch: Unpaved streets shall include a bar
ditch sufficient to provide adequate drainage.

4. Grade: Streets shall be constructed with a grade
not to exceed 10 percent.

5. Roadcuts: Any roadcuts higher than six vertical
feet measured from the crown of the street which are created
during construction and which are composed of loose rock or soil
material adjacent to the street shall not exceed a 357. slope. A
retaining wall shall be built in any case where the vertical
distance between the street crown and the top of a cut would
exceed fifteen vertical feet. Toe of the road shall not exceed
45 degrees. The vertical distance between the street crown and
the tow may not exceed 15 feet without provision of a retaining
wall to protect the downslope.

6. Exceptions: The Town Board shall have the right to
waive any of the above design specifications for good cause
during the review process. The Town Board shall have the right
to impose any additional requirements necessary to ensure the
public health, safety, welfare and convenience.

SECTION 7: VACATIONS OF STREET RIGHTS—OF—WAY

A. Authority and Purpose: The Town Board shall have the
right to vacate street and alley rights—of—way pursuant to CR5
31—15—702 (1)(a)(I). Cause for vacation may include but shall
not be limited to the following:

1. Promotion of health, safety, convenience, or
general welfare of the citizens of Rico.

2. Existence of a street on topography which does not
allow development of the street to meet design specifications
required by this Ordinance.

3. Availability of alternate access to all outlying
property which would ordinarily be served, by said part of the

94



5

street.

B. Requirements
1. The Town Board shall enact the street vacation by

ordinance.
2. The Town shall retain sufficient easements or

rights—of—way for utilities.
3. Alternate access to other property served by the

street shall be documented.
4. The vacated right—of—way shall be divided at the

midpoint and title shall pass to the adjoining property owners.
5. Vacated rights—of—way shall be subject to the

provisions of the Rico Zoning Ordinance, and the Zoning District
designation shall be dictated by the adjoining Zoning District.
If the street served as a dividing line for different Zoning
Districts, the midpoint 0+ the street shall serve as the new
boundary for adjoining Zoning Districts.

6. The vacation ordinance shall specifically amend the
Street Plan and this Ordinance including the Present Status Map
and the Designated Street Use Map.

7. The Town may not receive monetary compensation in
return for any vacated street right—of—way.

SECTION 8: SEVERABILITY

If any part or parts of this ordinance are for any reason to
be held invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not
affect the validity or constitutionality or the enforceability of
the remaining portions of this ordinance. The Board of Trustees
hereby declares that it would have passed this ordinance and each
part or parts thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one part
or parts may be declared invalid or unconstitutional.

SECTION 9: EFFECTIVE DATE

The provisions of this ordinance shall be in effect on the
8th day of December, 1987, and thereafter until repealed.

READ, PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees
of the Town of Rico on this 8th day of December, 1987.

ATTEST: TOWN OF RICO:

Linda Yellowman Mike Maxwell
Town Clerk Mayor

95



nd CflL_

ORDINANCE NO. 275

AN ORDINANCE CLASSIFYING STREETS WITHIN THE TOWN OF RICO,
REGULATING THE DEVELOPMENT OF SAID STREETS, AND ADOPTING MAPS
IDENTIFYING SAID STREETS AND THEIR CLASSIFICATIONS.

SECTION 1: AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE

Under authority of Colorado Revised Statutes, 1973, Sections
32—25—206, 207, 209, 212, 213, et. seq., the Town of Rico,
Colorado, hereby establishes street classifications and
regulations providing the Town a mechanism for regulating future
development of streets within the Town for the purposes of
facilitating street maintenance and promoting good quality
streets and acceptable traffic patterns in order to assure the
health, safety, and welfare of the residents of Rico.

SECTION 2: ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT

A. Administration
1. Enforcing Official: The provisions of this Street

Ordinance shall be administered and enforced by the officer(s) or
department(s) designated by the Town Board.

8.. Enforcement Procedure:
1. An alleged violation of any of the provisions of

this Street Ordinance shall be investigated by the enforcing
official or officials, either on their own initiative or upon
receipt of a signed written complaint from a person or persons
who believe a violation exists, or by order of the Town Board.

2. If a violation is found to exist, it shall be
corrected in one or more of the following ways:

a. The enforcing official shall notify the
property owner and any other persons responsible for the
violation, in writing, and order the necessary correction. Said
correction shall be completed within a prompt, reasonable period,
as ordered by the enforcing official in said notice.

b. The enforcing official may issue a stop work
order by notice in writing posted on the property in or upon
which such violation is occurring.

c. Any law enforcement officer may cite the
property owner and/or any other persons who may be responsible
with a violation of an Ordinance of the Town of Rico, as provided
in section C herein.

d. Upon the failure of any official to act in the
case of a violation 0+ this Ordinance, the necessary notification
of violation or stop order may be issued by the Town Board,
either upon its own initiative or that of the Planning
Commission, or upon receipt of a written complaint from an
individual or group of individuals.

96



2

C. Violation and Penalty: Failure to comply with any of
the provisions of this Ordinance shall constitute a misdemeanor,
and upon conviction is punishable by a fine of not less than
$10.00 nor more than $300.00, or by imprisonment for a period of
not less than three (3) days nor more than one Cl) month. Each
day that such violation continues to exist shall be considered as
a separate offense.

SECTION 3: CONTENT

The Ordinance consists of the Present Status Map, Designated
Street Use Map, specifications for future road construction,
procedures for vacations of street rights—of—way, and approval
and permit procedures.

SECTION 4: PRESENT STATUS MAP

A.. Street Classifications: The Present Status Map shows
the present classification of Rico’s Streets. The
classifications are as follows:

1. Improved: All roads currently maintained by the
Town of Rico, Dolores County, or the State of Colorado.

2. Unimproved: Existing roads or dirt tracks not
regularly maintained by any governmental entity, but which have
significant seasonal use; or, undeveloped but potentially
developable roads between platted town lots, e.g. extensions of
platted streets.

a. Questionable for Development: portions of
Unimproved platted streets which are not feasible to develop due
to unfavorable physical conditions.

B. Platted Streets: Previously unplatted streets which
have been platted on the Present Status Map are: West Rico
Access, Dump Road, Piedmont Access, Depot Road, Water Tank Road,
Jones Mine Road, Burnett Road, Piedmont to West Rico Road, Mill
Road to town boundaries, Newman Hill Road.

SECTION 5: DESIGNATED STREET USE MAP

A. The Designated Street Use Map designates streets based
on historical uses as follows:

ARTERIAL: Glasgow Avenue/State Highway 145

COLLECTOR: Mantz Avenue, portions of Silver Street, Soda
Street, Piedmont Access, Piedmont Street, West Rico Access,
Picker Street and Eder Street.

RESIDENTIAL: All streets not designated above.

97



3

B. The following prohibitions apply to street use:

1. Residential:
a. Access to subdivisions, commercial or

industrial sties, or multi—unit housing developments is
prohibited.

b. Regular use by trucks with more than two axles
is prohibited.

c. On—street parking for vehicles of more than two
axles is prohibited.

2. Collector:
a. On—street parking for vehicles of more than

two axles is prohibited.
b. On those streets designated as Collector,

reasonable care shall be used to protect residential
neighborhoods from commercial and industrial traffic, noise, dust
and hazardous materials as defined in CR5 43—6—101, et. seq.
including, but not limited to, gasoline, diesel fuel and
liquified petroleum gas being transported to or from commercial
or industrial sites.

SECTION 6: STREET IMPROVEMENTS AND EXTENSIONS

A. Application and Review: Any person or group of persons
wishing to improve or construct a street or alley within the Town
of Rico shall first appear before the Rico Planning Commission
and submit a written application and drawing identifying:
location and extent of the work to be performed, proposed design
specifications, copy of a certified survey, proposed parking
plan, proposed snow removal plan, and statement as to the
intended use of the road. The Planning Commission shall make its
recommendation to the Town Board based on the applicants
compliance with the intent of the Street Plan and the
requirements of this Ordinance.

B. Permit: Upon approval of the proposed street improvement
by the Board of Trustees, the Town Clerk shall issue a permit
valid for one year. Application and fees shall be established by
the Town Board.

C. Design Specifications: New streets or improvements to or
extensions of Unimproved Streets or Streets Questionable for
Development within the Town of Rico shall be constructed
according to the following design specifications.

1 Widths Residential rights—of—way shall be a minimum
of 40 feet in width and Collector rights—of—way shall be a

• minimum of 60 feet in width. Arterial rights—of—way shall be a
minimum of 80 feet in width. Street surfaces are to be a minimum
of 24 feet wide with a six—inch crown.

98



4

2. Base: Road base shall consist of a minimum of 5
inches of 4—inch or smaller aggregate topped by a minimum of 4
inches of 1—inch or smaller road mix if the street isto be
unpaved.

3. Drainage: All water diversions shall be installed
in such a manner as to prevent flooding downhill, erosion of the
shoulder, and water runoff from the drainage system flowing onto
private property.

a. Culverts: Culverts shall be installed wherever
water runoff crosses the roadway and at every intersection.
Culverts are to be a minimum of 12 inches in diameter, and large
enough to accommodate expected maximum runoff. Culverts shall be
installed with sufficient slope to prevent clogging.

b. Curbs and Gutters: All paved streets shall be
installed with curbs and gutters.

c. Bar ditch: Unpaved streets shall include a bar
ditch sufficient to provide adequate drainage.

4. Grade: Streets shall be constructed with a grade
not to exceed 10 percent.

5. Roadcuts: Any roadcuts higher than six vertical
feet measured from the crown of the street which are created
during construction and which are composed of loose rock or soil
material adjacent to the street shall not exceed a 357. slope. A
retaining wall shall be built in any case where the vertical
distance between the street crown and the top of a cut would
exceed fifteen vertical feet. Toe of the road shall not exceed
45 degrees. The vertical distance between the street crown and
the tow may not exceed 15 feet without provision of a retaining
wall to protect the downslope.

6. Exceptions: The Town Board shall have the right to
waive any of the above design specifications for good cause
during the review process. The Town Board shall have the right
to impose any additional requirements necessary to ensure the
public health, safety, welfare and convenience.

SECTION 7: VACATIONS OF STREET RIGHTS—OF—WAY

A. Authority and Purpose: The Town Board shall have the
right to vacate street and alley rights—of—way pursuant to CR5
31—15—702 (1)(a)(I). Cause for vacation may include but shall
not be limited to the following:

1. Promotion of health, safety, convenience, or
general welfare of the citizens of Rico.

2. Existence of a street on topography which does not
allow development of the street to meet design specifications
required by this Ordinance.

3. Availability of alternate access to all outlying
property which would ordinarily be served, by said part of the

99



5

street.

B. Requirements
1. The Town Board shall enact the street vacation by

ordinance.
2. The Town shall retain sufficient easements or

rights—of—way for utilities.
3. Alternate access to other property served by the

street shall be documented.
4. The vacated right—of—way shall be divided at the

midpoint and title shall pass to the adjoining property owners.
5. Vacated rights—of—way shall be subject to the

provisions of the Rico Zoning Ordinance, and the Zoning District
designation shall be dictated by the adjoining Zoning District.
If the street served as a dividing line for different Zoning
Districts, the midpoint 0+ the street shall serve as the new
boundary for adjoining Zoning Districts.

6. The vacation ordinance shall specifically amend the
Street Plan and this Ordinance including the Present Status Map
and the Designated Street Use Map.

7. The Town may not receive monetary compensation in
return for any vacated street right—of—way.

SECTION 8: SEVERABILITY

If any part or parts of this ordinance are for any reason to
be held invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not
affect the validity or constitutionality or the enforceability of
the remaining portions of this ordinance. The Board of Trustees
hereby declares that it would have passed this ordinance and each
part or parts thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one part
or parts may be declared invalid or unconstitutional.

SECTION 9: EFFECTIVE DATE

The provisions of this ordinance shall be in effect on the
8th day of December, 1987, and thereafter until repealed.

READ, PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees
of the Town of Rico on this 8th day of December, 1987.

ATTEST: TOWN OF RICO:

Linda Yellowman Mike Maxwell
Town Clerk Mayor

100



ORDINANCE NO. 283

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 274 OF THE TOWN OF RICO,
BEING ‘IAN ORDINANCE REGULATING USE OF LAND AND STRUCTURE DIVIDING
THE TOWN OF RICO INTO DISTRICTS AND FOR SUCH PURPOSES ADOPTING
MAPS SHOWING BOUNDARIES IN THE CLASSIFICATIONS OF SUCH DISTRICTS
ESTABLISHING A BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS AND PRESCRIBING PENALTIES FOR
THE VIOLATIONS OF ITS PROVISIONS”; AND REPEALING ANY PROVISIONS
IN CONFLICT WITH SAID AMENDMENT.

WHEREAS, on the 9th day of October, 1987 the Board of
Trustees of the Town of Rico did ordain and establish an
Ordinance providing for the regulating of the use of land,
structures and in general establish an ordinance for the zoning
of the Town of Rico, which was then numbered Ordinance No. 274;
and,

WHEREAS, it has become apparent during the course of use of
the said Ordinance that certain modifications and amendments are
necessary to the said Ordinance No. 274; and,

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the people of the
Town of Rico that said amendments be made.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Trustees of the Town
of Rico:

Section 1. Section 6 or Ordinance No. 274: Definitions is
amended to include an additional definition numbered as No. (58)
Construction is defined as an initial breaking erection of any
structure, within the meaning of this ordinance, including septic
systems and storage buildings in excess of one hundred twenty
square feet (120 sq. ft.).

Section 2. Section 4 of Ordinance No. 274 is amended to add
a new Section ACt) Plat Changes shall be deemed amendments or
changes to the Zoning Ordinance and shall be adminstered as set
out in this Section 4. A Plat Change is defined as a
modification of an existing plat or change within a subdivision
of this Town as it exists at the time of the enactment of this
Ordinance. Said Plat Change shall be certified by a registered
surveyor and all necessary parties as in the manner as required
for an Annexation Plat by the Statutes of the State of Colorado
for annexation by a statutory Town.

Section 3. Section 14(H) of Ordinance No. 274 is amended in
its entirety to read as follows: All illuminated signs shall be
illuminated by an external lighting source, or may have certain
neon components. Any sign containing neon components shall be no
larger than sixteen square feet in the aggregrate sign area. Any
neon sign must first be approved by the Planning Commission and
then by the Town Board, No sign, whether neon or otherwise,
shall have flashing or moving lights nor shall it have any type
of moving parts.

2

101



Section 4. Section 15(F) of Ordinance No. 274 is amended to
include the following sentence as an additional requirement:
Said permission during any such construction shall be for a
period of one year only; should additional time be required, the
property owner must make his request in writing and have said
request approved by the Planning Commission of the Town of Rico
at least si>ty days prior to the completion of one year from
first placement of the mobile home.

Section 5. Ordinance No. 274 of the Town of Rico is amended
to include a new section to be numbered as Section 16(A):
Violation of any terms or requirements of this Ordinance shall
consist of a $100.00 fine for each offense. Each day that the
noncomplying property owner is not in compliance with this
Ordinance or in violation of any terms or requirements of this
Ordinance shall be deemed a separate offense.

Section 6. Any parts of Ordinance No. 274 in conflict with
this new amending Ordinance are hereby repealed.

READ, PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees
of the Town of Rico on this 9th day of October, 1990.

TOWN OF RICO:

ATTEST:

Mayor
Linda Yellowman

Town Clerk

Kenneth Hazen
Mayor ProTem

102



ORDINANCE NO. 285

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 274 OF THE TOWN OF
RICO, BEING “AN ORDINANCE RESTRICTING USE OF LAND
AND STRUCTURE DIVIDING THE TOWN OF RICO INTO DISTRICT
AND FOR SUCH PURPOSES ADOPTING MAPS SHOWING BOUNDARIES
AND THE CLASSIFICATIONS OF SUCH DISTRICTS ESTABLISHING
A BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS AND PRESCRIBING PENALTIES FOR
VIOLATIONS OF ITS PROVISIONS;AND REPEALING A PROVISION
OF ORDINANCE NO. 283 AND REPEALING ANY PROVISIONS IN
CONFLICT WITH SAID AMENDMENTS AND REPEALERS”.

WHEREAS, on the 11th day of October, 1990 the Board of
Trustees did ordain and Establish certain changes to Ordinance
No. 274 which was subsequently passed, read and approved on the
8th day of January 1991; and,

WHEREAS, in the drafting thereof an error was made in the
preparation of Ordinance No. 283 and it is necessary to correct
said error; and,

WHEREAS, as it is in the best interest of the People of the
Town of Rico that said amendments be made.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Trustees of
the Town of Rico,

Section 1: Section 5 of Ordinance No. 283 is repealed in
its entirety as stated and the original penalty section of
Ordinance No. 274 is re—enacted.

Section 2 Ordinance Number 274 is amended to add a
subparagraph to Section 2: Adminstration and Enforcement being
an addition Section 2, Section C, Violation and Penalty and
denominated subparagraph 2 as follows: 2. In addition to the
penalty set out above, there shall be an additional penalty
imposed should any person or entity undertake construction
within the Town of Rico without having obtained all necessary
permits shall include but are not limited to permits for
construction, permits for the construction of septic tanks,
particularly as prescribed in Ordinance No. 284 of the Town of
Rico and any other or any other permit required by action of
the Board of Trustees at the time of the start of construction.
Such additional penalty shall be in the sum of $100.00 and each
day after construction without the person or entity obtaining
the proper permits shall be deemed to be a seperate offense.

Section 3: Any parts of Ordinance No. 274 or 283 in
conflict with this amending ordinance are hereby repealed.

103



READ, PASSED,APPROYED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees
of the Town of Rico this 9th of April, 1991

ATTEST TOWN OF RICO:

Linda Vellowman Joe Konyndyk
Town Clerk Mayor

104



TOWN OF Rico, CoLoaano
GRDInNCE No. 310

AN INTERIM ORDINANcE ESTABLISHING A TEMP0MRY DEVELOPMENT
RESTRICTION WITHIN THE TOWN OF Rico.

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the Town of Rico has been
diligently working on the Rico Planning Project to create a comprehensive regional future

land use plan but has not yet completed such plan;

WHEREAS, the Town of Rico desires to provide for the hannonious and coordinated

development of the Town and its region which will, in accordance with present and future
needs, best promote health, safety, order, convenience, prosperity, and general welfare; as
well as efficiency and economy in the process of development, including among other

things, adequate provision for traffic, the promotion of safety from fire, flood waters,

r avalanche, wildfire, geological hazards, mine industry’ hazards and other dangers,
k.; adequate provision for light and air, the preservation of natural characteristics including

visual and aesthetic values, the protection of environmentally sensitive lands, the
promotion of energy conservation and adequate provision of public utilities and other
public requirements;

WHEREAS, recent development pressures within and without the Town of Rico have
raised the imminent possibility of growth and development which threatens the loss of
residential neighborhood characteristics, diminution of private and public property values,
overuse of water supplies or treatment capacity, congestion, unsanitary conditions, unsafe
traffic patterns, and loss of aesthetic values;

WHEREAS, prior to the occurrence of such threatened growth and development, the
Town of Rico desires to adopt a municipal master plan, zoning map and ordinance,
subdivision regulation, water code, sewer and septic regulation, and related laws for the
above-reference purposes, pursuant to the authority set forth in Article 23 of Title 31,
CRS (Planning and Zoning); CRS 31-15-701 ci seq. (public property, municipal utilities,
water and sewer systems, water pollution control); CRS 31-15-401 (general police
powers); CRS 24-67-101 et seq. (planned unit development); and any and all other
express, necessary, or implied powers of a Colorado municipality; and,

105



- Ordinance No. 310 -

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Town of Rico fmds that the passage of this
ordinance is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public health and safety of
the Rico community;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY ‘IRE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
‘flit TOWN OF RICO, the following:

SECTION 1: TEMPORARY DEVELOPMENT RESTRICTION

A. A temporary development restriction is hereby established by the Town of Rico,
Dolores County, State of Colorado, and the temporary development restriction shall apply

to, and prohibit, the following development activities and permit applications for the
duration of this Ordinance:
1. subdivision of any land not approved by the Town of Rico which results in parcels of

land less than 35 acres;
2. uses subject to review in the R-l, R-2, C-i, and C-2 zone districts, as defined by

Ordinance No. 274 as amended by subsequent ordinances, except and not including
road building permit applications for new roads in existing planed road rights-of-way;

3. building permits in the D Development Area District; and,
4. building permits in any potential high avalanche hazard area.
B. This temporary development restriction shall expire on the last day of April, 1996,
or upon resolution of the Board of Trustees of the Town of Rico, whichever occurs first.
C. During the temporary development restriction, the Board of Trustees and the
Planning and Zoning Commission shall diligently work toward the lawffil adoption and
enactment of a Town of Rico Comprehensive Land Use Plan and a Town of Rico
Comprehensive Land Use Code.
D. Applicants may submit development applications to the Town Planner for
prelhninaiy review which are otherwise prohibited by this Ordinance on or after February
14th, 1996, with the condition that applicant agrees to pay all costs associated with such
review and that the applicant acknowledges and agrees that the Town Boards and
Commissions shall not review, hear, or approve any such application prior to the
expiration of the temporary development restriction enacted by this Ordinance and
applicant further acknowledges and agrees that any and all applicable standards for
review or conditions for approval may be changed as a result of the comprehensive
regional master plan and land use code process.

SECTION 2: SAFETY CLAUSE

The passage of this ordinance is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public
health, safety, morals, and welfare of the Town of Rico community.

2

106



0?diaanco No, 310

SECTION 3: EFFECrWE DATE

This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon final adoption.

SECTION 4: IMMEDIATE PRESERVATION OF PUBLIC HEALTh AND SAFETY

This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon final adoption, rather than 30
days after final adoption and publication, because delay in the effective date of this
ordinance may impair the Town’s ability and legal authority to regulate the use of land in
the Town of Rico for the purpose of protecting the public health and safety of the Rico
community.

SECBON 5: SEVERABILITY

if any provision of this ordinance or portion thereof is held by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be invalid or unconstitutional, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall
not affect any other provision which can be given effect without the invalid portion.

SECTION 6: PuBLICATION
After final adoption, the Town Clerk shall cause a copy of this ordinance to be published
in full once in a newspaper having general circulation within the limits of the Town of
Rico.

READ, ADOPTED, AND APPROVED after a public hearing at a special meeting of the
Board of Trustees on the Town of Rico on August 29th, after posting of notice 15 days
prior to the public hearing and posting of the ordinance in full in accordance with
Resolution No. 104 10 d prior to adoption.

______________

Z 6iP
By: MAYOR OF THE ToWN OF RICO\

__________________

q, ,qç
ATkgsT: TOWN ERK

_____________________

Si?? / 7c
APPRQ9Ô AS TO FO : TOWN AUORNEY

(Town Seal)

3

107



GFthnance No. 315
Town of Rico

AN ORDINANCE ENACTING A TEMPORARY DEVELOPMENT RESTRICTION ON
(1) THE FINAL PLATTING OF ANY SUBDIVISIONS, (2) EXCAVATIONS ON
STREET RIGHTS-OF-WAY AND OTHER PROPERTY OF THE TOWN OF Rico, (3)
THE ISSUANCE OF BUILDING PERMITS IN THE DEVELOPMENT ZONE DISTRICT,
(4) THE ISSUANCE OF BUILDING PERMITS IN THE C-i COMMERCIAL IIISTORIC
ZONE DISTRICT AND C-! COMMERCIAL ZONE DISTRICT, AND (5) THE
EXTENSION OR CONSTRUCTION OF NEW ROADS.

WHEREAS, Colorado Revised Statutes Article 20, Title 29, authorizes statutory towns
to regulate the use of land within their jurisdiction;

WHEREAS, the Town of Rico’s general police powers authorize the Town of Rico to
regulate the use of land and the granting of permits therefor for the purpose of
preserving and promoting the health, safety, and general welfare of the Rico
community;

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has received the WASTER WATER
EVALUATION & ANALYSIS, dated December 1995, prepared by Goff Engineering
& Surveying, Inc., which summarizes and concludes that the Rico area is not
acceptable for the design and construction of additional on-site individual sewage
treatment systems and sets forth preliminary plans for the construction of a central
waste water treatment facility;

WHEREAS, the Town of Rico does not currently own any site which is suitable for
the construction of a waste water treatment facility and does not currently have the
financial resources to construct a waste water treatment facility or the financial
authority to increase its indebtedness to finance a waste water treatment facility;

Page loiS Pages -

108



- Ordinance No. 315 - Ton a! Rico

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has received the TOWN OF RICO - WATER
SUPPLY PROJECT - ENGINEERING REPORT, dated February, 1996, prepared by
Harris Water Engineering, Inc., which identifies that the current bag filtration

treatment system can only serve about 400 people during the peak summer usage and
that the Town does not currently have sufficient water rights with sufficient priority to
serve additional growth;

WHEREAS, the Town of Rico has currently issued more than 150 water taps;

WHEREAS, the Town of Rico does not currently have the financial resources to
construct the recommended water treatment and supply facilities (as indicated in the
TOWN OF RICO - WATER SUPPLY PROJECT - ENGINEERING REPORT), or the
financial authority to increase its indebtedness to finance the recommended water
treatment and supply facilities, nor does the Town possess the necessary easements to
install and construct the recommended water treatment and supply facilities;

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees finds that the existing water system infrastructure

can not serve the existing platted and subdivided part of Town;

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees is diligently working towards identifying and
applying for potential sources of financing to construct waste water and water treatment

facilities as well as other necessary capital improvements;

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 310 AN INTERMIM ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING

A TEMPORARY DEVELOPMENT RESTRICTION WITHIN THE TOWN OF
RICO, expires on the last day of April, 1996;

WHEREAS, the Town is currently considering a comprehensive land use code and
other regulations which would regulate excavations in Town rights-of-way; enact
design regulations for construction in the C-i Commercial Historic Zone District and
the C-2 Commercial Zone District; enact zoning, subdivision, planned unit
development regulations in the area currently zoned D Development Area Zone
District; and enact regulations and fees regarding the construction new roads or
extension of existing roads in Town;

Page 2o1 5 Pages -

109



Ordinanci No. 315 • Ton of Rico -

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees finds that the maintenance, oversight, and
regulation of the placement of utilities lines in Town rights-of-way directly affects the
ability and cost of the Town to plan for and install future utility lines in Town rights-of-
way and that such control over the Town rights-of-way is essential to preserving and
promoting the health, safety and general welfare of the Rico community;

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees finds that the orderly and planned growth of the
Town of Rico and Rico Regional 3-mile planning area will promote the health, safety,
and general welfare of the Rico community and will promote the ability of the Town to
provide essential services and infrastructure to serve additional development; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Board of Trustees of the Town of
Rico on April 17th, 1996, and the Board of Trustees considered all comments at such
public hearing prior to adopting this Ordinance;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
THE TOWN OF RICO, COLORADO, the following:

SECTION 1: TEMPORARY DEVELOPMENT RESTRICTION

A. A temporary development restriction is hereby established by the Town of Rico,
Dolores County, Colorado, and the temporary development restriction shall apply
to, and prohibit, the following development activities and permit applications until
the last day of April, 1997, or until this Ordinance, or part thereof, is repealed by
Resolution pursuant to Section 2:

1. subdivision of any land held in contiguous ownership not approved by the Town of
Rico which results in parcels of land less than 35 acres;

2. uses subject to review in the R-1 and R-2 Zone Districts;
3. building permits in the C-i Commercial Historic or C-2 Commercial Zone Districts;
4. building permits in the D Development Area Zone District;
5. excavations in Town rights-of-way or other Town property, except by the Town of

Rico;
6. building permits in any potential high avalanche hazard area; and,
7. road building permits for the construction of new roads or extension of existing

roads.

- Lago 3 of 5 Lagos -

110



- Ordinance No. 315 Ton of lUco

B. A temporary development restriction is hereby established by the Town of Rico,
Dolores County, Colorado, and the temporary development restriction shall apply
to, and prohibit, the following development activities and permit applications until
such time as the Town has the legal authority to incur indebtedness for both water
and sewer improvements, has final approval or ‘closed’ on loans and grants which
are necessary to finance both water and sewer improvements, and has final
engineered plans for the construction and installation of both water and sewer
improvements, or until this Ordinance, or part thereof, is repealed by Resolution
pursuant to Section 2:

1. Final platting of any new subdivisions, including minor subdivisions, lot splits, and
creation of condominium ownership interests in property or structures;

2. Extension of water lines to provide service to any area not currently part of the
historic town grid plat (25 x 100 foot lots) or Town approved subdivisions
(approved subdivisions include and are limited to: the Atlantic Cable Subdivision,
the Upper Atlantic Cable Subdivision, the Silver Glance Subdivision, the Foster Lot
Split or Atlantic Cable Addition Subdivision, and the Strammel Lot Split).

SECTION 2: REPEAL BY RESOLUTION

The Board of Trustees may repeal part or all of this Ordinance by Resolution after
conducting a public hearing thereon. The repeal of any section, paragraph, or sentence
shall not effect the remainder of this Ordinance, unless expressly indicated in the
repealing Resolution.

SECTION 3: SAFETY CLAUSE

The passage of this Ordinance is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public
health, safety, morals, and welfare of the Town of Rico community.

SECTION 4: EFFECTIVE DAm

This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon final adoption and posting in
accordance with Resolution No. 104.

Page 1 of 5 Pagez -

111



Ordinance No. 315 Ton of Rico -

SECTION 5: IMMEDIATE PRESERVATION OF WE PUBLIC HEALTh AND

SAFETY

This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon final adoption, rather than 30
days after final adoption and posting, because delay in the effective date of this
Ordinance may impair the Town’s ability and legal authority to regulate the use of land
in the Town of Rico for the purposes of protecting the health, safety, and welfare of the
Rico community.

SECTION 6: SEVEkARlUfl

If any provision of this ordinance or portion thereof is held by a court of competent

jurisdiction to be invalid or unconstitutional, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall

not affect any other provision which can be given effect without the invalid portion.

SECTION 7: PUBLICATION

Page 5 of S Pages -

APPRO

After final adoption, the Town Clerk shall cause a copy of this ordinance to be posted
in accordance with Resolution No. 104 of the Town of Rico, Colorado, and shall

further cause a copy to be recorded in the office of the Dolores County Clerk and
Recorder.

READ, PASSED AND ADOPTED, after conducting a public hearing on the 17th day of
April, 1996, and considering all testimony presented, and after posting of the notice 15
days prior to the public hearing date and posting of the Ordinance in full in accordance

withm10da7dqp.y adoption.

By: ROBERT SvL4LL, MAYOR N...

a

(Town Seal) ! -

V.TO FORM: JAMES HElL, ESQ

112



ISEPEAL

Ordinance No. 334

Town of Rico

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF RICO,
COLORADO REPEALING AND REPLACING ORDINANCE NO. 315, INCLUDING
REPEAL OF THE TEMPORARY DEVELOPMENT RESTRICTION ON MINOR
SUBDIVISIONS AND LOT SPLITS

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees adopted Ordinance No. 315 to temporarily restrict certain
development within the town; and

WHEREAS, Section 1(A) of Ordinance No. 315, which set forth restrictions on certain
development activities and on the application for certain development permits, automatically
expired on April 30, 1997 and was not renewed by the Board; and

WHEREAS, Section 1(B) of Ordinance No. 315 established a temporary development restriction
on the final platting of any new subdivisions, including minor subdivisions and lot splits, and the
creation of condominium ownership interests in property or structures, and also restricted the
extension of water lines to provide service to any area not currently part of the historic town grid
plat or existing approved subdivisions; and

WHEREAS, while Section 1(B) of Ordinance No. 315 is still in effect, the Board desires to
amend such provision to exempt minor subdivisions and lot splits from the temporary
development restriction.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE
TOWN OF RICO, COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1

Repeal and Replacement of Ordinance No. 315

Ordinance No. 315 is hereby repealed and replaced as set forth herein.

Section 2

Temporary Development Restriction

No application for the following activities shall be accepted or considered until such time as the
Town has received final approval from the State of Colorado of the design and specifications for a
municipal sewage system and has obtained adequate ffinding for the construction of such system:

1. Application for approval of a planned unit development or a subdivision, other
than a minor subdivision or lot split.

113



Ordinance No.334

2. Extension of water lines to any unplatted property within the municipal
boundaries, or to any property located outside of the municipal boundaries.

Section 3

The officers of the Town are authorized to take all action necessary or appropriate to
effectuate the provisions of this ordinance.

Section 4

This ordinance shall not have any effect on existing litigation and shall not operate as an
abatement of any action or proceeding now pending under or by virtue of the ordinances repealed
or amended as herein provided and the same shall be construed and concluded under such prior
ordinances.

Section 5

If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this ordinance shall for any reason be held
to be invalid or unenforceable, such decision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of
this ordinance.

Section 6

This ordinance is necessary to protect the public health, safety and welfare of the residents
of the Town, and covers matters of local concern.

Section 7

The Board of Trustees deems it appropriate that this ordinance be published by title only
and orders that copies of this ordinance be made available at the office of the town clerk for
public inspection and copying.

Section 8

A public hearing on the ordinance shall be held on the 14 day of Jpnuanr
1998, Rico County Courthouse, 2 Commercial Street, Rico, Colorado.

2

114



Ordinance No. 334

INTRODUCED, READ, ORDERED PUBLISHED BY TIThE ONLY, AND

( ‘
REFERRED BY A MAJORITY VOTE OF THE BOARD to public hearing before the

‘ Board of Trustees of the Town of Rico, Colorado on the 14th day of

January , 1997.

TOWN OF RICO ATTEST:

By: ‘iee&if £ (AJj4y

Robert Cummings Lindä,Yellowman \
Mayor Town Clerk

HEARD AND FINALLY ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the Town of Rico,

Colorado this 14 day of January , 1998.

TOWN OF RICO ATTEST

By:

_______________ _______________

Robert Cummings Linda kelIowman \,
Mayor Town Clerk

3

115



C C

ORDINANCE NO. 1999-7
TOWN OF RICO

ADOPTING THE RICO LAND USE CODE

WHEREAS, the Town of Rico has certain statutory and police power authority to
regulate the use and subdivision of land, establish zone districts, and restrict development
activities in areas of state and local interest;

WHEREAS, the Town adopted the Rico Regional Master Plan in 1996;

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on August 10th and
took action to recommend adoption of this Rico Land Use Code;

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees held a public hearing on the 31st day of August, 1999,
after publishing notice in the Rico Sun Times, a paper of general circulation, on July 21,
28, August 4, 11, 18 and 25, and in the Dolores Star, the official paper of record, on July
22, 29, August 5, 12, 19, and 26, after posting notice at the Rico Town Hall and Rico Post
Office on July 29th, 1999, and after mailing notice to all property owners in the Rico Fire
Protection District tax assessment area which includes all property in the Town of Rico
and certain properties adjacent or near to the Town of Rico on July 29, 1999;

WHEREAS, C.R.S. §24-68-102.3(1)(a) requires each local government to specifically

identi’ by ordinance the type of site specific development plan approvals that will cause
property rights to vest by January 1, 2000; and,

WHEREAS, after considering all public comments the Board of Trustees finds that the
adoption of the Rico Land Use Code will promote the goals, and policies of the Rico
Regional Master Plan and will promote the health, safety and general welfare of the Rico
community;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF

THE TOWN OF RICO, COLORADO, the following:

SECTION 1. ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS REPEALED

The following ordinances and resolutions are hereby repealed in their entirety:

- Page I of 2 Pages -

C:\Rico\Ordinances\Ord 99-7 REUC Adoption.doc

116



Ci

- Ordinance No. 1999-7 - Town of Rico — Adoption of Rico Land Use Code -

• Ordinance No. 274- A ZONING ORDNANCE REGULATING THE USE OF
LAND AND STRUCTURES; DIVThING THE TOWN OF RiCO INTO
DISTRICThS FOR SUCH PURPOSES; ADOPTING MAPS OF SAID TOWN
SHOWING BOUNDARIES AND THE CLASSIFICATION OF SUCH DISTRICTS;
ESTABLISHING A BOARD OF ADJUSThWNTS AND PRESCRIBING
PENALTIES FOR THE VIOLATION OF ITS PROVISIONS

• Ordinance No. 275— AN ORDINANCE CLASSIFYING STREETS WITHIN THE
TOWN OF RICO, REGULATING THE DEVELOPMENT OF SAID STREETS,
AND ADOPTING MAPS IDENTIFYING SAID STREETS AND THEIR
CLASSIFICATIONS.

• Ordinance No. 281 - AN ORDINANCE CONCERNING THE FLOOD DAMAGE
PREVENTION

• Ordinance No. 283 - AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDNANCE NO. 274 OF
THE TOWN OF RICO, BEING “AN ORDNANCE REGULATING USE OF LAND
AND STRUCTURE, DIVIDING THE TOWN OF RICO INTO DISTRICTS, AND
FOR SUCH PURPOSES ADOPTING MAPS SHOWING BOUNDARIES IN THE
CLASSIFICATIONS OF SUCH DISTRICTS ESTABLISHING A BOARD OF
ADJIJSThWNTS AND PRESCRIBING PENALTIES FOR THE VIOLATIONS OF
ITS PROVISIONS”; AND REPEALING ANY PROVISIONS IN CONFLICT WITH
SAID AMENDMENT.

• Ordinance No. 285 - AN ORDNANCE AMENDING ORDNANCE NO. 274 OF
THE TOWN OF RICO, BEING “AN ORDNANCE REGULATING USE OF LAND
AND STRUCTURE, DIVIDING THE TOWN OF RICO INTO DISTRICTS, AND

FOR SUCH PURPOSES ADOPTING MAPS SHOWING BOUNDARIES IN THE
CLASSIFICATIONS OF SUCH DISTRICTS ESTABLISHING A BOARD OF
ADJUSTMENTS AND PRESCRIBING PENALTIES FOR THE VIOLATIONS OF
ITS PROVISIONS; AND REPEALING A PROVISION OF ORDINANCE NO. 283
AND REPEALING ANY PROVISIONS IN CONFLICT WITH SAID
AMENDMENTS AND REPEALERS”.

• Ordinance No. 294- AN ORDNANCE TO PROVIDE FOR, CREATE, AND
ESTABLISH THE TOWN OF RICO PLANNING COPvIIvIISSION FOR THE
PURPOSES UNDER AND AS PROVIDED BY COLORADO STATUTES,
ESTABLISHING THE MEMBERSHIP OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION,
THEIR DUTIES AND POWERS AND REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 230.

- Page2of4 -

C:\Rico\Ordinances\Ord 99-7 RLUC Adoption.doc

117



a a
- Ordinance No. 1999-7 - Town of Rico— Adoption of Rico Land Use Code -

• Ordinance No. 300- AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE RICO SUBDIVISION
REGULATIONS AND ENACTING PENALTIES FOR ILLEGAL SUBDIVISION
ACTIVITIES

• Ordinance No. 319 - AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 294 TO
REPEAL THE REQUIREMENT THAT THE MAYOR SIT ON THE RICO
PLANNING COMMISSION.

• Ordinance No. 325 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE
TOWN OF RICO, COLORADO, ADOPTING ACCESS REQUIREMENTS FOR
NEW DEVELOPMENT AND FOR CHANGE IN USE OR ADDITIONAL USES
ON EXISTING LOTS; AND FURTHER ENACTING A ROAD MAINTENANCE
IMPACT FEE ON NEW DEVELOPMENT THAT RESULTS IN THE
CONSTRUCTION OF NEW ROADS OR THE EXTENSION OR WIDENING OF
EXISTING ROADS.

• Ordinance No. 326- AN ORDINANCE DESIGNATING THE BOARD OF
TRUSTEES TO ACT AS THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS AND ENACTING
PROCEDURES AND DUTIES.

• Ordinance No. 334— AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE
TOWN OF RICO, COLORADO, REPEALING AND REPLACING ORDINANCE
NO.315, INCLUDING REPEAL OF THE TEMPORARY DEVELOPMENT
RESTRICTION ON MINOR SUBDIVISIONS AND LOT SPLITS.

• Ordinance No. 336 — AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE
TOWN OF RICO, COLORADO AMENDING SECTION 2(A) OF ORDINANCE
NO. 274 TO REQUIRE A BUILDING PERMIT FOR CERTAIN REMODELING
AND RESTORATION ACTIVITIES AND SECTION 2(B) OF ORDINANCE NO.
274 REGARDING ADMINISTRATIVE AND LEGAL PROCEDURES IN THE
EVENT OF A VIOLATION OF THE ORDINANCE: AND PROVIDING FURTHER
DETAILS IN RELATION TO THE FOREGOING.

• Resolution No. 109 STREET PLAN, i987

• Resolution No. 114 BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT

• Resolution No. 138 APPOINTING THE MAYOR AS ENFORCEMENT OFFICER

- Page3of4 -

C:\Rico\Ordinances\Ord 99-7 RLUC Adoption.doc

118



C C’

- Ordinance No. 1999-7 - Town of Rico — Adoption of Rico Land Use Code -

SECTIoN 2. RICO LAND USE CODE ADOPTED

The Rico Land Use Code, which includes the text dated July, 1999, the Official Zone
Map of the Town of Rico, the Street Plan for the Town of Rico, and a series of hazard
and constraint maps entitled Avalanche Hazard, Geologic Hazard, Wildfire Hazard.
Wildlife Hazard, Flood Hazard, Wetlands Hazard, and an informational non-regulatory’
Mining Hazard map, are all hereby adopted. Section 110., and any other provision of the
Rico Land Use Code relating to the vesting of property rights, is hereby deemed to
comply with the requirements of C.R.S. §24-68-103(1)(a) to adopt an ordinance which
specifically identifies the types of site specific development plan approvals that will cause
property rights to vest.

SECTION 3. PUBLICATION

Following adoption, the Town Clerk shall cause this Ordinance to be published in Ml in
the Dolores Star in accordance with Ordinance No. 323 of the Town of Rico, Colorado.

INTRODUCED, READ, APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF
TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF RICO on the 11°’ day of August, 1999.

READ AND APPROVED ON SECOND AND FINALLY READ AFTER
CONDUCTING A PUBLIC HEARING BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE
TOWN OF RJC ñ the 31st day of August, 1999.

Joseph V. Croke, Mayor

[Town Seal]

Approve44 to Form: Eric James Hell, Esq.

Town Attorney

- Page4of4 -

C:\Rico\OrdinancesOrd 99-7 RLUC Adoption.doc

119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



Joseph V. Croke requests thlS Court to issue a CIVil ProtectlOn Order, and in support ofthis request

State the fo11ow看ng:

1. I am seeking this C宣Vil Protection Order as a vICtim ofthe followlng: (Mark the applicable

Circumstances. )

口Domest量C Abuse (?13-14-101(2), C.R.S.)

囲Stalkmg (§18-3-602, C R S )

ロSexual Assault (? 18-3-402(1)うC.R.S.)

ロUnlawfu宣Sexual Contact (§18-3-404, C R S )

ロAbuse ofthe Elderly or an At-RISk AduIt (§26-3. l-101(l) and (7), C.R.S.)

団Physical Assault, Threat or other situation.

2. I reslde or am emp宣oyed m the County ofDoIores, State ofColorado, and Jesse Robertson

resides or lS emPIoyed m the County ofDoIores’State ofColorado. I know Mr. Robertson

because he has lived at the neighborlng PrOPe巾′ for the last 20 years・

3. The other Protected Persons are (list full name, date ofb血h, SeX, and race)‥

JDF 402 - ComplainVMotlOn fo「 CiViI P「OteCtion O「der

(1) CourtCopy (2) Pet-tiOne「Copy (3) RespondentCopy

DATE FILED: February 21, 2023 9:15 AM 

138

Mobile User



Fu音lNameofProtected �Date �Sex �R分ぐe �Fu11Na血eof �D盆teof �Sex �Raee 

Person �Of Birth ���ProtectedPerson �Birth 

ロI have completed and attached the fom titled `・A飾davit Regarding Chi宣dren’’JDF 404 as

children arc identified as Protected PeTSOnS above.

4. a) The most recent incldent that causes me to ask for a Civll Protection Order occurred on or

about Febr脚y 20, 2023, at about l l ‥00 a.m言n DoIores County When Jesse Robertson did the

following to me and/or the above-named Protected Persons‥ Be平一eC6解: W’at WaS /he threat

or acIs qfvJO/ence・? m]ere dld thlS OC。“r? Weγe ‘he mnOr Ch’l`ben or other Protected

Perso耶preSent? Was a weapon ’nVOIved?

Qrl Febru創ry 20. 2023. h/h Jesse Robertson ca11ed law enforce皿ent On me and/or mY

wife KathY McJoynt for no reason. I-aW enforcement b宣ocked the driveway of my

pro匹rty. I went and talked to law enforcement and law enforcement infomed me that

喜aw enforcement was present t糊auSC Of a ca獲l from Mr. Jesse Robe萱tSOn. Lew

enforcement infomed me that law enforcement w桃not如in巴to take any action and

哩匹型1d provide no details on why the ca= was made.

b) The most ser10uS mCident that causes me to ask for a Civll ProtectlOn Order occurred on or

about Februa「y 19, 2023言n the mommg in Dolores County when Jesse Robertson did the

fo=owing to me and/or the above-named Protected Persons: Be坤ec絢:脇at WaS Jhe /hrea/

or ac応Qfv,Olence?脇ere 。rd ‘h‘S OCCur? Were ’he mlmr Ch′ldren or o庇r Pro/ected

Perso研preSen{? W毎a we印on JnVOIved?

Jesse Robertson filed a temporaI|′ reStraming order a垂陣t ml′ wife・ Kathv McJoⅧt Oロ

Janunrv 3臆. 2023. Ever since he filed that res同ining order` Jesse Robertson has b咲n

遡坦l高
p!壁quCe has caused me serlOuS emOtional distress. l am worried that he is going to tr皿e

get me in tr。uble foT gOmg about mv dai喜v business. I have had to modげu mv behavior

JDF 402 - Complai=t/Mot'On fo「 CiVil P「OtectlO= O「de「

(1) CourtCopy (2) PetIt'OnerCopy (3) Respondent Copy

139



in order to live my everyday lite since Jesse Robertson filed the temporary restraining 

order against my wife on January 3 l, 2023. 

c) Any other past incidents of violence or threats? Be specific: What was the threat or acts of 
violence? Where did this occur? lf'ere the minor children or other Protected Persons 
present? Was a weapon involved?

1) The only way to access the McJoynt/Croke residence is down the public access road 

that the Town of Rico maintains. The Robertson residence is located to the east of the 

McJoynt/Croke residence. Here is an image of the houses with the

McJoynt/Croke residence indicated by "MIC" and the Robertson residence indicated

by "R."

2) In January 2022 I and Kathv McJoynt asked Jesse Robertson to move his car so the

town could plow the snow on the Soda Street and our access road. Unable to get

directly in touch with Jesse, I called Robert Robertson (Jesse's father). Either Robert

or Jesse then proceeded to call Dylan Robertson who appeared approaching me with a

shovel. Both Jesse and Dylan were velling profanities at me, and they refused to

move the vehicle. The Town of Rico was involved and forced Jesse to move his

JDF 402 - Complaint/Motion for Civil Protection Order R: December 19, 2022 Page 3 

(1) Court Copy (2) Petitioner Copy (3) Respondent Copy

- - --- - - - - -- � � 

140

Mobile User

Mobile User



car. Late「 that same dav DVlan Robertson aDDrOaChed me m the same [ocation and

told me ’一Joe. vou should luSt mOVe Out OfthlS tOWn. VOu are SO nCh vou donLt need to

be here anvmore’一　The entlre Robertson Familv has stalked me ever since

3) On Apr旧. 2022. Robert Robertson (the father) ca11ed and left a message on my

Phone血at said “Hcy Joe「 Why don’t you answer the phone, What. are you scared ofa

f**ま* feeble 72 year old man? Come on, yOu gOt mOre gumPt]On than that, Or maybe

y型don’t?’当was not sure why Robert Robertson threatened me in皿s wav. but [

was mtimidated bv it. l assume that Jesse Robertson asked Robert Robertson to make

皿主sca=

4) April rt or 2nd 2022 Jesse、 Dvlan and Susan Robertson filed a police report agamSt

哩ySelfand my「 wlfe. We were unaware ofthis 「epo巾against us and why lt Was done.

We:岬dour:security camera recorded them~
WaS home atthe time and no one cameto the d。Or We did nothear from the Sheriff

The ncxt day we reached out to the Sherjffto find out what was gomg On and

requested amnCident reDOrt- When asked why he dld not come to our door` he stated

that Dvlan Robe岬
5) On:A匹l言問
April:岬
wal k帖
6) Kath岬
R obe岬d
and sta岬
ma]icious 「eDOrting bv the Robertsons. In that皿ng. Jesse Robertson made a

representation that he ca=cd the pollCe On Kathy a dozen oftlmeS [ and my wife

were not aware ofthese calls and l am emotionally dlStreSSed by the Robertsons’

w量=mgneSS tO uSe the authorities to cany out thelr Sta]king and inti皿dation

d) Are you aware of any other Protection Orders currently m effect agaiust you or the other

pe重的n?

JDF 402 - CompiamuMotIOn for Civil P「otectiOn O「de「

(1) Court Copy (2) PetitiOne「Copy (3) RespondentCopy

141



ロYes囲No IfYesl list any re[evant information, SuCh as the lSSulng Court, State, and date

ofthe order:

5. I believe that I and/or the other Protected Persons named ln thlS aCtion are ln lmminent

danger from Jesse Robertson.

囲Ham to my/our life or health jfhe/she is not restrained as requested.

囲Physjcal or emotional ham to my/our emotional health or welfare if he/she is not excluded

from the fa・mi宣y home or the home of another.

6.ロI request pemission to omit my address and phone nunber from this document, because I

fear providing them wi11 endanger me and/or the other Protected Persons.

7. I request the followmg relieffrom the Court that Jesse Robertson

a) HBe ordered to refrain from contacting, harass亭ir可ring’Stalking, tOuChing, SeXually

assaulting, mO]esting, lntimldatjng, and threatenlng me Or Other protected persons.

b) HBe ordered to have no contact at a11 wlth me or the other Protected Persons.

ロBe allowed only the fol宣owlng [imited contact with me or the other Protected Persons‥

Be坪eC碑・

c) HBe excluded from my home at (address)・ If you checked section 6・ do not provide your

address.

216W. SodaSt.,Rico.CO 81332

d) E]Be ordered to stay at least 20 yards from the following places. (Address or description.)

Note lfyou checked section 6 above亘O nOt PrOVide your address.

囲Home: 216 W. Soda St., Rico, CO 81332

固Work`　Name:

[コSchool: Name:

JDF 402 - Comp-a-nt/MotlOn for Civ= P「OteCtlOn O「de「

(1) CourtCopy (2) PetitlOne「Copy (3) Respondent Copy

Address.

142



口Othe丁

e)口Be ordered to have no contact with the mjnor ch土ldren and that I be awarded temporary

Care and control and Interim DecISion-Makmg ResponsibilltleS for the children.

口Be awarded temporary Care and controI ofthe children and that the other person be glVen

Parenting Time with the chi賞dren and Interlm Decision-Making Responsibi鵜ities as follows :

Be平)eCb伽.

0　団Be ordered to refrain from molestmg言rUuring, taking, tranSfemng, enCumbering,

COnCeallng, Or disposmg Of or threatemng ham to an animal owned, POSSeSSed, leased,

kept or held by me or my minor chlld(ren), Or Other protected persons Arrangements for

POSSeSSion and care are as foIlows:

g)ロBe ordered, if皿s is a domestic abuse protection order, tO nOt POSSeSS and/or purchase

a fiream, ammunltion, Or Other weapon AND to re喜inquish any firearm or amm…ition

Within the time ordered by the Court.

h)囲Be ordered to refrain from interfering with me or other protected persons at our p賞ace

Of empIoyment or p鵜ace of education and from engagmg m COnduct that impalrS my Or

O血er protected person’s employment, educatlOnal relationshlPS, Or enVjronment.

i)囲0血e「: Th刷
上ncluding fireams, SOmC Ofwhich arc ur山censed. I request that Jesse Robertson lS

required to relinquish his weaDOnS

JDF 402 - Compiaint/MotlOn for CiVli P「OteCtiOn O「de「

(1) CourtCopy (2) Pe据one「Copy (3) RespondentCopy

143



Verification

I declare under pem獲ty of perjury under the law of Colorado tha=he foregoing is true and

eo「reet,

I understand thaしOnCe a Civil ProtectlOn Order is jssued it cannot be mod誼ed or dlSmissed by me

or the other person without pemlSSion ofthe Court.

Exe。uted 。n th。重畳_ day 。f

(date )

丁oseph V・ Croke　　　　　　　　　　　臆臆臆

(Prlnted name of HPetitioner口Respondent)

ん施/lhew B(型ma　_

A請Omey, if applicable

Stop‥音fyou checked box number 6, do not fill in your address and teiephone number.

Malling Address: 216 W. Soda St.. Rico. CO 81332臆

Al,。mateMa賞l,ngAddr。SS　7.) &膏/ R/LDとらS鯛

Phone Number: 970-708-7747

Be sure to notfty the Court with any address changes for the llfe ofthe rcstrammg Order

JDF 402 - Compほlnt/MoliOn fo「 C一Vil Protect-On O巾e「

(1) Court Copy (2) Petitio=e「Copy (3) Respondent Copy

144



Nolice: Colorado Revised Statutes §13-14-105 identifies that a temporary垂unction may be

issued by the Court and that upon personal service or upon walVer and acceptance of service by

血e Restrained Person言s to be in effect agalnSt the Restrained Person for a pehod detemined to

be approprlate by the Court Th宣S lnlunCtion restralnS the Restrained Person from:

1 , Ceasmg tO make payments for mortgage or rent, insurance, utilities or related services,

transportation, medical care, Or Childcare when the Restralned Person has a pnor existing

duty or legal ob宣主gation for making such payments

2. Transferring, enCumbering, COnCealing, Or in any way disposlng Of personal effects or real

PrOPerty, eXCePt in the usual course of business or for the necessities of life.

The Rest「ained Person shal[ be requlred to account to the CouIl for all extraordma「y eXPendltureS

made after the叩unction is ln effecし

Any lIU皿CtlOn jssued shall not exceed one year after the lSSuanCe Of the Pemanent Civil

Protection Order.

JDF 402 - CompiainVMotiOn fo「 CIVil P「otectlOn O「de「

(1) Court Copy　(2) PetitionerCopy　(3) RespondentCopy

145



146



Photos of Town of Rico Maintenance of Traveled Right of Way to Soda Street 

22 March 2023


11 March 2023


147





23 February 2023


21 January 2023


Photos of Town of Rico Maintenance of Traveled Right of Way to Soda Street 
148



Photos of Town of Rico Maintenance of Traveled Right of Way to Soda Street 

02 January 2023

149



EXHIBIT A 

TOWN OF RICO 
ORDINANCE NO. 2024-01 

 
The Town of Rico Water Operations Rules and Regulations, Article VIII, is amended to add 
Section 8.10 as follows: 
 
8.10 Water System Improvement Fees. In order to help offset the financial impacts of new 
development on the residents of the Town, all new development shall pay a water system 
improvement fee as provided for in this section.   

8.10.1 Water system improvement fees shall be due and payable to the Town upon the 
earlier of the Town’s approval of any land use application, or any building permit application, that 
requires a Permit to connect to the Water System. Payment of the water system improvement fee 
shall be a condition of approval for any such land use or building permit application.  

8.10.2 The amount of the water system improvement fee shall be set by resolution of the 
Board of Trustees.  

8.10.3 The water system improvement fee shall be based on meter size and calculated as 
set forth below. One (1) EQR is the equivalent of one single family dwelling unit.   

 

Meter Size (Inches) EQR 

0.75" 1.00 

1.00" 1.67 

1.50" 3.33 

2.00" 5.33 

3.00" 10.67 

4.00" 16.67 

6.00" 33.33 

8.00" 53.33 

10.00" 76.67 

 

8.10.4 The Town Manager or his designee has the authority to determine the applicable 
water system improvement fees based on the amounts adopted by Board resolution, the intent of 
the fees, and the development's specific configurations or circumstances. 

 

8.10.5 The Town Manager or his designee has the authority to adjust the timing of water 
system improvement fee collections based on when the meter sizes within the development are 
known. 

150



 

151



TOWN OF RICO 
ORDINANCE NO. 2024-01 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF RICO, COLORADO AMENDING 
THE RICO WATER OPERATIONS RULES AND REGULATIONS TO 
PROVIDE FOR PAYMENT OF WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT FEES.  

WHEREAS, the Town of Rico, Colorado (the “Town”) is a Colorado home rule 
municipality organized pursuant to Article XX of the Colorado Constitution and with the authority 
of the Rico Home Rule Charter (the “Charter”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to C.R.S. § 29-20-101 et seq., 31-15-101 et seq., and 31-23-101 et 
seq., the Town has broad authority to ensure the health, safety and welfare of the community and 
its residents; and 

WHEREAS, the Town has the authority to assess water system impact fees, which shall 
be referred to by the Town as "water system improvement fees," pursuant to C.R.S. § 29-20-104.5; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Charter, Article III § 3.1 provides that enactments of the Board imposing 
fees shall be made by ordinance; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees requested that GovRates, Inc. prepare a study of the 
industry standard rational nexus of classifications for the payment of water system improvement 
fees and reviewed the recommendations in the Water Impact Fee Study, dated February 9, 2024, 
and determined a policy change was necessary; and 

WHEREAS, the Board adopted Ordinance No. 2019-06 together with the Water 
Operations Rules and Regulations (the “Water Rules”) attached thereto as Exhibit A on November 
20, 2019; and 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to amend the Water Rules, Article VIII, by adding Section 
8.10 to set the water system improvement fees to better reflect actual costs to the Town in providing 
water services to new developments in the Town, and to pay for the capital improvements, 
maintenance, and indebtedness of the Town’s water system; and 

WHEREAS, the Board finds and declares that it is necessary to amend the Water Rules as 
set forth herein and it is proper in light of the needs and desires of the Town and in the promotion 
of the public health, safety, and welfare of the Town’s residents. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
THE TOWN OF RICO THAT: 

Section 1. The recitals above are hereby adopted as findings and incorporated herein. 

Section 2. The Water Rules, Article VIII shall be and are hereby amended as set forth 
in Exhibit A to this Ordinance, which is incorporated by this reference.  

152



Section 3. Any ordinances or resolutions or parts thereof, which are in conflict with 
this ordinance, are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict only. 

Section 4. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately on final adoption.  

THIS ORDINANCE WAS, FOLLOWING PUBLIC NOTICE, INTRODUCED, READ, AND 
APPROVED ON FIRST READING, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY ON 
FEBRUARY 28, 2024. 

TOWN OF RICO, COLORADO 
 

___________________________________ 
Nicole Pieterse, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Anna Wolf, Town Clerk 
 
 

THIS ORDINANCE WAS, FOLLOWING PUBLIC NOTICE, INTRODUCED, READ 
ON SECOND READING, PASSED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY TO BE 
EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY ON MARCH 20 2024. 

 
 

TOWN OF RICO, COLORADO 
 
 

__________________________________________ 
ATTEST: Nicole Pieterse, Mayor 

 
 

___________________________________ 
Anna Wolf, Town Clerk 
 

Effective Date:  March 20, 2024 

153



TOWN OF RICO 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-01 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF 
RICO, COLORADO, SETTING THE WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT 
FEE FOR THE PERIOD BEGINNING MARCH 20, 2024 AND ENDING 
DECEMBER 31, 2024, AND PROVIDING FOR THE ANNUAL 
ADJUSTMENT OF WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT FEES. 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Rico Water Operations Rules and Regulations, Article VIII 

Section 8.10 establishes the calculation of water system improvement fees and authorizes the 
Board of Trustees (the “Board”) to set the amount of water system improvement fee by resolution; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board authorized a study of the industry standard rational nexus of 

classifications for the payment of water system improvement fees and determined a policy change 
was necessary; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to set water system improvement fees to better reflect 
actual costs to the Town in providing these services to new developments in the Town; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board further desires to establish annual adjustments of water system 

improvement fees based on the prior years’ average inflation. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
THE TOWN OF RICO, COLORADO:  

 
1. The above recitals are hereby incorporated as findings by the Board of Trustees of 

the Town of Rico, Colorado. 
 
2. The water system improvement fee established in the Water Operations Rules and 

Regulations, Article VIII Section 8.10.3 shall be $6,110.00 for one (1) EQR during the period 
beginning March 20, 2024, and ending December 31, 2024. 

 
3. Unless otherwise adjusted by the resolution of the Rico Board of Trustees, the water 

system improvement fee set herein shall, beginning in 2025, be adjusted annually based on the 
prior years’ average inflation as established by the Engineering News Record McGraw-Hill 
Construction Weekly Building Cost Index for Denver, Colorado, to be effective January 1 of each 
year. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF RICO 
This 20 day of March, 2024. 
 
By:       Attest: 

        ______________________________ 
Nicole Y. Pieterse, Mayor    Chauncey McCarthy, Town Manager 

154



 
 
 

HOUSING RESTRICTION COVENANT FOR LOT 6, BEDROCK SUBDIVISION, TOWN OF RICO, 
COLORADO, A HOME RULE MUNICIPALITY 

THIS HOUSING RESTRICTION COVENANT ("COVENANT") FOR LOT 6, BEDROCK SUBDIVISION 
is made as of __________day of  ___________, 2024, by and between BRD LLC, a Colorado limited 
liability company ("Owner") and the TOWN OF RICO, a home rule municipality ("Town of Rico"). 

 
RECITALS 

A. Owner owns the real property located in the Town of Rico, Dolores County, State of Colorado that is more 
particularly described as Lot 6, Bedrock Subdivision, according to the plat recorded on ________ at 
reception number _______, with the Dolores County Clerk and Recorded (“Lot 6”). 

B. The Owner and the Town of Rico previously entered into a Housing Restriction Covenant recorded 
on ______ at reception number ________, with the Dolores County Clerk and Recorder (the “Prior 
Covenant”).   

C. The Owner and the Town of Rico desire to completely amend and restate the Prior Covenant with 
this Covenant as set forth below. 

 
COVENANT 

In consideration of the foregoing, Owner and the Town of Rico declares as follows: 

A. Covenant running with the Land. All covenants run with the land, or equitable servitudes as the case may 
be. The obligations, burdens and benefits created by this Covenant shall bind and inure to the benefit of 
the Owner, its successors and /or assigns and the Town of Rico. 

 

PROVISION OF DEED RESTRICTED HOUSING COVENANTS: 
 

A. Owner has agreed to provide a deed restriction for any housing constructed on Lot 6 in accordance 
with the terms and conditions of this Section. In furtherance of this requirement, Owner hereby 
restricts the use and occupancy of any residential structure located on Lot 6 to the terms, conditions, 
restrictions and requirements provided for in this Section. Any instrument of conveyance concerning 
Lot 6 or residential unit located thereon shall clearly indicate that the Lot or residential unit located 
thereon is deed restricted and contain a reference to these restrictions in a form approved by the 
Town. The Town is granted and conveyed the right to enforce compliance with these restrictions 
that are applicable to Lot 6. Lot 6 or residential unit located thereon shall only be occupied by persons 
who qualify with the terms and conditions of these restrictions. 
 

B. On the day of application, the prospective occupant(s) of a residence located on Lot 6 shall maintain 
his/her sole residence and abode in the Town of Rico, Dolores County, Colorado, or provide written 
intent in the form of a signed affidavit of his/her desire and intent to do so within 30 days of 
occupying the residence. Proof of this intent must be presented to the Town in advance of occupancy. 
Proof shall include written documentation verifying residency within the Town of Rico, Dolores 
County, or intent of residency within 30 days of application. The Town of Rico may require any 
additional evidence of occupancy and shall have the right to enforce this deed restriction in accordance 
with the Town of Rico's laws and ordinances relative to deed restricted housing, as may be in effect in 
the Town of Rico from time to time. 

 
C. The above referenced Lot 6 shall be, and remain, resident occupied. Short-term rental of residential units 

is prohibited. 

155



 
 
 
 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the Parties have executed this Covenant on the date first set forth above: 
 
 
 

Town of Rico, a Colorado Home Rule Municipality and 
Political Subdivision of the State of Colorado: 
 
 
By:__________________________________ 
______________, President of the Board of Trustees 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
By:__________________________________ 
________________, Town Attorney 
 
Owner: 
BRD, LLC: 
 
 
By:__________________________________ 
Jason Soules, Manager 
 
 

 

156



 
 
 

HOUSING RESTRICTION COVENANT FOR LOT 6, BEDROCK SUBDIVISION, TOWN OF RICO, 
COLORADO, A HOME RULE MUNICIPALITY 

THIS HOUSING RESTRICTION COVENANT ("COVENANT") FOR LOT 6, BEDROCK SUBDIVISION 
is made as of __________day of  ___________, 2024, by and between BRD LLC, a Colorado limited 
liability company ("Owner") and the TOWN OF RICO, a home rule municipality ("Town of Rico"). 

 
RECITALS 

A. Owner owns the real property located in the Town of Rico, Dolores County, State of Colorado that is more 
particularly described as Lot 6, Bedrock Subdivision, according to the plat recorded on ________ at 
reception number _______, with the Dolores County Clerk and Recorded (“Lot 6”). 

B. The Owner and the Town of Rico previously entered into a Housing Restriction Covenant recorded 
on ______ at reception number ________, with the Dolores County Clerk and Recorder (the “Prior 
Covenant”).   

C. The Owner and the Town of Rico desire to completely amend and restate the Prior Covenant with 
this Covenant as set forth below. 

 
COVENANT 

In consideration of the foregoing, Owner and the Town of Rico declares as follows: 

A. The Covenant is a Covenant running with the Land. All covenants run with the land, or equitable 
servitudes as the case may be. The obligations, burdens and benefits created by this Covenant shall bind 
and inure to the benefit of the Owner, its successors and /or assigns and the Town of Rico. 

 

PROVISION OF DEED RESTRICTED HOUSING COVENANTS: 
 

A. Owner has agreed to provide a deed restriction for any housing constructed on Lot 6 in accordance 
with the terms and conditions of this Section. In furtherance of this requirement, Owner hereby 
restricts the ownership, use and occupancy of any residential structure located on Lot 6 to the terms, 
conditions, restrictions, and requirements provided for in this Section. Any instrument of conveyance 
concerning Lot 6 or residential unit located thereon ( a  “Uni t” )  shall clearly indicate that the Lot or 
Unit residential unit located thereon is deed restricted and contain a reference to these restrictions in 
a form approved by the Town. The Town is granted and conveyed the right to enforce compliance 
with these restrictions that are applicable to Lot 6 and any Unit thereon. Lot 6 or a Unit residential unit 
located thereon shall only be occupied by persons who qualify with the terms and conditions of these 
restrictions. 
 

B. On the day of applicationoccupancy, the prospective occupant(s) of a residence Unit located on Lot 
6 shall maintain his/her sole residence and abode in the Town of Rico, Dolores County, Colorado, or 
provide written intent in the form of a signed affidavit of his/her desire and intent to do so within 30 
60 days of occupying the residenceUnit. Proof of this intent must be presented to the Town in advance 
of occupancy. Proof shall include written documentation verifying residency within the Town of 
Rico, Dolores County, or intent of residency within 30 60 days of applicationoccupancy. The Town 
of Rico may require any additional evidence of occupancy and shall have the right to enforce this deed 
restriction in accordance with the Town of Rico's laws and ordinances relative to deed restricted 
housing, as may be in effect in the Town of Rico from time to time. 

 
C. The above referenced Lot 6 shall be, and remain, resident occupied. Short-term rental of residential units 

Formatted: Font: Bold

157



Units is prohibited. 
 

D. In order to qualify as “Qualified Owner” of a Unit at the time of purchase of a Unit, a prospective owner 
must submit an application to the HOA and the Town of Rico demonstrating that the prospective owner 
meets one of the following requirements: (a) use the Unit as their sole residence and meet the 
requirements of Section B of this Section or (b) be a business, corporate entity, special district, school 
district or municipality, that conducts its operations primarily within the boundaries of Dolores County, 
Colorado, or the Telluride R1 School District and uses the Unit to house its employees who meet the 
requirements of Section B of this Section. 

 
E. In addition to the foregoing, any Qualified Owner who qualifies pursuant to Section D(a) above 

(excluding dependents) must meet one of the following residency or work related eligibility requirements, 
which for work-related eligibility, all applicants shall demonstrate via statements from their employers or 
if self-employed an sworn affidavit stating that the applicant meets such standards which shall be verified 
by the HOA and the Town of Rico: 

1. Proof of residency within the boundaries of Dolores County, Colorado, or the Telluride R1 
School District for the previous 12 months; or 

2. Minimum employment requirements: 700 hours worked in the boundaries of Dolores County, 
Colorado, or the Telluride R1 School District for the previous 12 months; or 

3. Proof of current and ongoing employment to the same 700 hours/12 months (20 hours/week 
average) standard within the boundaries of Dolores County, Colorado, or the Telluride R1 
School District; or  

4. Proof of an accepted job offer for employment beginning within 60 days of the occupancy date, 
to the same 700 hours/12months (20 hours/week average) standard within the boundaries of 
Dolores County, Colorado, or the Telluride R1 School District. 
 

F. At any time, a Qualified Owner of a Unit desires to sell a Unit, the owner must provide written 
notice of intent to sell (“Notice of Sale”) to the Town of Rico and the HOA at least 30 days 
prior to offering the Unit for sale. The HOA shall within five (5) business days of the Notice of 
Sale, provide to the Rico Town Manager and the Qualified Owner, the maximum sale price 
allowed for the Unit by following the calculations outlined in this Covenant which shall be 
verified by the Town of Rico.  In no case shall any Unit be sold for more than the maximum 
sale price. The contracted sale price shall be the only exchange of value between parties to any 
sale of a Unit. Both buyer and seller must execute a sworn statement affirming that the 
contracted sale price is the only exchange of value in the sale. Any exchange of value outside 
the contract sale price shall invalidate the sale.  

1. The maximum resale price will be calculated by allowing an increase in price of four 
percent (4%) per year from the date of purchase to the date of the owner’s notice of intent 
to sell. This increase will be compounded annually and prorated to the day when the 
notice of intent to sell is received by the HOA and Town Manager; and  
 

2. The monetary value of documented capital improvements to the unit may be added onto 
the resale price as long as they do not exceed ten percent (10%) of the original purchase 
price (the “Capital Improvements Increase”).  The Capital Improvements Increase 
excludes general maintenance and repair costs, appliance replacements, and normal wear 
and tear. Capital Improvements Increase may include the installation of solar upgrades 
for a Unit.  In order to qualify for the Capital Improvements Increase, the Owner shall 
submit to the HOA and the Town of Rico all invoices for such capital improvements and 
the Town of Rico has reasonable discretion on which capital improvements will be 
allocated to the Capital Improvements Increase.  

 
G. This Covenant shall be binding on all owners, successors, and assigns including any owner who acquires 

title to a Unit acquired via foreclosure or a deed in lieu of foreclosure, provided that any lender that 
acquires a Unit via foreclosure or deed in lieu of foreclosure shall be permitted a reasonable amount of 

Formatted: Font: 10 pt

Formatted: Normal, Right:  0", Line spacing:  single, 
No bullets or numbering, Adjust space between Latin
and Asian text, Adjust space between Asian text and
numbers

Formatted: Font: 10 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or

Formatted: List Paragraph, Right:  0", Line spacing: 
single, Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: A, B,
C, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.33"
+ Indent at:  0.56", Border: Top: (No border), Bottom:
(No border), Left: (No border), Right: (No border),
Between : (No border), Tab stops: Not at  0.57" +  0.57"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.16",  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Red

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment:
Left + Aligned at:  0.33" + Indent at:  0.56"

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Red

Formatted: List Paragraph, Right:  0.08", Space Before: 
0 pt, Line spacing:  Multiple 1.03 li, Numbered + Level:
1 + Numbering Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.33" + Indent at:  0.56"

158



time to resell a Unit to a Qualified Owner after acquiring title to a Unit through foreclosure or deed in 
lieu of foreclosure.  During such period a lender may also rent the unit to Qualified Occupant. This 
Covenant may not be transferred off a Unit or Lot 6. This Covenant, and any amendments thereto must 
be recorded in the property records of Dolores County, and recorded documents must be returned to the 
Town of Rico for their files. 

 
 
 

 
 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the Parties have executed this Covenant on the date first set forth above: 
 
 
 

Town of Rico, a Colorado Home Rule Municipality and 
Political Subdivision of the State of Colorado: 
 
 
By:__________________________________ 
______________, President of the Board of Trustees 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
By:__________________________________ 
________________, Town Attorney 
 
Owner: 
BRD, LLC: 
 
 
By:__________________________________ 
Jason Soules, Manager 
 
 

 

Formatted: Font: Font color: Auto

159



HOUSING RESTRICTION COVENANT FOR LOT 6, BEDROCK SUBDIVISION, TOWN OF RICO, 
COLORADO, A HOME RULE MUNICIPALITY 

THIS HOUSING RESTRICTION COVENANT ("COVENANT") FOR LOT 6, BEDROCK SUBDIVISION 
is made as of __________day of  ___________, 2024, by and between BRD LLC, a Colorado limited
liability company ("Owner") and the TOWN OF RICO, a home rule municipality ("Town of Rico"). 

RECITALS 
A. Owner owns the real property located in the Town of Rico, Dolores County, State of Colorado that is more

particularly described as Lot 6, Bedrock Subdivision, according to the plat recorded on ________ at
reception number _______, with the Dolores County Clerk and Recorded (“Lot 6”).

B. The Owner and the Town of Rico previously entered into a Housing Restriction Covenant recorded
on ______ at reception number ________, with the Dolores County Clerk and Recorder (the “Prior
Covenant”).

C. The Owner and the Town of Rico desire to completely amend and restate the Prior Covenant with
this Covenant as set forth below.

COVENANT 

In consideration of the foregoing, Owner and the Town of Rico declares as follows: 

A. The Covenant is a Covenant running with the Land. All covenants run with the land, or equitable
servitudes as the case may be. The obligations, burdens and benefits created by this Covenant shall bind
and inure to the benefit of the Owner, its successors and /or assigns and the Town of Rico.

PROVISION OF DEED RESTRICTED HOUSING COVENANTS: 

A. Owner has agreed to provide a deed restriction for any housing constructed on Lot 6 in accordance
with the terms and conditions of this Section. In furtherance of this requirement, Owner hereby
restricts the ownership, use and occupancy of any residential structure located on Lot 6 to the terms,
conditions, restrictions, and requirements provided for in this Section. Any instrument of conveyance
concerning Lot 6 or residential unit located thereon ( a  “Uni t ” )  shall clearly indicate that the Lot or
Unit located thereon is deed restricted and contain a reference to these restrictions in a form
approved by the Town. The Town is granted and conveyed the right to enforce compliance with
these restrictions that are applicable to Lot 6 and any Unit thereon. Lot 6 or a Unit thereon shall only
be occupied by persons who qualify with the terms and conditions of these restrictions.

B. On the day of occupancy, the prospective occupant(s) of a Unit located on Lot 6 shall maintain
his/her sole residence and abode in the Town of Rico, Dolores County, Colorado, or provide written
intent in the form of a signed affidavit of his/her desire and intent to do so within 60 days of
occupying the Unit. Proof of this intent must be presented to the Town in advance of occupancy.
Proof shall include written documentation verifying residency within the Town of Rico, Dolores
County, or intent of residency within 60 days of occupancy. The Town of Rico may require any
additional evidence of occupancy and shall have the right to enforce this deed restriction in accordance
with the Town of Rico's laws and ordinances relative to deed restricted housing, as may be in effect in
the Town of Rico from time to time.

C. The above referenced Lot 6 shall be, and remain, resident occupied. Short-term rental of residential
Units is prohibited.

160



D. In order to qualify as “Qualified Owner” of a Unit at the time of purchase of a Unit, a prospective owner
must submit an application to the HOA and the Town of Rico demonstrating that the prospective owner
meets one of the following requirements: (a) use the Unit as their sole residence and meet the
requirements of Section B of this Section or (b) be a business, corporate entity, special district, school
district or municipality, that conducts its operations primarily within the boundaries of Dolores County,
Colorado, or the Telluride R1 School District and uses the Unit to house its employees who meet the
requirements of Section B of this Section.

E. In addition to the foregoing, any Qualified Owner who qualifies pursuant to Section D(a) above
(excluding dependents) must meet one of the following residency or work related eligibility requirements,
which for work-related eligibility, all applicants shall demonstrate via statements from their employers or
if self-employed an sworn affidavit stating that the applicant meets such standards which shall be verified
by the HOA and the Town of Rico:

1. Proof of residency within the boundaries of Dolores County, Colorado, or the Telluride R1
School District for the previous 12 months; or

2. Minimum employment requirements: 700 hours worked in the boundaries of Dolores County,
Colorado, or the Telluride R1 School District for the previous 12 months; or

3. Proof of current and ongoing employment to the same 700 hours/12 months (20 hours/week
average) standard within the boundaries of Dolores County, Colorado, or the Telluride R1
School District; or

4. Proof of an accepted job offer for employment beginning within 60 days of the occupancy date,
to the same 700 hours/12months (20 hours/week average) standard within the boundaries of
Dolores County, Colorado, or the Telluride R1 School District.

F. At any time, a Qualified Owner of a Unit desires to sell a Unit, the owner must provide written
notice of intent to sell (“Notice of Sale”) to the Town of Rico and the HOA at least 30 days
prior to offering the Unit for sale. The HOA shall within five (5) business days of the Notice of
Sale, provide to the Rico Town Manager and the Qualified Owner, the maximum sale price
allowed for the Unit by following the calculations outlined in this Covenant which shall be
verified by the Town of Rico.  In no case shall any Unit be sold for more than the maximum
sale price. The contracted sale price shall be the only exchange of value between parties to any
sale of a Unit. Both buyer and seller must execute a sworn statement affirming that the
contracted sale price is the only exchange of value in the sale. Any exchange of value outside
the contract sale price shall invalidate the sale.

1. The maximum resale price will be calculated by allowing an increase in price of four
percent (4%) per year from the date of purchase to the date of the owner’s notice of intent 
to sell. This increase will be compounded annually and prorated to the day when the
notice of intent to sell is received by the HOA and Town Manager; and

2. The monetary value of documented capital improvements to the unit may be added onto
the resale price as long as they do not exceed ten percent (10%) of the original purchase
price (the “Capital Improvements Increase”).  The Capital Improvements Increase
excludes general maintenance and repair costs, appliance replacements, and normal wear 
and tear. Capital Improvements Increase may include the installation of solar upgrades
for a Unit.  In order to qualify for the Capital Improvements Increase, the Owner shall
submit to the HOA and the Town of Rico all invoices for such capital improvements and
the Town of Rico has reasonable discretion on which capital improvements will be
allocated to the Capital Improvements Increase.

G. This Covenant shall be binding on all owners, successors, and assigns including any owner who acquires
title to a Unit acquired via foreclosure or a deed in lieu of foreclosure, provided that any lender that
acquires a Unit via foreclosure or deed in lieu of foreclosure shall be permitted a reasonable amount of
time to resell a Unit to a Qualified Owner after acquiring title to a Unit through foreclosure or deed in

161



lieu of foreclosure.  During such period a lender may also rent the unit to Qualified Occupant. This 
Covenant may not be transferred off a Unit or Lot 6. This Covenant, and any amendments thereto must 
be recorded in the property records of Dolores County, and recorded documents must be returned to the 
Town of Rico for their files. 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the Parties have executed this Covenant on the date first set forth above: 

Town of Rico, a Colorado Home Rule Municipality and 
Political Subdivision of the State of Colorado: 

By:__________________________________ 
______________, President of the Board of Trustees 

Approved as to Form: 

By:__________________________________ 
________________, Town Attorney 

Owner: 
BRD, LLC: 

By:__________________________________ 
Jason Soules, Manager 

162



 

163



Dear Town Manager McCarthy, Mayor Pieterse and the entire Town of Rico Council,

Thank you for the time last night and the abundance of information. After reflecting on some
items discussed, I wanted to share some thoughts.

It seems the VCUP and decisions made thus far have all been data driven, which is how it
should be. Last night, when asked about a paved roads study, each speaker looked to the other
and the only answer we were given was “we assume it’s more expensive.” This gives me
concern that all options were indeed not explored as I assume VCUP decisions would not be
and have not been made under assumptions. I know Chauncey mentioned the cost of paved
road maintenance, but it was also mentioned that there was no maintenance plan for the roads
post VCUP, but essentially it would be figured out.

I feel this community has evolved in the last three years and there has not been a fresh
conversation about paved roads. It seems the VCUP cares a lot about children, which is
appropriate. I think it’s important to keep in mind there are more children in the past three years
than before, which could change people’s feelings on paved roads as well.

I understand the nostalgia for some, but for me paved roads are personal and ultimately impact
my quality of life in the summer. I live on the corner of Mantz and Silver, a high traffic area where
people do not drive slow. I’m not able to open my windows in the summer because of the
(increased) amount of dust that would get into my house. I also have to be selective when I sit
outside and enjoy this beautiful town in an effort to not breathe in too much dust. In addition, I
have a dog who walks on the roads and likes to lay in the roads. I understand that is my
parenting issue, but nonetheless is the reality. When she lays in the roads, she comes into the
house and exposes us and anyone who pets her along the way.

As Dave was mentioning current lead levels vs previous ones being lower, he said “we can only
hope they continue to get lower.” But is that what we want to do is hope they get lower? Or cap
the road and solve the problem? Last year one of the environmental lawyers who was present
last night confirmed to me the only way to really mitigate the risk of lead is to pave the roads,
which to me makes the VCUP seem like a band aid.

I understand you are well underway in this process, but you would be amiss to not consider
paved roads as an option and gauge the current interest.

Should the VCUP move forward, I share a similar sentiment to town members last night in which
the repository is not safe for this town and the lead filled soil should be placed elsewhere. Even
if “every mountain town has one”, it doesn’t mean we need more.

Thanks for the work you do and your time!

Best,
Joy Littleton and Jordan Bushouse

164



3/12/24, 8:39 AM Town of Rico, CO Mail - Objection to the VCUP Lead Plan

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=5ef4f4ec28&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1793271721931565827&simpl=msg-f:1793271721931565827 1/1

Chauncey McCarthy <townmanager@ricocolorado.gov>

Objection to the VCUP Lead Plan
Sherwood Smith <eldf3n06@gmail.com> Mon, Mar 11, 2024 at 4:46 PM
To: "townmanager@ricocolorado.gov" <townmanager@ricocolorado.gov>

Town of Rico,
I recently came to my attention that VCUP has a plan to move all the lead tailings used to pave our streets down to the
tailings pond just below our home. This is horrifying news for my family and all of Rico.

Personally, the Smith's already had a lead poisoning scare with our 19 month old daughter this fall. Kicking this dust into
the air to then truck it in front of our property, only to dump it on the upwind side would certainly mean we would need to
move. This brings up the question of whether or not we would even be able to sell our home while living in a hell hole. I
can't imagine any buyers would stay interested after visiting and witnessing how the town treats its citizens.

I feel there must be better alternatives. Based on the map I have seen of the lead levels they all appear to be to the north
of town. Rather than poisoning the remaining areas would it not make more sense to cap the pollution where it lies? Has
there been a cost assessment done on how much it would be to pave the streets vs digging them up and replating with
more dirt? 
I also know there is another tailings pond out in Allyn Gulch. This would move the toxic material to a space where the wind
will not blow it through town, if VCUP insists on a more painful option for everyone.  

The bottom line here is the current plan is unacceptable for those who call Rico home. It seems that now more than ever
we need our established leaders to stand up for us and insist on a plan that doesn't knock the health of all that live here
back to that of the mining days. 

Thank you for your time, and help.

Sincerely,
The Smiths

--
Sherwood Smith
www.eldf3n.com
970.729.2091

165

http://www.eldf3n.com/


Dear Town Council, 

First of all, I would like to thank you all for your hard work on the VCUP and 
organizing the presentation last week.   

Secondly, I would like to share my thoughts and concerns for the council to 
consider moving forward in this process.  My first concern, is the use of the Columbia 
Tailings site as a repository for the remaining contaminated dirt that will be remediated 
around town.  To me a once failed in town site at the south entrance to Rico that was 
used for mine tailings isn’t the answer to be considered for a repository.  No matter what 
anyone says about it becoming safer and up to code by adding new contaminated 
waste on top of the failed pile of tailings it still remains a future hazard and an eye sore.  
This will be the first focal point of every person passing northbound through Rico will 
see.  The proposed site will be much larger and much more visible to everyone driving, 
riding or walking by.  The proposed Columbia site is right next to our beloved river.  This 
is part of the riverfront area in which RTA and town has spent numerous amounts of 
time and money to develop a river trail for visitors and locals to enjoy.  Why would we 
ever want to settle for losing part of or taking away from one of Rico’s greatest assets?  
The inception of the river trail was to show off our town not a repository!  We are 
completely opposed to a construction site operating at the beginning of town for the next 
three plus years.  Furthermore, and most importantly, what does AR know about the 
methods once used under that tailing site for the failed remediation?  Was it developed 
as a repository?  Why did it fail? If it was, wouldn’t they have to excavate the current 
waste tailings and start from the bottom up?  It looks to me like it failed at ground level?  
I would love to be properly educated on why the site failed in the first place.  I think it 
makes more sense to cap this hazardous site as is and bring it up to code then find 
another location, if needed, out of Rico and away from the river for a southern 
repository. We would like to hear what the other options for a repository location would 
be and which locations AR has researched already. 

Another concern would be how AR and town remediate the roads in Rico.  I think 
it is a great idea that they engineer a watershed plan for the entire town.  This is a 
necessity to keep run off from destroying the roads in the future.  I also think it is 
important for town to be informed of construction and future maintenance costs of paved 
roads compared to a road base top remedy.  I don’t recall hearing any cost comparisons 
of the two options.  I would say it is safe to assume that paving would be a more costly 
endeavor but a better solution for longevity.  I am also guessing there would be a 
substantially less amount of waste AR would have to find a home for.  Could there 
possibly be enough saved that there would be no need to even find another repository?  
I am also wondering if the town is considering waiting to remediate the roads under the 
assumption that Rico will at some point be installing a town sewer system?  From the 
sounds of it, once the remediation is started it would be much more of a process when 
you are constructing anything in the remediated areas.     

166



Thank you, 
Mike Guskea & Sophia Kyriakakis 
Silverglance Way 

167



March 12, 2024

Dear Town Council: 

We appreciate the time Council has spent on VCUP. 

This email is to request that town council reconsider paving the roads instead of excavating, trucking, and 
dumping 1000s of cubic yards of toxic lead road material to a repository located behind the town gas 
station. The excavation process will create excessive dust, noise, and construction over at least three 
summers without resolving Rico’s dust issues. Further, it appears paving roads may save town money 
contrary to the stated guesstimation at the 3/8 meeting.  

In  the VCUP meeting of 3/8 we learned that AR had initially proposed paving the roads and that paving 
would solve the lead problem without the need for removal of the lead contaminated soil to a 
repository. We also learned that town rejected that proposal citing burdensome maintenance costs even 
though town never conducted a study and did no research to determine whether paving the roads would 
be a cost benefit, a health benefit, and mitigate many of the noise, dust, and construction concerns 
presented by trucking toxic dirt through town as well as the dust concerns presented this past summer. 
Further, although we understand that several town council members and citizens harbor nostalgia for dirt 
roads, we believe that the health and safety of this community, surrounding communities, and the 
environment should come before a love for dusty, dirt roads. 

The most basic internet research demonstrates that maintenance of paved roads may be less than 
maintenance of gravel roads when one removes the initial cost of paving the road (which will be borne by 
AR in this instance). https://letmegooglethat.com/?q=paved+road+maintenance+cost+versus+gravel. As 
stated in this article, https://theupstater.com/news/surface-economy-pavement-vs-gravel-
roads/#:~:text=A%20study%20by%20the%20University,wear%2C%20and%20dust%20affects%20 dirt 
roads require significantly more maintenance than paved roads. Grading is required at least once and 
sometimes three and four times every year, which is no small feat considering the labor, vehicles, vehicle 
maintenance, fuel, gravel, etc. And vehicles maintaining and snow-plowing gravel roads themselves need 
more maintenance than their counterparts working on paved roads.  

A gross assumption was stated at the 3/8 meeting that maintenance costs for paved roads would far 
exceed maintenance for dirt roads. However, the town conducted no study. In this article attached and 
here at chrome-
extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https://ltap.colorado.edu/newsletter/
Newsletter_Summer06 .pdf, it was determined that while bituminous roads have high initial costs, gravel 
roads cost more for ongoing, routine annual maintenance in later years. This article cites a graph of 
cumulative maintenance costs. Also, below is another chart from this article at chrome-
extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/ https://t2.unh.edu/sites/default/files/media/2022-11/to-
pave-or-not-to-pave.pdf illustrating the same. 

168



Further, as stated in the above linked TheUpStater.com article, studies show that dirt roads lose an inch 
of dirt every year; and, that dirt is not only to be found on cars, vegetation, and buildings, but in your 
home. And unpaved roads are generally so compacted that very little water soaks in. Instead, rainwater 
runs off, carrying sediment into watercourses. Whereas paved roads generally have a lifespan of 25-25 
years depending on maintenance. 

Finally, paving the roads of Rico instead of excavating, replacing the dirt, moving the toxic dirt to a 
repository, and maintaining the repository, clearly significantly reduces toxic exposure to residents, 
downstream communities, and wildlife and will likely take less time than the anticipated 100 days a year 
for 3 years to repair the dirt roads. The only excavation, soil replacement, and repository would be for 
private yards. 

Even if town council remains unpersuaded that paved roads require less maintenance than dirt roads, we 
believe it is worth negotiating with AR for maintenance for a period of time to provide town an opportunity 
to establish a sufficient maintenance budget. Afterall, AR will be receiving a release of liability for this 
VCUP, we presume. 

Finally, one of the objectives stated in town's charter is "to safeguard the well-being of all inhabitants of 
the Town and set forth the framework for the Town’s future growth and development as a quality 
community." Thus, the potential health and safety benefits and reduced maintenance costs of paved
roads deserve the town’s thorough consideration. Please put health and safety above dirt road 
sentimentality and reconsider paving. 

Respectfully, 

Kristina & Brad Fox 

169



Colorado LTAP
May 2006                              Serving local transportation agencies throughout Colorado Summer  Issue

COVER STCOVER STORORYY
When to Pave aWhen to Pave a

Gravel RoadGravel Road

Elements of an
Operations Manual 3

Building Safer Work
Zones 5

Goodbye-Good Luck 6

Pavement Management
Systems 6

Mailing List Update 7

Geographic Information
Systems 11

Work Zone Safety for
New Drivers 11

You Show Us 2006 12

Ideas That Work 14

Upcoming Events 15

Free Publications 16

When to Pave a Gravel Road?When to Pave a Gravel Road?
Economics of Upgrading an Aggregate Road

aving a gravel road sure isn’t cheap,
and maintaining one also eats into

your budget, especially as traffic volumes
increase.  A new report - Economics of
Upgrading an Aggregate Road - helps
county and municipal governments make
policy decisions for maintaining and
upgrading gravel roads.  Published by the
Minnesota Department of
Transportation (Mn/DOT) and
the Minnesota Local Road
Research Board (LRRB), the
report will also help the
public understand why
counties and townships
choose their policies and use
certain construction and
maintenance techniques.   

The report, written by
primary researchers Charles T.
Jahren of Iowa State University and Greg
Johnson of Mn/DOT, presents a method
for comparing the cost of maintaining a
gravel road with the cost of upgrading
and maintaining a hot-mix asphalt, HMA,
road.  
In their work, Jahren and Johnson
analyzed an example scenario that
included costs of a five-year regraveling

cycle with yearly grading, plus typical
costs for HMA surfacing, yearly HMA
maintenance, and a seven-year seal-coat
cycle.  The economic evaluation used the
present-worth method over a 30-year
analysis period.  

Cumulative Cost Trends
Using annual state aid

reports, cost estimates, and
interviews, Jahren and
Johnson determined a typical
county spending history for
low volume roads.  They
found that while bituminous
roads have high initial costs,
gravel roads cost more for
ongoing, routine annual
maintenance in later years.
The graph of cumulative

maintenance costs from one county
(shown in Figure 1) verifies that annual
maintenance costs per mile for a gravel
road increase with traffic volume.  Each
county can plot a similar graph based on
its own data.  

The researchers then identified the
relationship between travel level and
maintenance cost. ...continued on page 5

LOOK   LOOK   
INSIDEINSIDE

Longtime LTAP
Instructor 

John Bemelen
Retires

P

In This Issue

The seagul lamppost.
Kobe port, Japan.

If more than 100 vehicles
use this road each day, it’s
time to plan an upgrade.  

170



PPaagge e 22 ColorColorado Lado LTTAP/ Summer 2006  AP/ Summer 2006  

Program Manager’s Corner

Once a new technology rolls over you, if you're not

part of the steamroller, you're part of the road.

~ Stewart Brand

Space is big. Really big. You just won't believe how

vastly hugely mind-bogglingly big it is. I mean, you

may think it's a long way down the road to the

chemist, but that's just peanuts to space.
~Douglas Adams, author of "Hitchhiker's Guide to the Galaxy"

When you come to a road block, take a detour.
~ Mary Kay Ash

No amount of travel on the wrong road will bring you

to the right destination. ~ Ben Gaye, III

We know what happens to people who stay in the

middle of the road. They get run over.

~ Ambrose Gwinett Bierce, American writer

There are no speed limits on the road to success.
~ David W. Johnson

QQ uu oo tt ee ssQQ uu oo tt ee ss

oo ffoo ff

tt hh eett hh ee

DD aa yyDD aa yy

STSTAFFAFF

YYunping Xiunping Xi
University Administrator

RRenée Kenée Kolleroller
Program Manager

LindsaLindsay Nay Nathanielthaniel
Training Coordinator

Suwito & Suwito & 
MarMarty Butcty Butcherher

Library Assistants

JJererememy Goldsmithy Goldsmith
Webmaster

The Colorado Local
Technical Assistance
Program is sponsored by
the Federal Highway
Administration, the
Colorado Department of
Transportation, and the
University of Colorado
at Boulder.

The Colorado LTAP
Newsletter is published
quarterly. Articles,
pictures and comments
are welcome.

For more information,
contact:

Colorado LTAP
University of Colorado
at Boulder
3100 Marine St., A-213
UCB 561
Boulder, CO 80309-0561

Office: (303) 735-3530
Toll Free: (888) 848-LTAP

Fax: (303) 735-2968

Email:
cltap@colorado.edu

Website:
http://ltap.colorado.edu

Visit Colorado LTAP online today

for online training, class registration, 

free lending library, and more.

http: / / l tap.colorado.edu

Colorado LTAP
Already Summer?! But we haven’t had enough
snow yet!  Seriously, everyone who is tired of
plowing, raise your hand.  Many agencies are
dealing with record snow fall and are anxious
to get on to new tasks.  Well, we’re here
to help.  No snow mentioned in this
issue, just a few items to help you
segway into safe summer
construction.  
~LTAP COMING TO A CITY NEAR YOU~
In 2005, Colorado LTAP initiated the Agency
Outreach Program.  We started with the
Eastern Plains and I spent a full week in
August visiting 32 local agencies, city
councils, and commissioners.  Due to its

success last year, we will continue with
the program visiting with one quadrant
of the state each year.   I will spend
another full week in August this year
visiting agencies along the Southern
border of Colorado and we’re taking
requests.  (We always bring fun stuff.)
If you’d like us to visit your agency,
meet with the Commissioners, or
present at a council meeting, raise your
hand!  Send us your requests by phone,
fax, or email and we’ll try to squeeze
as much into the schedule as possible.
See you then!

171



ColorColorado Lado LTTAP/ Summer 2006AP/ Summer 2006 PPaagge e 33

ith the many forces acting on
public works agencies (i.e.

regulations, revenue shortages, increased
service requests, aging infrastructure,
growth, personnel changes, and workplace
diversity), a consistent method of
providing services would be helpful to the
agency.  A standard response is essential to
providing the most cost-effective services
in a timely manner. An operations manual
can function as a training document, a
public awareness document, a description
of the level of services provided, and a
document that can  be utilized during
emergency or special situations.  While an
operations manual is essential to providing
good services, the manual should not be so
rigid that flexibility, innovation, and
efficiency are restricted.  
What are the essential elements of an
operations manual?

While it is not possible to develop a
“standard” that fits all agencies, there are,
in my opinion, some key elements that
should be in any operations manual.  The
adoption of a manual from one agency
may not “fit” your agency; however, it
may serve as a guide.

The Greeley Public Works Department
consists of 8 divisions.  Each of the 8
divisions (Facility Management, Transit,
Administration, Engineering, Street
Maintenance, Traffic Operations,
Stormwater Management, and Equipment
Maintenance) has developed an operations
manual that is specific to each division.

Elements that are included in the City of
Greeley’s Public Works eight operational
manuals are as follows:
A. Overview

Introduction
Purpose of Manual
Description of Services Provided 
by the Division
Mission Statements
Workload Indicators
Organization Chart
Goals/Objectives
Performance Indicators/
Year End Report

B. Policies
Job Descriptions/Responsibilities
Location of Work Site
Working Hours
Attendance
Time Tracking
Training/Career Development
Certificates/Licenses
Special Policies
Customer Service & Guidelines

C. Operations Procedures
Statement of the Activity
Personnel/Equipment Listings 
(Inventory)
Preparing for the Season
Specific Procedures for Services 
Provided
Safety Procedures
Emergency Procedures

Overview
The introduction of the manual should

include its purpose.  For example, “The
purpose of this manual is to provide an
overview of the Public Works {insert
specific} Division and provide a policy
and procedure guide for its operations.  It
is intended that this manual be provided to
new employees, as a refresher to existing
employees, and other interested persons.”  

A short section that describes the
mission, vision, values, goals, and
objectives of the Division should also be
included.

A description of the services that the
Division provides (all of its program
elements, i.e., snow/ice control, regulation
control, street sweeping, drainage main-
tenance, building maintenance, signals,
markings) should be included. The manual
should also include a description of the
workload indicators (miles of roadway,
number of signals, number of reviews,
etc).  This is the amount of work for which
this Division is responsible.

An organization and a function chart will
provide an instructional graphic for both
employees and the public.

A section on performance indicators
(how well did you do?) should also be an
important part of the manual.  

ElementElements of an Operations Manuals of an Operations Manual
How to help your staff understand 

and do their job better.

ColorColorado Lado LTTAPAP
AdAdvisorvisory Committeey Committee

MemberMembers:s:

MarMarlene Crlene Crosbosbyy
Gunnison County

JJohn Bakohn Bakerer
Town of Snowmass

Adam LancasterAdam Lancaster
City of Cañon City

RicRicharhard McKd McKeeee
City of Boulder

TTammie Crammie Craawfwforordd
Routt County

DoDoyle yle VVillerillerss
LaPlata County

KKeevin Scottvin Scott
Phillips County

Beth MoorBeth Mooree
CDOT

CrCraig Laraig Larsonson
FHWA

YYunping Xiunping Xi
University of Colorado

at Boulder

RRenée Kenée Kolleroller
Colorado LTAP

W
By: Bill Sterling, Director of PW retired, City of Greeley 

...continued on page 4

172



Policies
This section includes policies that are

specific to each Division.  While many of
the personnel policies are covered in a
citywide policy, each Division has certain
policies that are specific to that operation.
These policies could include such items as
location of work site, working hours, dress
code, cell phone usage, reporting functions,
ethics, job site behavior, attendance
policies, and time tracking.  Training
opportunities and the maintenance of
required certifications (i.e. First Aid/CPR,
CDL licenses, equipment operations) are
important considerations.  

The manual should contain a section on
customer service (i.e., citizen
interaction, conduct, service
surveys) and accountability.  

Lastly, the manual could
include any other
policies/procedures that are
specific only to that Division
(i.e., fire extinguisher operations,
radio procedures, office
cleanliness, ethics, special
equipment operation training).  
Operations Procedures

This section is the heart of any
operations manual.  This is where the
“rubber hits the road”.  This section can be
expanded to include any and all procedures
on how to conduct a specific job function.
Remember, the manual should not be so
rigid as to restrict flexibility, innovation,
and efficiency.  Do not let written
policies/procedures restrict your ability to
respond efficiently and timely to the needs
of the citizens and to situations.  The
manual should be proactive versus
reactive.  However, to be consistent in
providing services, some specificity is
required.  

A critical element in this area is an
inventory of personnel and equipment.
The personnel inventory includes those
individuals assigned to specific jobs.  The
equipment inventory should include  a
listing of equipment, both large and small,
and supplies to be used for specific jobs
(i.e., snow control, supply levels,
stormwater maintenance, sweeping, signal
maintenance). 

A second important element is

“preparing for the season”.  Specific items
could include getting plows/spreaders
ready, readying mowers, paint truck
preparations, ordering of materials and
supplies, reviewing previous years’
operations, reviewing increased
responsibilities, and new regulations that
may dictate methods and training sessions.  

The third most important element is
providing specific procedures and
responsibilities for individual programs.
This could include specific info on Capital
Improvement Projects, engineering design
review standards and process, construction
in the public right-of-way permit process,
disposal of used oil and waste products

from vehicles, vehicle repair
priorities, custodial methods,
facility inspections, project
management, and security and
work order systems.  The
manual should also include
schedules for specific services
(i.e.sweeping, mowing, blading).

Safety procedures could
include safety training, accident
reporting, job site safety (work
zones), equipment operations,

shop/yard safety, and hazardous material
handling.  Emergency procedures should
include such items as emergency response,
current phone numbers of staff and key
agencies, response modes (flood, tornado,
fire, snow, etc.).  

Any endeavor to develop an operations
manual, or updating an existing one, must
include extensive employee involvement.
The people who do the actual work also
have the expertise to improve the “how
to”.  

To initiate an operations manual, a good
reference would be APWA’s Public Works
Management Practices Manual.  The
specific chapters that deal with your
operations are a good guide for developing
an outline for an operations manual.  

In closing, we all employ an “operational
manual” to some extent.  It’s called
institutional memory.  Senior staff know
how to do things based on how they did it
in the past; this is called experience.  The
downside of this situation is how to train
new employees, when senior staff retire. 

If all else fails, read the instructions - or
in this case, read the manual!

PPaagge e 44 ColorColorado Lado LTTAP/ Spring 2006  AP/ Spring 2006  

PUBLIC WORKSPUBLIC WORKS
MANAGEMENTMANAGEMENT

PRACTICESPRACTICES
MANUALMANUAL

APWA’s Public Works
Management Practices
Manual is a tool to help

local agencies develop or

improve existing

practices, enhance

performance, increase

productivity, and

strengthen employee

morale.  

This  newly-revised

manual describes the

basic criteria and

procedures necessary to

perform as a full-service

public works agency and

provides the framework

for the object self assess-

ment of an agency.

The manual can be

loaned from the Colorado

LTAP library, ordered

online through APWA’s

bookstore, or by calling

their Member Services

Hotline at 800-848-2792,

ext. 3560.  

apwa.net /bookstore

ElementElements of an Operations Manuals of an Operations Manual
continued from page 3...

Your operations
manual should not

be so rigid that
flexibility,

innovation, and
efficiency are

restricted. 

SAKE KEGS

173



ColorColorado Lado LTTAP/ Spring 2006AP/ Spring 2006 PPaagge e 55

When to Pave a Gravel Road?When to Pave a Gravel Road?
Economics of Upgrading an Aggregate Road

Though there was little data for either
low-traffic paved roads or high-traffic
gravel roads, the cost analysis showed an
upward trend for gravel roads with
increasing average annual daily traffic
(AADT).  In the AADT category with 150
to 199 vehicles per day - with nearly half
paved roads, roughly the mid-point -
bituminous and gravel maintenance costs
were similar.  

Recommendations: Gravel to Hot Mix
Based on their findings, the researchers

recommend that counties and townships
give serious consideration to upgrading
with traffic volumes of 200 vehicles per
day.  They also believe it is reasonable to
start planning for the upgrade once traffic
reaches 100 vehicles per day.

In some cases, an upgrade might be
justified by maintenance savings alone,
they say, such as when upgrading to a
lightly surfaced road (seal coat).  Lightly
surfaced roads require a smaller
investment than an HMA surface.  

Other factors that cannot easily be
assigned monetary value may also make it
wise to pave a gravel road.  benefits
include reducing dust, providing a
smoother and safer surface, improving
vehicle and driver efficiency,
redistributing traffic, and potentially
increasing tax base.  Some benefits
directly affect county budgets while others
have an indirect effect.  

On the flip side, however, they note that
after an aggregate road is paved,
maintenance activities shift to those
required for maintaining a higher level of

service.  Increased brush and weed
control, traffic services, signage, pavement
markings, snow and ice control, and
traffic control devices are typically needed
for a heightened level of service.
Anecdotal evidence suggests that snow
and ice removal costs for paved roads are
much higher than estimated.  

Given these factors, the report advises
that local officials consider developing
their own cost estimates for gravel road
maintenance operations and checking
them against their historical data.  (In the
report, estimates of primary gravel
maintenance, grading, and resurfacing
over a five-year maintenance cycle
averaged $4,160 per year, an amount
greater than the county historical cost
results.)  In cases where officials are
confident of their cost calculations, they
may use the estimate in place of the
historical costs.  Jurisdictions lacking
sufficient historical data may estimate
future maintenance costs, then compare
them to historical data provided in the
report.  Any analysis must be modified,
they added, to reflect individual
maintenance or construction costs as well
as project timing.  

The report (2005-09) may be downloaded
at www.lrrb.org/pdf/200509.pdf

Additional Related Reports

1) ReportP2002-01: Best Practices for
Maintaining and Upgrading Aggregate Roads
in Australia and New Zealand,
www.mnroad.dot.state.mn.us/research/
MnROAD_Project/MnRoadOnlineReports/
P2002-01.pdf

2) Transportation Research Record 1819,
LVR8-1059: Minnesota’s Experience With
Thin Bituminous Treatments for Low-Volume
Roads. www.mrr.dot.state.mn.us/research/
MnROAD_Project/MnRoadOnlineReports/
Minnesota’s_Experience_With_Thin_
Bituminous_Treatments_For_
Low-Volume_Roads.pdf

Reprinted with permission from Minnesota LTAP
Technology Exchange, Summer 05.  

continued from page 1...

N O  PN O  P A S S I N GA S S I N G

Figure 1: Cumulative maintenance costs for
gravel roads increase with traffic volume.

BUILDINGBUILDING
SAFER   SAFER   

WORK WORK 
ZONESZONES

In April, LTAP

received a 402 Safety

Grant from CDOT to do

Temporary Traffic Control
& Flagger Certification
courses for local agencies.

The Flagger Certification

courses were offered free-
of-charge to city, town and

county employees.  Each

year, the locations

alternate between the

north and south half of the

state.  This year, 5 classes

were held at La Junta,

Alamosa, Durango, and

Montrose (2).  Upon

completion of the 4-hr

training course,

participants take CDOT’s

flagger certification exam.

We are proud to announce

that out of 92 participants,

two individuals received a

score of 100% on the

flagger certification exam.  

Congratulat ions!Congratulat ions!

David Gray
Town of Basalt

Delmer Vigil
Town of Olathe

174



PPaagge e 66 ColorColorado Lado LTTAP/ Summer 2006  AP/ Summer 2006  

PPAAVEMENTVEMENT
MANAGEMENTMANAGEMENT

SYSTEMSSYSTEMS
The Michigan LTAP is

conducting a research

project titled Meaningful
Use of Local Roads Data. 

One task of this project is

to identify Pavement

Management Systems

(PMSs) currently being

used by local agencies

throughout the U.S.

The list below has all the

PMSs they have found so

far that are either 

commercial or unified,

noncommercial efforts. 

If your agency is using

something that is not on

this list, 

PLEASE LET US KNOW.
Ë PMSs:
. Accela Pavement Mgmt

. AgileAssets Pave. Mgr

. ARIA_BlockviewGIS

. CenterLine PMS

. CitiTech Mgmt Software

. Deighton Total Infra.

Management System

. GeoPlan Roads and

Pavement Management

. GEOSECMA-IStreet

. Hansen PMS

. ICON PMS

. Infrastructure

Management System (NC)

. InfraManager

. IPMP-Iowa Pavement

Management Program 

. MicroPAVER

. Mobility (Washington)

. Pave Pro Manager

. PAVEMENTview / Plus

. PMS 4.0

. PMS-Georgia

. PMS Pro

. RoadManager 2000

. RoadSoft-GIS (Michigan)

. RSMS

. Stantec PMS

. StreetSaver (California)

. StreetWise (Washington)

. TAMS (Utah)

few tears may have been shed, but
Johan (John) Bemelen says it’s time

for some world travelling!  In January,
LTAP received the news that John would
be retiring after about 20 years of teaching
Road Scholar classes for Colorado LTAP.  

For the past several years, John has been
the instructor for Colorado LTAP’s
Signing, Pavement Markings, and
MUTCD classes as well as the annual
Flagger Certification workshops. At heart,
John is irreplaceable.  I feel honored to
have had the opportunity to work with him
these last 6 years.  At the May
Advisory Committee meeting,
program manager Renée
Koller presented John with a
plaque/frame/radio thanking
him for his many years of
service as an LTAP instructor.  

John worked for the
Colorado Department of
Transportation (CDOT) for
more than 31 years, with 10
years as their Staff Traffic
Engineer.  He has served on
ITE, AASHTO, and national MUTCD
committees, and is recognized as a leader
in the traffic engineering field in Colorado
and the United States.  John is also
resigning as an instructor for the American

Traffic Safety Services
Association (ATSSA), and
from the Federal Highway
Administration (FHWA).  

But don’t fret - I may have
heard John whisper under his
breath that he may be coaxed
to come back for a couple of
classes after he gets bored of
travelling.  Yeah - like he’ll get

bored.  Send us a postcard!  

Goodbye and Good Luck
We’ll Miss You 

A

LLTTAPAP Says Goodbye & Good LuckSays Goodbye & Good Luck
To a Roads Scholar Legend

Did
You

Know?
Rickshaws were

mainly used in Asia,

but nowadays they

are outlawed in

many places.

Rickshaws have

been banned in

China since the

Communist takeover

in 1949. 

Rickshaws are a mode of human-powered transport: a
runner draws a two-wheeled cart which seats one or two
persons.  The word "rickshaw" originates from the
Japanese jinrikisha which literally means "human-powered
vehicle."  The first rickshaws appeared in Japan around
1868.  By 1872, some 40,000 rickshaws were operating in
Tokyo.  They soon became the chief form of public
transportation in Japan.  (Wikipedia)

TRANSPORTTRANSPORTAATION: OLD VS. NEWTION: OLD VS. NEW

“Presented to
JOHAN BEMELEN

For Exceptional
Service as a

Colorado LTAP
Instructor

With Appreciation 
for his

Dedication to Safety”

175



Colorado LTAP maintains a comprehensive mailing list.  Our
mailing list is divided into two sections: a brochure and a
newsletter mailing list.  Each mailing list is used only by the
Colorado LTAP center in support of LTAP activities.  They’re
the sole property of the Colorado LTAP center, and neither 
mailing list is sold or distributed.

Brochure Mailing List: Includes the names of the contact people at each agency who receive
notification of registration for upcoming  training and conferences through class brochures. 

Newsletter Mailing List: Includes those people who receive our quarterly Newsletter. 

In an attempt to keep our mailing list up-to-date,
please make any changes, updates, or additions below and return to the Colorado LTAP office.

Mail to: Colorado LTAP, University of Colorado Boulder

3100 Marine St, UCB 561, Boulder, CO 80309-0561

Fax to: 303-735-2968

Email to: cltap@colorado.edu

Changes and additions can also be made online

on our website at: http://ltap.colorado.edu.  

Brochure Mailings Newsletter Mailings
Add Add

Delete Delete

Update Update

Name: Agency:

Job Title: Address:

City: State: Zip:

Phone: Fax:

Email Address:

ColorColorado Lado LTTAP/ Summer 2006AP/ Summer 2006 PPaagge e 77

PLEASE COPY THIS FORM FOR OTHERS IN YOUR AGENCYPLEASE COPY THIS FORM FOR OTHERS IN YOUR AGENCY
~THANK YOU~~THANK YOU~

MailingMailing
L i s tL i s t

UpdateUpdate

176



PLACE
STAMP
HERE

Colorado LTAP

fold

fold

University of Colorado at Boulder
3100 Marine St, A-213

UCB 561
Boulder, CO 80309-0561

177



ColorColorado Lado LTTAP/ Summer 2006AP/ Summer 2006 PPaagge e 99

All videos, publications and CDs in the LTAP lending 
library are available for checkout for a two-week period, free of charge.  To check out 

materials or request a library catalogue, contact the Colorado LTAP office at 1-888-848-5827.
Below is a list of most recent materials added to the library.  Our library materials can also be ordered online  at:
h t t p : / / l t a p . c o l o r a d o . e d uh t t p : / / l t a p . c o l o r a d o . e d u

New DVDsNew DVDs
Location Title

DVD50 FWZS   Flagging in the Work Zone - Safety in Your Hands 
This DVD covers proper flagging practices and techniques that help make work zones safer for flaggers, workers and
roadway users. 

DVD40 PMSS   Preventive Maintenance - Pavement Performance Champions 
The package explains the advantages, benefits, and economics of Pavement Preservation and Slurry System preventive
maintenance treatments for existing asphalt roadways. The brochure and videos explain in lay terms, compelling
graphs and graphics, the reasons for acceptance and use of these types of surface treatments.

DVD LYNFR     Lifelines, Your National Forest Roads 
This DVD explores the relationship between people and the land as it celebrates the partnership between USDA Forest
Service, FHWA, and state and local communities in providing continued stewardship and access to national forests. 

New CDsNew CDs
Location Title

CD GTTC  Guidelines for Temporary Traffic Control (3 CDs) 
These CDs contain the handbook summarizing some guidelines listed in the 2003 Manual on Uniform Traffic Control
(MUTCD). It is directed to any entity working on a roadway open to public travel. This handbook contains the basic
principles of Temporary Traffic Control (TTC), description of standard TTC devices, and typical application diagrams.
Information concerning proper flagging along with the installation and maintenance of TTC devices is also presented.

CD MDM05    Model Drainage Manual 2005 
The manual has been developed to provide the designer with a basic working knowledge of hydrology and hydraulics
complete with example problems. All basic design elements are included such that the designer can design highway
drainage with minimal assistance. However, this manual cannot provide guidance on complex hydrologic or hydraulic
problems, and it is no substitute for experience or engineering judgement.

CD RR  Roadside Reminders 
This CD contains a movie of a presentation prepared by FHWA.  The presentation provides a strong message on the
number of motorists that lose their lives on our highways and emphasizes key areas that safety agencies can focus on
to save lives. It makes it clear that just one agency alone cannot accomplish our goal of reducing our nation's fatality
rate; it must be a combined effort by many safety agencies that incorporates education, engineering, enforcement, and
emergency response.

What’sWhat’s NewNew
i n  t h ei n  t h e

LIBRARY?LIBRARY?

178



PPaagge e 1010 ColorColorado Lado LTTAP/ Summer 2006  AP/ Summer 2006  

What’s NewWhat’s New
i n  t h ei n  t h e

LIBRARY?LIBRARY?

New Publ icat ionsNew Publ icat ions
Location Title

40 CPPM Culvert Repair Practices Manual. Volume 1 & 2
This manual has been developed to provide guidance to highway agencies on procedures that may be used to repair a
wide variety of types of problems that beset metal and concrete culverts of all types. Many of the procedures are also
applicable to the repair of timber and stone masonry culverts. Procedures are also presented on ways to improve the
inlet and outlet ends of culverts as well as streambed channels leading to and from them.

F60 ECH  Erosion Control Handbook for Local Roads 
A handbook helpful in identifying key issues and concerns of those responsible for controlling erosion on low volume
roads. Topics include: The Importance of Erosion Control;Regulation and Permitting;Designing an Erosion Control
Plan;Treatment Selection;Erosion & Sediment Control During Construction; Permanent Erosion control; and Erosion
Control for Coastal Areas.

22 STT Summary of Trenchless Technology for Use with USDA Forest Service Culverts 
Summarizes trenchless technologies most appropriate for USDA Forest Service roadway culvert operations. It
emphasizes techniques for replacing or rehabilitating corrugated metal pipe culvert, 18 inches diameter; and covers
trenchless technology versus open-cut excavation; pipe inspection; pipe maintenance; pipe rehabilitation; pipe
replacement; and new pipe constructions.

New New VVideosideos
Location Title

V40 SPP Stormwater Pollution Prevention 
Meet mandatory EPA and state storm water pollution prevention training requirements. Topics covered include: how
and why water discharges are regulated, components and goals of prevention plans, management practices to prevent
contamination, housekeeping to keep contaminants out of sewers, spill prevention, and clean-up procedures.

V50 LOTO   Lock-Out/Tag-Out Safety Training for Employees 
This program can help you easily train your employees on proper lockout/tagout procedures, as required by OSHA
under 29 CFR Section 1910.147. Focuses on procedures from shutdown to start-up making it easy to combine with
your existing training program, or use for retraining as mandated by OSHA.

V50 TSS    Trenching & Shoring Safety 
Help your employees avoid accidents by teaching them safe excavation-site procedures. This in-depth video focuses on
OSHA-regulated safety measures such as protection from hazards with water accumulation, hazardous atmospheres,
and design of support, shield underground installations, access and egress exposure to falling loads, stability of adjacent
structures, protection from loose rock or soil, inspections design of sloping, and benching systems. 

NEW: Gravel Roads Maintenance: Meeting the Challenge Toolkit
The workers who maintain gravel roads are making an important contribution to safety,
comfort, and convenience of their communities.  Maintaining these roads, however,
isn’t easy - in fact, it is a tricky combination of art and science that workers must aim
to develop.  Minnesota LTAP has created the Gravel Roads Maintenance: Meeting the
Challenge toolkit to teach maintenance workers, supervisors, and engineers the right
way to perform gravel road maintenance.  The key component of the toolkit is a new
DVD video that can serve as a stand-alone tutorial or as an instructor’s tool to
introduce the topics of gravel road maintenance.  Each chapter of the DVD
discusses a specific maintenance topic:  Correct Roadway Shape, Shaping the
Roadway, Good Surface Gravel, and Dust Control.  The video can also be used for

presentations to the public to explain what can be done to their local roads, what is being
done, and why it needs to be done.  Ken Skorseth of the SD LTAP brings many years experience to his

narration of the DVD.  Safety is always a key theme of his lessons.  By making clear how important their jobs are,
Skorseth says, the DVD helps workers “take pride in their work on gravel roads.”  In addition to the DVD, the toolkit
includes FHWA’s Gravel Roads Maintenance & Design Manual and an instructor’s guide.

179



ColorColorado Lado LTTAP/ Summer 2006AP/ Summer 2006 PPaagge e 1111

geographic information system (GIS)
is a system for creating and

managing spatial data.  It is a computer
system capable of integrating, storing,
editing, analyzing, and displaying
geographically-referenced information.
GIS technology can be used for resource
management, asset management,
development planning, and route
planning. For example, a GIS might allow
emergency planners to easily calculate
emergency response times in the event of
a disaster, or a GIS might be used to find
wetlands that need protection from
pollution. (Wikipedia.com)

The Maine Department of
Environmental Protection (DEP) offers
four Geographic Information System
(GIS) courses free online.  All DEP GIS
training features real situations and data.
Courses are written for DEP users, but in
all cases the data can be downloaded and
the training completed by non-DEP users
on their own computers.  There are six
other GIS course topics under
development.  All courses can be found at
http://www.maine.gov/dep/gis/training

Courses currently available online
include: 
Introduction to ArcGIS 9 - Basic Concepts
(GIS 101 for new users)
Intermediate ArcGIS 9 - GIS Data
Concepts (more in-depth treatment of
different kinds of GIS data.)
Intermediate ArcGIS 9 - Editing
(everything you need to know to start
editing GIS data on your own.)
Intermediate ArcGIS 9 - Terrain Analysis
(a 3D class which covers ways to 
use 3D data for monitoring lakes.)  

A

Roadway Work Zone Safety for New Drivers
he FHWA, in partnership with the
American Road & Transportation

Builders Association, AAA Foundation
for Traffic Safety, and the National Safety
Council recently completed the Turning
Point Campaign aimed at increasing the
awareness of new drivers to work zone
hazards and teaching them to safely
negotiate work zone situations.

The project website includes useful
information for teens, parents, and
educators, as well as a work zone fact
section. The campaign was developed to
supplement existing driver education
programs through incorporation of a
motivational video, interactive CD ROM,
instructional website, a CD ROM of
available resources, and miscellaneous
safety promotional items.

Turning Point uses Olympic gymnast
Dominique Dawes as a spokesperson to
help spread the message of:

* Know the work zone signs.
* Pay attention to other drivers.
* Stay focused. Avoid distractions.
* Expect the unexpected.
* Keep your cool. Be patient.

Educators will find this comprehensive
hub of driver safety information very
useful in explaining the importance of
work zone safety, as it makes available a
variety of teaching tools, such as quizzes,
products, and networking tools.

Turning Point is a program with one
goal in mind—keeping new drivers alive
and safe in work zones.

http://www.workzonedriver.org/

T

GIS GIS ANDAND

EMERGENCYEMERGENCY

MANAGEMENTMANAGEMENT

OPERAOPERATIONSTIONS

Geographic Information

Systems (GIS) have been

found to play an

important role in rescue

and recovery operations

following natural disasters

and attacks.  GIS can

help with planning for

possibilities, and with

situation response

scenarios.  The

importance of GIS in the

planning stages is its

ability to overlay mapping

data with location

identifiers for specific

objects and factors.

These systems are

capable of visually

demonstrating and

creatively manipulating

the interrelationships

among layers of data for

practicing “what-if”

scenarios.  

Did
You

Know?

A teen is killed 

every three days 
in a roadway 

work zone crash.  

Seven teens 

are injured in 

work zones 

every day.

www.workzonedriver.org

Wikipedia.com

Geographic Information SystemsGeographic Information Systems
Free Online Training

180



PPaagge e 1212 ColorColorado Lado LTTAP/ Spring 2006  AP/ Spring 2006  

Can Can YYou Buou Build a Better Mousetrap?ild a Better Mousetrap?
“You Show Us” 2006

CColorado LTAP is pleased to announce
the 2006 "You Show Us" contest!  This is
the contest's 12th year. The concept began
in 1994 as "You Show Us How".

We are aware that in many instances
there are not enough transportation dollars
available to maintain our transportation
systems to the desired level of service.
This is particularly true when it comes to
local government transportation programs.
The costs for repairs and improvements
are increasing while the available finances
are decreasing.

Solving today’s problems
requires efficient use of
existing funds, and the
application of cost-reducing
& innovative techniques.
These problems are not easily
solved with yesterday's
solutions!

What is the best idea you
have implemented in your county within
the last few years?  Past entries have
included unique safety and operational
efficiency improvements, and time saving
designs. Your entry could be related to
these areas or many others.  This is your
opportunity to showcase something that
has worked and of which you are proud,
and to share this information with your
counterparts across the state, and even the
nation.

The contest is open to all county
governments in Colorado. All participating
Colorado counties will receive a certificate
of participation and their entries will be
published in our newsletter. The winning
Colorado entry will be submitted to
compete with counties in Nebraska, North
Dakota, South Dakota, and Wyoming to
determine the regional winner. 

Entries should be no longer than two
typewritten pages and should include:
1.  County Information

County Name
Contact Person
Contact Address

2.  Problem Statement
3.  Discussion of Solution
4.  Labor, Equipment, Materials Used
5.  Cost
6.  Savings/Benefits to the County

~Photographs are encouraged.~

Colorado LTAP will sponsor
two county employees to
represent their state winning
project at the 2006 County
Road Advisors Conference.
The state and regional awards
will be presented at the
conference, to be held in
Rapid City, South Dakota

October 25-26, 2006.
All entries must be received by 

August 1, 2006 to be considered. You may
mail or e-mail your submission. The state
winner will be notified by September 11th.

Mail entries to:
"You Show Us" Contest
Colorado LTAP
University of Colorado
3100 Marine St., Rm. A-213
UCB 561
Boulder, CO 80309-0561

E-mail entries to:  
cltap@colorado.edu

For additional information call:
Renée Koller or Lindsay Nathaniel at the
Colorado LTAP Center, 303-735-3530 or
toll-free 1-888-848-5827.

We look forward to your entry! 

South Dakota’s 2005 Regional You Show Us contest
winning entry - “The Gravel Saver”.  

Calling all CountiesCalling all Counties
We want to know your 

innovative ideas!

WIN A TRAVEL
STIPEND

Our center is continuing

its program to encourage

local participation in the

publishing of Colorado

LTAP’s quarterly

newsletter.  We would like

the recipients of our

newsletter to benefit from

all the knowledge local

agencies have in the

areas of roadway

maintenance, design, and

construction.  We are

offering $50.00 to city,

town, or county

employees that submit an

article that is chosen to

be published in our

newsletter.  Articles can

address current methods

and procedures, best

practices, innovative

techniques, or projects in

the transportation

industry.  Content should

contain as much detail as

possible, but we can

provide assistance in

editing and writing the

final version.  We request

articles not promote any

particular product.

Photos are encouraged.
To submit articles/photos,

include author name and

contact info, and mail or

email to

cltap@colorado.edu.

Need a little    Need a little    
extra extra CCash?ash?

Your knowledge
is worth

something.

< < Kyoto Bus Station, Japan.  Do Not Cross.

181



ColorColorado Lado LTTAP/ Spring 2006AP/ Spring 2006 PPaagge e 1313

FEMAFEMA RELEASESRELEASES

“GETTING READY“GETTING READY

FOR DISASTER” DVDFOR DISASTER” DVD

With the upcoming

hurricane season, killer

tornados, wildfires, and

floods, FEMA has

released of a new citizen

preparedness DVD titled,

"Getting Ready For
Disaster". 

The DVD guides viewers

through important steps

of disaster preparedness

and is a welcome

addition to FEMA's

preparedness materials.

The video addresses the

following areas:

* Introduction 

* Get Informed 

* Make a Plan 

* Disaster Supplies Kit 

* People with 

Disabilities 

* Food and Water 

* Helping Children 

Cope 

* Getting Involved 

Video clips can be

downloaded online, or a

DVD can be ordered from

FEMA.  For more

information visit: www.
fema.gov/areyouready

Also available is

Are You Ready? An In-
depth Guide to Citizen
Preparedness.  It is

FEMA’s most

comprehensive source on

individual, family, and

community preparedness.

The guide has been

revised, updated, and

enhanced to provide the

public with the most

current and up-to-date

disaster preparedness

information available.Kudos to Colorado Springs! The El Paso County DOT promoted Work Zone Safety Awareness
Week with this portable changeable message sign on Marksheffel Road.   

Kobe Earthquake Memorial Park, Japan.
On Jan 17, 1995, the city of Kobe was struck
by a magnitude 7.2 earthquake.  The memorial
is an area of the Meriken Pier which was hit
and has been preserved in its damaged state.
It relays the tragedy of the disaster and the
city's subsequent restoration.  Although the
destruction to the port of Kobe was devistat-
ing, the entire city was rebuilt in just 2 years! 

Photo by Renée Koller

Biloxi, Mississippi, USA. 
On Aug 30, 2005, the Louisiana and
Mississippi coasts were hit by a category 4
storm with maximum winds at 140 mph.  This
bridge was no match for Hurricane Katrina.
This vital link connecting Biloxi to Pascagoula
was swept 30 feet off its pylons and cast into
the sea.  The bridge remains closed eight
months after the storm.

Photo courtesy of APWA Reporter, March 06

Road Road Agency ResponsibilitiesAgency Responsibilities
Can Change in an Instant

Whether it’s a forest fire, hurricane,
tornado, or terrorism, here are a few issues
to consider in determining if your agency
is prepared.  Does your agency have an
emergency management plan?  How does
it affect your department?  Did any of your
traffic operations infrastructure survive?
What is your time for recovery? What is
the role of transportation operations during
the recovery period?  What is the role of

your transportation professionals during the
transition from disaster site to operational
roadways?  Is there a component to civil
security that transportation fills while an
incident is a disaster site?  To what extent
does your agency aid in evacuation and
incident traffic control?   Who’s
responsible for road clearing and hazardous
material clean-up from roadways; are they
properly trained?  

182



PPaagge e 1414 ColorColorado Lado LTTAP/ Summer 2006  AP/ Summer 2006  

Ideas That WIdeas That Workork
Saving Your Agency Time & Money

SStrtr eet  Smareet  Smar tsts
A New Vehicle in the Streets Department

City of Golden
In the past, the City of Golden's

Streets Division has had two separate
trucks for marking pavement and for
street signage.  As a result, the crews
had to switch back and forth from one
truck to another, wasting time lugging
tools to and fro and racking up excess
mileage between the two vehicles. At
the time, it was the only way to get the
job done. 

A new, more efficient vehicle has
combined all those functions into one,
helping crews do their jobs more
productively.  The new truck replaced
an inefficient and messy hydraulic system with a much cleaner pneumatic (air) driver
for pounding sign posts into the ground. Sign installation times have been cut in half,
which has additionally improved the replacement schedule.  The truck also allows
crews to choose between three types of pavement painting techniques depending on
which application is most appropriate. The possible applications include regular:
pavement painting, glued 3M tape, and thermo tape that is melted on the asphalt. 

With this one truck, crews have greatly improved efficiency by having all of these
options available to them at any time.  Drive times have been significantly reduced, as
the truck can carry all of the necessary tools for both pavement painting and sign
installation, and because the truck can carry multiple large signs on board at a time.     

The new vehicle also includes an added function the Streets crews did not previously
have.  A core driller on the truck allows crews to take asphalt samples that assist them
in engineering.   Additionally, the new truck is equipped with high LED lighting,
which is much safer as it is much more visible. 

Eventually, the truck will also be
equipped with a laptop so that crews
can remotely update GPS and IDs for
all of the City's signage in a special
program called Cartegraph. The City of
Golden has over 6,000 signs that are
all logged into this program and
tracked, helping crews locate them
easily and monitor inventory,
maintenance and replacement. 

For more info about Golden's SFor more info about Golden's Streettreets Division, conts Division, contact: act: 
Mark Dugan at 303-384-8108 or visit www.City of Goldenofgolden.net, click on
Departments, and Public Works.  Streets Division is listed in left side navigation bar.   

A new vehicle in the Streets Division 
is replacing two old ones 

and making Streets crews more efficient. 

FIRST QUARTERFIRST QUARTER
ROAD SCHOLARROAD SCHOLAR

GRADUAGRADUATESTES

City of Arvada
Ron Mahoney

Dan Pumphrey

Jim Quintana

Dewayne Benefiel

Frank Bargas

City of Berthoud
Jerry Wilson

City of Brighton
Rob Gleim

Mike Torres

Hector Huerta 

Dennis Roybal

City of Broomfield
John Beale

City of Castle Rock
Randy Worthington

City of Dillon
Scott O'Brien

City of Golden
David Henkel

City of Greeley
Adrian Yebra

City of Thornton 
Carlos Lopez

Arapahoe County 
Ray Chandler

Terry Brawley

Delta County 
Larry Record

Elbert County
Rick Manyik

El Paso County 
Steve Barden

Harry Miller

Dennis Sack

Paul Wiggs

continued on next page...

183



ColorColorado Lado LTTAP/ Summer 2006AP/ Summer 2006 PPaagge e 1515

FIRST QUARTERFIRST QUARTER
ROAD SCHOLARROAD SCHOLAR

GRADUAGRADUATESTES
...continued 

Mesa County
Danny Click
Danny Spaid
Brady Sartain

Terry Nash
Rudy Bevan
Dean House

Otero County 
Darren Garcia

Teller County
Mike Wilson

Weld County
Ted Eyl

FIRST QUARTERFIRST QUARTER
SUPERVISORSUPERVISORYY

SKILLSSKILLS
GRADUAGRADUATESTES

Weld County
Lee Stephen

Upcoming Events

2006 F2006 FALLALL COURSESCOURSES
NOTE: Our training coordinator is

currently finalizing fall dates and

locations.  Please contact the Colorado

LTAP office for an updated schedule, or

check online at http://ltap.colorado.edu.

Road Scholar Core ClassesRoad Scholar Core Classes

Drainage

Safety on the Job

Road Scholar ElectivesRoad Scholar Electives

Heavy Equipment Training
Grand County, CO (3-days, $120)

Easy Methods of Estimating Materials
for Roadway Projects

Common Sense Solutions to
Intersection Safety Problems

Small Bridge Inspection

Roadway Safety Fundamentals

Supervisory Skills ClassesSupervisory Skills Classes

Who’s Coming Thru the Door Today?
Dealing With People

Developing the Leader Within

Successful Employees Make
Successful Supervisors

Ethics for New Supervisors

CCI 24th Annual Summer Conference
June 5-7, 2006

Keystone Resort, Summit County
For registration and information, visit CCI
online at: http://www.ccionline.org

Western Regional Grade-Crossing
Safety Training Conference 
June 5-7, 2006

Hilton, Vancouver, WA
For more information, visit their website at:
www.techtransfer.berkeley.edu/railroad

APWA West Slope Snow & Ice
Conference
September 6-8, 2006

Gunnison County Fairgrounds

Conferences

Upcoming Training

Recent graduates of the Roads Scholar Program received their plaques at the Roadway Safety
and Work Zone Traffic Control class in Colorado Springs.  (L-R) Darren Gardia - Otero County

and Harry Miller, Dennis Sack, Steve Barden, Paul Wiggs - El Paso County.  

Did
You

Know?

Mesa County 
has the most 

currently employed

Road Scholar
graduates with 43.

Garfield County
is a close second.

Keep up the 
good work!

~ Road Scholar~ Road Scholar 1515 th th AnniversarAnniversary ~y ~
All Road Scholar graduates in 2006 will receive

a commemorative engraved keychain along with their plaques.  

184



NNEEWW FFRREEEE PPUUBBLL IICCAATT IIOONNSS
F40 IJ Inspector ’s Job Guides & Hgwy Maint .  Tables
Need a reminder of what to look for when inspecting curbs, gutters, walks,

driveways, plant mix bituminous paving, concrete paving, base courses,

culvert pipe or storm sewer installations, grading, seeding or finishing,

structures or geotextiles? Need to estimate how many gallons of asphalt will

be required per mile of road, how much roadway a 1000-gallon tank will

cover, or how many pounds of sand, gravel or crushed stone you have in a

stockpile? Answers to these questions and many others (in English units) are

at your fingertips in this pocket sized guide.  

F50 GTTC Guidelines for Temporary Traffic Control
This handbook summarizes guidelines listed in the 2003 MUTCD. It contains

the basic principles of Temporary Traffic Control (TTC), description of

standard TTC devices, and typical application diagrams. Information

concerning proper flagging along with the installation and maintenance of

TTC devices is also presented.

F50 SIG Sign Installation Guide
A basic pocket guide intended to help new employees or volunteers install

road signs.  Includes 18 photographs showing the specifications for placing

signs along Forest Service roads. 

F40 APMFG Asphalt Pavement Maintenance - Field Guide
This field guide provides guidelines for preventive asphalt pavement

maintenance techniques for a variety of distresses and conditions. It covers:

crack treatments (clean/seal, rout/seal, full-depth crack repair); surface

treatments (fog seal, seal coat, thin hot-mix overlays); pothole patching and

repair (cold-mix, spray injection patching, hot-mix, slurry or microsurfacing).  

F40 DIG Distress Ident i f icat ion Guide
This publication provides guidance in identifying different forms of distress in

the pavement, such as cracking, potholes, surface deformation, surface

defects and miscellaneous distress. Colored figures accompany the

explanations.

Nonprofit Org.

U.S. Postage

PAID

Boulder, CO

Permit No. 257

Colorado LTAP

The following is a list of
FREE publications 

available to Colorado local
government agencies in the 

transportation field.
Quantities are limited and
available on a first-come,

first-serve basis.

Contact the Colorado LTAP
office to put in a request for

these free publications.

Check out our website for 
additional free materials 

not listed here.

http://ltap.colorado.edu

N
at

io
na

l LT
AP & TTAP Program

s

Serving America’s Local Road & Brid

ge
 A

ge
nc

ie
s

University of Colorado at Boulder
3100 Marine St, A-213
UCB 561
Boulder, CO 80309-0561

185



Privacy  - Terms

Surface economy: pavement vs.
gravel roads

 December 2, 2022 0 

Highland Road in Old Chatham. Photo by David Lee

GHENT—The radio commentator Paul Harvey famously

wrote: “What’s mainly wrong with society today is that

too many Dirt Roads have been paved. There’s not a

problem in America today—crime, sex, education,

divorce, delinquency—that wouldn’t be remedied if we

just had more Dirt Roads, because Dirt Roads give

character.”

FOLLOW US

READ THE COLUMBIA PAPER –

MARCH 7, 2024



Log In You have viewed 1 of your 3 monthly pages.


186



Most of the county’s residents have similarly strong

opinions on whether to see more town roads paved or

left as gravel.

The arguments are familiar: dirt roads �t the rural

character of the area; dirt roads spawn mountains of

dust; paved roads encourage traf�c and speeding; paved

roads are safer; dirt roads create safety hazards; paving

roads is expensive; maintaining dirt roads is expensive;

paved roads are easier on vehicles. And so on.

Perhaps the strongest argument for maintaining dirt

roads (which usually means gravel roads) is their

signi�cance as a marker of rural character. The Chatham

Dirt Road Coalition, for example, says that “dirt roads are

a heritage worthy of preserving for many reasons: they

provide a safer place for exercise and recreation than

faster paved roads, they enhance the natural beauty of

our landscape, and in a very real way they are a living

connection to our history.” The coalition’s website

includes a hand-drawn map illustrating the more than

40 miles of dirt roads in Chatham.

Ghent Highway Superintendent Benjamin Perry would

echo the thought that dirt roads embody local history—

literally. Dirt roads were initially little more than cow

paths leading to farms over which milk trucks passed. In

the process of improving or paving old dirt roads, his

department has found logs, tree stumps, engine blocks

and other car parts and even a cow stanchion, in the

road beds.

But the dirty truth about dirt roads, according to

Austerlitz Highway Superintendent Peter Fitzpatrick, is

that they have a poor ecological record. He cites studies

GHENT
Weather

43°F
broken
clouds

Fri

52°F
30°F

Sat

46°F
34°F

Sun

50°F
32°F

41° 

Log In You have viewed 1 of your 3 monthly pages.


187



showing that gravel roads lose an inch of dirt every year;

and, that dirt is not only to be found on cars, but on

windows and window sills. Unpaved roads are generally

so compacted that very little water soaks in. Instead,

rainwater runs off, carrying sediment into watercourses.

Sediment can smother stream habitats, reducing

biodiversity, especially affecting the spawning and

rearing of trout. Runoff can raise streambeds and

exacerbate �ooding. It can also harm roadside

vegetation. Nutrients and sediments reaching sensitive

water bodies can adversely affect water quality.

Safety is another concern. While the highway

superintendents agree that a well-constructed and

maintained gravel road is as safe as a paved road nine

months of the year, when it comes to mud season. Then,

roads may turn so mushy as to be impassable for heavier

vehicles like school buses and fuel trucks. As Fire Chief

Brennan Keeler of Claverack notes, sometimes dirt roads

are too narrow for his vehicles to pass one another and in

mud season the roads may not support trucks, making

passage impossible and creating real safety issues.

Residents also complain that a paved road leads to more

traf�c and speeding. Mr. Fitzpatrick might agree but he

notes that drivers speed on dirt roads also and wonders

whether the potholes and rutting that is inevitable do

not create greater driving hazards.

Snow removal and melt varies according to surface.

Blacktop is generally cleared of snow more quickly as the

snow will melt more rapidly on it, but if the surface is wet

it can freeze to black ice. If the air is cold, a gravel surface

will resolve to snow pack which is relatively safe and easy

CATEGORIES

Partnered with

BACK TO NATURE

CALENDAR

COMMUNITY

COMMUNITY GUIDEBOOKS

COMMUNITY CONVERSATIONS

GOOD NEWS STORIES

KIDS PAGE

LOCAL/COUNTY

NEIGHBORS

OBITUARIES

RELIGION

SPORTS

STATE NEWS

Log In You have viewed 1 of your 3 monthly pages.


188



for snow plows to travel, whereas driving on mushy snow

on a gravel surface is jarring on vehicles and drivers alike.

Another key difference is �nancial. Maintaining gravel

roads is an expensive proposition. According to

Superintendent Fitzpatrick of Austerlitz (whose town

roads, like many county towns, are predominantly

gravel-surfaced), a gravel road requires grading at least

once and sometimes three and four times every year. To

grade, trucks make four to eight passes at two miles per

hour, not even counting spot treatments for potholes

and other problem areas. One full day of grading

requires a grader, a roller and a water truck. Gravel has to

be hauled to the site. Austerlitz uses some 5,000-6,000

tons of gravel each year. The trucks consume 60-100

gallons of fuel/day. At least two workers are needed. After

grading, the surface must be watered and a chemical

(generally considered safe) called calcium chloride is

applied to harden the surface and diminish dust.

Vehicles maintaining and snow-plowing gravel roads

themselves need more maintenance than their

counterparts working on paved roads.

By contrast, paved roads require little maintenance.

Ghent Superintendent Perry notes that all but 2 miles of

the 77 miles of Ghent town roads are paved, either with

blacktop or “pugmill,” a mixture of stone, water and an

emulsion. Blacktop has a 20-25 year “life expectancy”

and pugmill a 15-18 year life. Neither requires annual

maintenance, other than the tree-clearing, ditch-

cleaning and mowing that all roads require.

Superintendent Perry estimates that a highway

department will spend 80% or more of its “time and

energy” on dirt roads.
Log In You have viewed 1 of your 3 monthly pages.



189



However, the cost of installing a paved road is signi�cant.

Before you can pave, the road drainage often must be

upgraded, with the installation of new pipes and

culverts, to divert water away from the roadbed. A good

gravel road must be laid, graded and shaped to a gentle

crown. Assuming the drainage has been attended to,

Superintendent Perry estimates that the cost for one

mile of a pugmill road is $150,000 and of blacktop

$200,000 or more. (Which surface to use is not only a

question of cost, but also the underlying conditions;

blacktop is not recommended in areas that suffer frost

heaves, whereas pugmill will expand and contract with

temperature changes.)

Direct costs to road residents also vary depending on

road surfaces. A study by the University of Kentucky

found that the cost of operating a vehicle on a gravel

surface is often two to three times greater than on a

paved surface because there is “greater rolling resistance

and less traction” on gravel which increases fuel

consumption, there is additional tire wear, and dust

oil consumption and engine maintenance costs.affects 

Finally, a June 2021 Rural Dirt Road Assessment prepared

for three South Berkshire towns found that many of the

considerations are shifting with climate change. With

the increase in stronger and more frequent storms, the

reduction in the number of days below freezing and

delays in winter freezing and with earlier spring thaws,

dirt roads have become even more vulnerable. The

increase in extreme weather events leads to more

intense runoff and even landslides and occasional

washouts. With added freeze-thaw events occurring, we

sometimes now experience multiple “mud seasons.”
Log In You have viewed 1 of your 3 monthly pages.



190



RAVENA NEWS-

HERALD

The Ravena

News-Herald is

a weekly

newspaper

reporting on

the news in

the Ravena,

Coeymans and

New

Baltimore

communities

of beautiful

GREENVILLE

PIONEER

Greene

County’s

independent

newspaper.

Featuring local

news, letters

to the editor,

upcoming

events, police

blotter,

columns from

THE COLUMBIA

PAPER

The Columbia

Paper is a

weekly

newspaper

reporting

news and

events from

the

communities

of Columbia

County in

beautiful

PAGES

RAVENA NEWS-

HERALD

GREENVILLE

PIONEER

COLUMBIA

PAPER

CONTACT

RELATED POSTS

Pandemic-driven population growth also affects the

roads, not only leading to greater traf�c but also the

presence of more heavy construction and delivery

vehicles, which accelerate road degradation.

So, to pave or not to pave: it’s complicated.

Ancram gives reval a green light

by Columbia Paper / December 1, 2022

'Souper Saturdays'

by Melanie Lekocevic /

December 2, 2022

Log In You have viewed 1 of your 3 monthly pages.


191



 
Introduction 
Paved roads provide improvement 
over gravel in ways that are hard 
to quantify with dollars, including 
improved winter surfaces, improved 
safety from improved signage and 
delineation, a safer surface with 
higher skid resistance, a smoother 
surface that increases user 
satisfaction and reduces vehicle 
maintenance costs, redistribution of 
traffic away from gravel roads, and 
an increased tax base on adjacent 
property. 

 
Unpaved roads serve a valued purpose in our roadway system, but maintenance costs are 
significant. Paved roadways also are costly to maintain and like everything else, maintenance 
costs for both paved and unpaved roads are rising. We need to optimize those costs to best 
serve the public. Reduced funding and resources require us to be more efficient spenders of the 
money we do have. Preparing for future maintenance and upgrades allows us to better manage 
funds that are available now. 

 
How do we know when it’s time to pave a gravel road? The decision is not easy but there 
are several good resources available to help you determine when to pave a gravel road. This 
Tech Tip will provide a guide on where to find information on determining when a gravel road 
should be paved and a short summary on how to use those resources to help you make an 
informed decision. 

 
Economics of Upgrading an Aggregate Road is a report published in 2005 that funded by the 
Minnesota Local Road Research Board (LRRB). As part of this project, researchers examined 
roadway surface construction and maintenance costs to determine possible threshold values to 
go from gravel to paved. The report is available online at:  

 
Local Road Surfacing Criteria is a report published in 2004 that was funded by the South Dakota 
DOT. In this project, researchers developed a tool to compare the costs associated with different 
types of roads to determine the most economical surface type. This report is available online at:  

 
The Issue 
Two key questions must be answered when developing a gravel road maintenance plan: 
1. What is the best way to maintain a gravel road? 
2. When should the roadway be upgraded to a paved surface? 

 

192



These are not easy questions because many 
factors affect the answers. As noted above, 
the following two recent reports can be used 
to help decide when to upgrade a gravel road. 

 
Using Minnesota’s report Economics of 
Upgrading an Aggregate Road 

 
This project, conducted in Minnesota, offers 
an analysis of county maintenance costs, 
practices, and traffic volumes for individual 
roads. This information helps to determine 
when it may be advantageous to upgrade 
the road, based on cumulative maintenance 
costs. 

 
The data presented in the report can be used 
by others, or they can develop similar costs 
with their own data. For this project, the initial 
data collection included 16 Minnesota 
counties, broken into four regions around the 
state. It includes maintenance costs for both 
bituminous (or asphalt) and gravel roads, as 
well as the volume of traffic traveling over the 
roads. Baseline data was obtained from 
annual reports submitted to the State Aid 
Division of Mn/DOT from 1997 to 2001, and 
roads were grouped by funding source as 
County State Aid Highways (CSAH), county 
roads (funded entirely by county funds), and 
township and municipal roads. 

 
Four of the counties were then analyzed 
further to develop typical costs per mile for 
a variety of surface options, including gravel 

193



 

and paved. 
 
Researchers conducted an initial data analysis for Waseca County, which provided a snapshot 
of the kind of information available for use in this study. 

 
Figure 1 shows actual maintenance costs per mile in Waseca County for five different roadway 
surfaces: 

• Low-volume bituminous roads 
• Low-volume gravel roads 
• Concrete pavement 
• High-volume bituminous roads 
• High-volume gravel roads. 

* Note that maintenance costs per mile for high-volume gravel roads are highest. 
 
Figure 2 illustrates the effect of traffic on maintenance costs per mile for one county. The roads 
are grouped by traffic volume and surface type along the bottom of the graph. An increase 
in traffic does lead to an increase in maintenance costs, especially for gravel roads. This is 
due to more lost gravel due to wear, and an increased need for blading and smoothing of the 
road surface. 

 
Note that at a traffic volume of 200 ADT, gravel road maintenance costs increase significantly. 
(ADT stands for average daily traffic, or the number of vehicles that pass over a given section of 
roadway in one day.) 

 
This offers a possible threshold for determining when this agency might pave a gravel road. 

 
Using this report in your agency 
The Minnesota report can be used to assist local agencies in estimating their own maintenance 
costs per mile. Agencies can use that data to decide if paving a gravel road is the best alternative. 

  
The report directs users to: 

• Review the historical costs of maintaining paved roads for your agency. (If those costs 
are not available, review data for one of the four counties analyzed in the report to get an 
idea of what your costs might be.) 

• Compute estimated gravel road maintenance costs per mile for your agency. 
• For a proposed upgrade, develop a cost estimate in the same way a contractor would for 

any new construction project under consideration. 
• Evaluate this cost estimate to compare the alternatives and make a decision for each 

roadway segment under question. 
  
By using the information presented in this report, an agency can evaluate its typical maintenance 
& construction costs, as well as identify the annual maintenance costs for a given type of 
roadway (whether paved or unpaved), and typical construction costs for a variety of surface 
projects. 

194



 
 
Directions are also given for performing a present-worth analysis to assess maintenance and 
construction costs for a roadway section to see what the equivalent maintenance and construction 
costs are in today’s dollars. 

 
Using South Dakota’s Report: Local Road Surfacing Criteria 
The second tool was completed as part of a project that investigated several surfacing criteria 
for low-volume roads. The main objective of this project was to create a process comparing 
maintenance requirements for different surface types to assist in selecting the most economical 
alternative under a given set of conditions. Surface types include hot-mix asphalt, blotter, gravel, 
and stabilized gravel roads. 

 
Many of the project elements are similar to the Minnesota project. However, the South Dakota 
project developed an easy-to-use computerized tool that allows agencies to input local costs and 
treatments to fit their own conditions. 
This computerized tool leads the user through a series of steps to: 

• Input information about the road section, including the project limits and the average daily 
traffic (ADT) count. 

• Input the actual agency maintenance and construction costs, broken down by surface type. 
• Estimate user costs, which are costs to the people that drive on the roads, and include 

vehicle operating and crash costs associated with a roadway surface type. These user 
costs can even be weighted to give them more or less importance in the analysis. 

 
After all the initial input variables are submitted, the computer program summarizes total costs 
for building and maintaining each roadway type. The evaluator then inputs other non-economic 
factors that relate to all surface types, including growth rates for an area, housing concentration 
and dust control needs, mail route locations, truck traffic, and political considerations. Again, the 
evaluator is allowed to weight each of the factors in the analysis. 

 
This tool provides output that is both easy to generate and understand. Cost comparisons can be 
computed for several alternatives. In addition, the user is assisted in selecting appropriate input 
variables for a typical agency. The results are objective and assist in making a clear comparison 
for a variety of roadway surface types. 

 
Accessing and using the computerized tool 
This tool is available online through this link.   
Useful information regarding this report can be downloaded in three forms: 

• Full Report— the complete report, with references, data and research process fully outlined. 
• User’s Guide—a hands-on guide that introduces the macro-driven, Excel-based analytical 

tool developed to apply the low-volume road management methodologies recommended 
under the project. 

195



• Technical Brief—developed to provide a step-by-step procedure for making road-surface 
type decisions between different surface materials (hot-mix asphalt [HMA], blotter, gravel, 
and stabilized gravel) on low-volume roadways. The methodology presented in this 
Technical Brief provides a practical tool to assist agencies with decisions about the most 
cost-effective road surface type to be used in various situations. 

The User’s Guide will outline all steps required to download the software and populate the 
required fields with local data. It is a comprehensive guide to understanding every input variable 
available for the analysis. 
Using this report in your agency 

With this tool, the user can input actual local costs for maintenance and construction activities. 
The user also can supplement those costs with road-user costs (such as crash data and quality- 
of-life considerations), as well as other non-economic factors. The computer program then 
provides actual ratings for each surface type based on the different input variables. The user can 
then select one surfacing alternative over another, based on these ratings and local priorities. 
Summary 

The results of both gravel road studies note that maintenance and construction costs vary 
considerably from one agency to another, and from one season to another. 
Traffic is a primary factor in deciding to pave or not to pave. The Minnesota study found that 
gravel road maintenance costs per mile appear to increase considerably after an ADT level of 
200 vehicles/day. On the other hand, the South Dakota study found that paved roads are most 
cost-effective at ADT levels above 150 vehicles/day. So, decisions can be made based on traffic 
data, local construction and maintenance costs, and area growth values to determine if and 
when a roadway should be paved. 
Another consideration when deciding to pave or not to pave includes if appropriate open and/or 
closed drainage can be provided.  Considerations could also include test borings or test pits to 
determine subgrade materials i.e., good gravels vs. organics, large rocks, stumps etc.  These 
should be coupled with safety considerations to obtain appropriate pavement widths of a 
minimum of 18’ for two-way traffic roadways, with a minimum of 2’ gravel shoulders.  It may 
sometimes be difficult to achieve these standards in New Hampshire due to Right-of-Way and 
stonewalls being at 2-3 rods in width (33-49.5’). 
Information from both reports can be used to make informed decisions about paving a gravel 
road, or maintaining it as a gravel surface. Thanks to the findings of both projects, we are 
better prepared to move forward in developing an efficient and appropriate maintenance and 
construction strategy. Finally, the presentation developed by LRRB can assist local highway staff 
in making the public aware of the many factors affecting the decision. 

196



 

Additional Resources 

Highway Standards for Low-Volume Roads, Cornell Local Roads Program, 2017 
Gravel Roads Maintenance and Design Manual, South Dakota LTAP Center, 2000 
Asphalt Paving Principles, Cornell Local Roads Program, Cornell Local Roads Program, 2004 
Gravel Roads: Maintenance and Design Manual Appendix D: When to Pave a Gravel Road, EPA  
 
Acknowledgements and Special Thanks: 
This information is from a modified Tech Tip by Cornell Local Roads in August 2018, using 
the October 2006 publication “To Pave or Not to Pave: Making informed decisions on when to 
upgrade a gravel road” by the Minnesota Local Technical Assistance Center.  It was modified 
slightly to include NH specifics, but UNH T2 gratefully acknowledges the majority of this work 
from Cornell Local Roads Program and Minnesota Local Technical Assistance Center.  
 

 
 
UNH T2 is pleased to provide free and customized Technical Assistance to local road agencies on a 
variety of road maintenance and transportation infrastructure-related topics, including bridge 
preservation and maintenance activities. Please reach out to t2.center@unh.edu for additional 
resources, support, or technical assistance, or visit https://t2.unh.edu/.  
 

UNH Technology Transfer Center (UNH T2) 
33 Academic Way 

Durham, NH 03824 
https://t2.unh.edu/  

 T2.Center@unh.edu  
 

 

197



3/13/24, 3:25 PM Town of Rico, CO Mail - VCUP comments

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=5ef4f4ec28&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f:1793447455213738374&simpl=msg-f:1793447455213738374 1/1

Chauncey McCarthy <townmanager@ricocolorado.gov>

VCUP comments
1 message

gerrish willis <ggwillis@yahoo.com> Wed, Mar 13, 2024 at 3:19 PM
Reply-To: ggwillis@yahoo.com
To: jdillsworth@ricocolorado.gov, npieterse@ricocolorado.gov, pfallon@ricocolorado.gov, ccondon@ricocolorado.gov,
bvernadakis@ricocolorado.gov
Cc: townmanager@ricocolorado.gov

Dear Trustees,

Thank you for your continued work on these important projects and providing another public forum last week. After
thinking about others' comments and my own comments during the forum I have a few additional thoughts to share.

What I heard is that there is an estimate of 34,000 cu yds of lead contaminated soil to be removed and replaced during
the remediation project. And it was stated that the St. Louis tunnel reclamation area has space for approximately 20,000
cu yds, But the proposal as I understand it is that the bulk of the contaminated soils will be used to cap the Columbia site.
I suggest that capping the Columbia site with the minimum about of material necessary to meet the purpose of shedding
water so that the contamination underneath the pile is not leached into the Dolores river. This would result in fewer loads
of contaminated soil being trucked to the site, resulting in less impact to residents, especially those who live close by, and
would be adversely affected by noise and dust.

It is understood that the Columbia site was initially a settling pond of highly concentrated lead mill waste.  It does not have
a liner, like the new ponds at the St Louis Tunnel, which keep dissolved contaminates from leaching into the river and
there is no plan to add a membrane at the Columbia site to contain any potential movement.  I am concerned that
continued leaching will occur. I urge the town to recommend to the Colorado Department of Public Health and
Environment that monitoring wells be constructed to see how effective the containment is over time and, if though
monitoring it is determined that continued leaching into the river is occurring, a membrane under the contamination is
placed or AR constructs a water treatment facility there similar to the facility at the St Louis tunnel site. Having less
overburden will make lining the site more economical as less material will need to be moved to place a liner.

While I appreciate AR's offer to develop a storm water system for the town, it's not clear to me what the extent of the
company's commitment to implement the storm water system is.  I suggest that AR fund the implementation of the storm
water system town-wide on all town streets and to contribute into a stormwater fund to maintain the system for at least 20
years. And in order to reduce future fugitive dust and reduce long term maintenance costs, AR agrees to paving the
streets with higher traffic counts, such as East and West Manz, and River and Picker Streets to West Rico. The
stormwater fund could also be used to maintain these paved roads.

Gerrish Willis
123 Van Winkle Avenue
Rico+
801-550-6086

198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



Community (IDSC) - Applicant Self-Checklist (Sept. 2023) 
Link to 2018 IDSC Guidelines (updated Sept. 2023) 

This Checklist has been designed to allow you to easily identify what your application must include. 
Column 2 shows each ‘Compliance Requirement’ in abbreviated form. Column 6 shows a cross- 
reference to the full ‘Compliance Requirement’ in the Guidelines.  
Please proceed as follows: 

1. Where your application meets a ‘Compliance Requirement’: In Column 3 enter ‘Y’; in Column 4 
identify the relevant page number(s) in your application; and in Column 5 include comments 
or brief application extracts that show how you comply. 

2. Where your application does not meet a ‘Compliance Requirement’ but you have a plan for 
how to comply: In Column 3 enter ‘N’; in Column 5 state what steps you intend to take to 
ensure compliance and the expected time frame. 

3. Where your application cannot meet a ‘Compliance Requirement’: In Column 3 enter ‘N’; in 
Column 5 state why you cannot comply; and if you consider this a serious issue, please 
contact DarkSky and we will work with you to see how best to proceed. 

4. When your Checklist is completed: Send it to DarkSky with your completed application. 
Please complete your Checklist as thoroughly as possible, as it will be used by DarkSky when 
reviewing your application.  

 

Site Name:  

Prepared By:  

Date:  

 

A Eligibility Requirements 
Complies 

Y/N 
Which 
Page(s) Comment on this Item in Application GXR* 

1 Your Community has some form 
of legal organization officially 
recognized by outside groups. 

   P4-Eligibility 

 

B Application Elements 
Complies 

Y/N 
Which 
Page(s) Comment on this Item in Application GXR* 

1 A map of the Community 
showing its legal boundaries 

   P8-N1 

206

https://drive.google.com/drive/u/0/folders/1me3rYRVBMHIZHEkCjohNgNAz33paUp_G


B Application Elements 
Complies 

Y/N 
Which 
Page(s) Comment on this Item in Application GXR* 

2 Letters of Nomination and 
Support by a qualified DarkSky 
member and an elected 
community representative 

   P8-N2 

3 A quality, comprehensive 
Lighting Management Policy 
(LMP) for the Community 

   P4-N1 + 
P8-N3 

4 Documentation of examples of 
Community commitment and 
construction and/or renovation 
projects demonstrating 
effective application of the 
lighting policy 

   P8-N4 

5 Proposed alternative wording 
for this IDSC, if desired, and the 
justification for it 

   P8-N5 

 

C Lighting Management Policy Complies 
Y/N 

Which 
Page(s) Comment on this Item in Application GXR* 

1 Your Community has a 
comprehensive Lighting 
Management Policy like the IDA-
IES Model Lighting Ordinance 
(MLO). 

   P4-N1 

2 Full shielding is required of all 
lighting fixtures emitting more 
than 1,000 lumens. 

   P4-N1A 

3 Emission of short-wavelength 
light is limited through one of the 
following restrictions: 

   P4-N1B 

a Light source correlated color 
temperature (CCT) must not 
exceed 3000 K; OR 

   P4-N1Bi 

b Allowed lighting must not emit 
more than 25% of its total 
spectral power at wavelengths 
shorter than 550 nanometers; OR 

   P4-N1Bii 

207



C Lighting Management Policy Complies 
Y/N 

Which 
Page(s) Comment on this Item in Application GXR* 

c Scotopic-to-photopic (S/P) ratio 
of allowed lighting must not 
exceed 1.3. 

   P4-N1Biii 

4 There is a restriction on the total 
amount of unshielded lighting, 
such as a limit on lumens per net 
acre or a total site lumen 
allowance in unshielded fixtures. 

   P4-N1C 

5 There must be a policy to address 
over-lighting. This may be 
accomplished by limiting the 
average illuminance for any 
outdoor application, over the 
entire task area, to no more than 
10% over the light levels 
recommended by, for example, 
the Illuminating Engineering 
Society (North America), the 
Society of Light and Lighting 
(United Kingdom), or other 
similar organization. 

   P4-N1D 

6 Regulations on NEW installations 
of publicly owned outdoor 
lighting MUST: 

   P4-N1E 

a Clearly indicate where, when, 
and under what circumstances 
such lighting is warranted and 
permitted; AND 

   P5-N1Ei 

b Require all future such lighting to 
have adaptive controls and/or 
curfews. 

   P5-N1Eii 

7 Restrictions on the installation 
and operation of illuminated 
signs, including ALL of the 
following: 

   P5-N1F 

a During the first hour after sunset 
and during the last hour 
immediately preceding sunrise, 
sign luminance shall not exceed 
100 nits (candelas per square 

   P5-N1Fi 

208



C Lighting Management Policy Complies 
Y/N 

Which 
Page(s) Comment on this Item in Application GXR* 

meter); AND 

b Signs may only be illuminated 
while the associated activity is 
taking place; for businesses, sign 
illumination must be 
extinguished completely during 
the hours the business is closed; 
AND 

   P5-N1Fii 

c The luminous or illuminated 
surface area of an individual sign 
must not exceed 18.6 square 
meters (200 sq. feet). 

   P6-N1Fiii 

8 Outdoor recreational and sports 
field lighting may be exempted 
from strict shielding and emission 
requirements, provided ALL the 
following are met: 

   P6-N1G 

a ANSI/IES RP-6 guidelines (current 
version) are followed (note: 
another standard may be 
followed if appropriate, but 
this must be stated specifically 
in the LMP); AND 

   P6-N1Gi 

b Lighting is for the surface of play 
and the viewing stands only; AND 

   P6-N1Gii 

c Illuminance levels must be 
adjustable based on task; AND 

   P6-N1Giii 

d Offsite impacts of the lighting are 
limited; AND 

   P6-N1Giv 

e A strict curfew is in place – 10 
p.m. or one hour after play ends; 
AND 

   P6-N1Gv 

f Timers are installed to prevent 
lights from being left on 
overnight. 

   P6-N1Gvi 

9 There is a maximum 10-year    P6-N1H 

209



C Lighting Management Policy Complies 
Y/N 

Which 
Page(s) Comment on this Item in Application GXR* 

amortization period for ALL non-
complying public AND private 
lighting to comply.  

 

D Lighting Inventory Complies 
Y/N 

Which 
Page(s) Comment on this Item in Application GXR* 

1 Required to determine whether 
City-owned lighting presently 
conforms with the LMP (see E1 
below). 

   P6-N2A 

 

E Commitment to Dark Skies 
and Quality Outdoor 

Lighting 

Complies 
Y/N 

Which 
Page(s) Comment on this Item in Application 

GXR* 

1 City-owned lighting conforms 
with the LMP or is committed to 
conform within 5 years. 

   P6-N2A 

2 Municipal dark sky support and 
quality lighting is demonstrated 
by city publications, funding of 
lighting upgrades, etc. 

   P6-N2B 

3 Broad support for dark skies is 
shown by a wide range of 
community organizations. 

   P6-N3 

4 Success in light-pollution control 
is demonstrated through AT 
LEAST ONE of the following: 

   P6-N5 

a New construction and renovation 
activity built under the LMP, 
demonstrating effective lighting 
application; AND/OR 

   P6-N5A 

b Other evidence of success in light 
pollution control approved by 
DarkSky International. 

   P6-N5B 

 

210



F Sky Quality Measurement Complies 
Y/N 

Which 
Page(s) Comment on this Item in Application GXR* 

1 A sky brightness measurement 
program must be established and 
maintained to follow the 
evolution of light pollution. 

   P6-N6 

 

G Education and Outreach Complies 
Y/N 

Which 
Page(s) Comment on this Item in Application GXR* 

1 Community commitment has 
been shown by AT LEAST ONE of 
the following: 

   P6-N4 

a Minimum of two dark-sky 
awareness events per year; 
AND/OR 

   P6-N4A 

b Inclusion of dark sky brochures 
with other community leaflets for 
residents and visitors; AND/OR 

   P6-N4B 

c Inclusion of dark-sky education in 
Community schools’ curricula. 

   P6-N4C 

 

211



        Lighting Ordinance Pre-Screen 
International Dark Sky Places Program 

 
2018 IDSC Guidelines 

 
 
Jurisdiction: __________________________________________________________________ 

Submitted by: ___________________________  Affiliation: ____________________________ 

Reviewer: ______________________________  Date: ________________________________ 

 
��= good; ~ = needs more information; � = missing; AW notes 
 
Note - provide a signed and dated copy in your application once approved 
 
 

1. “Full shielding of all lighting fixtures over 1000 initial lamp lumens” 
 
 
 
 

2. “A limit on the emission of short-wavelength light through one of the following 
restrictions: 

a. The correlated color temperature (CCT) of lamps must not exceed 3000 Kelvins; 
OR 

b. Allowed lighting must not emit more than 25% of its total spectral power at 
wavelengths < 550 nanometers; OR 

c. The scotopic-to-photopic (S/P) ratio of allowed lighting must not exceed 1.3” 
 

 
 

3. “A restriction on the total amount of unshielded lighting, such as a limit on lumens per 
net acre or a total site lumen allowance in unshielded fixtures (or equivalent wattages)” 
 
 
 
 

4. “A policy to address over-lighting, such as lumens per net acre caps (irrespective of 
shielding state) or maximum illuminance specifications” 
 
 
 

5. “Regulations of new installations of publicly-owned outdoor lighting: 
 

a. A provision that clearly indicates where, when, and under what circumstances 
new publicly owned outdoor lighting, including street lighting, is warranted and 
will be permitted; AND 

 

212



b. A provision that requires that adaptive controls and/or curfews be employed in all 
future installations of public outdoor lighting” 

 
 
 
 

6. “Restrictions on the installation and operation of illuminated signs: 
 

a. Luminance levels for operation between sunset and sunrise shall not exceed 100 
nits (100 candelas per square meter) as measured under conditions of a full 
white display; AND 

 
 
 
b. Sign illumination shall be extinguished completely one (1) hour after sunset, and 

remain off until one (1) hour before sunrise; AND 
 
 
 
c. The luminous/illuminated surface area of an individual sign shall not exceed 200 

square feet (18.6 square meters)” 
 
 
 

 
7. If outdoor sports / athletic field lighting is permitted by the code, it “may be exempted 

from the strict shielding and short-wavelength emission requirements above provided 
that all of the following conditions are met: 

 
a. Illuminating Engineering Society (IES) lighting guidelines (RP-6) are followed 

according to the appropriate class of play  
 
 
 
b. Field lighting is provided exclusively for illumination of the surface of play and 

viewing stands, and not for any other applications 
 
 
 
c. Illuminance levels must be adjustable based on the task (e.g., active play vs. field 

maintenance) 
 
 
 
d. Off-site impacts of the lighting will be limited to the greatest practical extent 

possible 
 
 
 
e. A strict curfew requirement (e.g., lights must be extinguished by 10pm/2200h or 

one hour after the end of play, whichever is later) is observed 

213



 
 
 
f. Timers must be installed to prevent lights being left on accidentally overnight by 

automatically extinguishing them” 
 

 
 

 
8. “Affects an amortization period, applicable to ALL publicly AND privately owned lighting, 

to end not more than ten (10) years from the effective date of the outdoor lighting policy, 
after which all non-conforming lighting extant at the time of enactment must be brought 
into compliance with the policy.” 

 
 
 
 

 
Any extra provisions worth noting: 

214



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-06 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF RIDGWAY, COLORADO REPEALING AND REPLACING CHAPTER 
6, SECTION 5 OF THE RIDGWAY MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING OUTDOOR LIGHTING 
REGULATIONS.   

 

WHEREAS, The Town of Ridgway established dark skies-oriented regulations for outdoor lighting 
via Ordinance 3-1997; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Ridgway Town Council amended the Outdoor Lighting Regulations by Ordinance 
4-2017 that provide for appropriate illumination of public art on public property that respects 
the “dark skies” desire of the community while providing for some illumination of public art in 
public places; and 

 

WHEREAS, the 2019 Ridgway Master Plan contains the following:  
Policy ENV-4.4 Dark Skies: Continue to prioritize efforts to reduce light pollution and enhance 
the appearance of the night sky. 

Action ENV-4f: Continue to protect our dark skies as a valuable community resource; and 

 

WHEREAS, glare and light pollution can result in safety concerns, diminish the ability to view the 
night sky, and impact community character; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Ridgway Town Council desires to pursue certification through the International 
Dark-Sky Association to become an International Dark Sky Community; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Ridgway Planning Commission reviewed previous drafts of edits to the Outdoor 
Lighting Regulations at the March 5th, June 25th, and July 30th, 2019 meetings which provided 
opportunity for public feedback and input; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Ridgway has invested, and continues to invest, in protecting the 
important dark sky resource.  

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF RIDGWAY, 
COLORADO, as follows: 

 

SECTION 1. RIDGWAY MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 6, SECTION 5 IS REPEALED AND REPLACED AS 
FOLLOWS:  
 

215



6-5-1 GENERAL PROVISIONS. 
 

(A) All non-exempt outdoor light fixtures and illuminating devices permanently or 
temporarily installed outdoors, including but not limited to devices to illuminate signs, shall 
meet the following requirements: 

 
(1) They shall be shielded so no light rays are emitted at angles which will allow the 

light to pass directly off of the premises appurtenant to the fixture. 
 

(2) They shall be shielded so that all light rays are emitted by the installed fixture at 
angles below the horizontal plane. 

 
(3) All fixtures designed to illuminate signs or structures shall be mounted above 

the area of the sign or structure to be illuminated. 
 

(4) Blinking, flashing, rotating or moving lights are prohibited. 
 

(5) Correlated color temperature (CCT) is limited to 3000 kelvin per fixture. 
 

(6) The following lumen limits are established to prevent over lighting and are not 
intended to be achieved. Each site should use the lowest amount of lumens 
needed for the site to provide for safety and functionality.  

 
(a) Single-Family Residential Sites shall be limited to 5,100 lumens. Single-Family 

Residential Sites that include an accessory dwelling unit shall be limited to 
6,500 lumens. Each lighting fixture shall be limited to 850 lumens.  
 

(b) Multi-Family Residential Sites, Mixed-Use Sites, and Non-Residential Sites 
shall be limited to 25,000 lumens per net acre plus 2,000 lumens per unit 
beyond the first. Each lighting fixture shall be limited to 1,500 lumens. 

 
(7) Lighting for all non-residential uses shall be extinguished one hour after close of 

business unless there is a public safety hazard that is best mitigated by the use of 
lighting. Lighting intended for security purposes shall use Adaptive Controls. 

(8) If any of the above are in conflict with the Town building codes, adopted 
pursuant to RMC 6-1, the regulations of the adopted building code shall apply. 

(B) The following are exempt from the provisions of Subsection (A). 
 

(1) Lights used to illuminate athletic fields or other community special event areas. 
Such lights shall be turned off one hour after the conclusion of the event and should 
be designed or placed to minimize light falling beyond the area in use.  

216



(2) Signs which are illuminated by interior light sources, such as neon signs, 
provided such signs are lit only during the property owner's business hours. 
 
(3) Official traffic control devices and lights owned and operated by or pursuant to 
proper authority of the United States of America, the State of Colorado or any of 
their agencies, and such other lights as are specifically required by federal or state 
law. 

 
(4) Official traffic control lights owned and operated by the Town of Ridgway. 

 
(5) Repealed by Ordinance 16-2006 

 
(6) Lawful vehicle lights. 

 
(7)  Repealed by Ordinance 10-2007 
 
(8)  Holiday lights. Holiday lights should only be in use from November 15 to January 

31. 
 
(9)  Repealed by Ordinance 2-2002 
 
(10) Artwork that is outdoors and on public property. Such artwork shall 

receive a permit by the Town of Ridgway prior to installation. Such artwork shall 
be public and accessible to all people and may be illuminated, pursuant to the 
following:  
 
(a) Artwork shall not contain lighting that exceeds 500 lumens within the 
entire structure, nor more than 2500 degrees kelvin.  
 
(b) All public art that is illuminated shall include a dimmer and timer to aid 
the compliance with the Dark Skies Association’s Outdoor Lighting 
Requirements, and shall have the ability to be automatically turned off. In any 
event such lighting shall be automatically turned off by 10 p.m. nightly.  

 
(c) No structure may contain lighting that is cast upward or outward, but may 
be diffused in a way such that the lighting emits a soft glow.  
 
(d) All structures shall be lit internally.  
 
(e) All illuminated public art is subject to review and approval by Town staff 
for compliance with these regulations. 

 
(C) Public Outdoor Lighting  

 

217



(1) New public lighting, owned and operated by the Town of Ridgway, including 
street lights, walkway lights, external buildings lights, holiday lights, and other 
lights to ensure safety, shall be allowed as recommended by the Town 
Manager in situations where a public health hazard exists which can only be 
mitigated by artificial light at night and shall be in compliance with Subsection 
(A).  
 

(2) Adaptive Controls or curfews shall be employed in all new public outdoor 
lighting installations. 
 

(3) All Town owned lighting shall comply with the requirements of Section 6-5 
within five years from the effective date of this ordinance. 

 
6-5-2 NONCONFORMING LIGHTS. 

 

(A) Lights which were lawfully existing and in use at the time they became 
nonconforming with the requirements of this Section 6-5 by virtue of the initial adoption of 
this Section, subsequent amendment to this Section or by annexation into the Town, may 
continue to be used and operated subject to the limitations of this Section. 

 
(B) The right to operate a lawful nonconforming light shall terminate upon any of the 

following: 
 

(1) Replacement of the light fixture. 
 

(2) Non-use of the light fixture for a period of six months. 
 

(3) Repealed by Ordinance 16-2006 
 

(4) Damage to the light fixture so that the cost of repair is 50% or more of the cost 
to replace it with a conforming fixture. 

 
(C) The right to exceed the lumen limits established in RMC 6-5-1 as a lawful 

nonconforming site shall terminate upon any of the following:  
 

(1) Replacement of 50% or more of the light fixtures on the site.  
 

(2) Damage to the light fixtures so that the cost of repair is 50% or more of the cost 
to replace them with conforming fixtures.  

 
(D) No alteration may be made to lighting on a site which would increase the amount 

or degree of the nonconformity.  

6-5-3 ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT. 

218



 

(A) The provisions of this Section shall be administered by the building official or other 
authorized Town officer or employee. 

(B) It shall be unlawful to violate any provision of this Section. 
 

(C) Any continuing violation of this Section is hereby declared to be nuisance, which 
may be abated by the Town in any lawful manner, or enjoined by a court of competent 
jurisdiction. 

 
(D) No building permit or occupancy permit shall be issued for work which has 

noncomplying light fixtures. 
 
 

6-5-4 APPEALS AND VARIANCES. 
 

(A) Any person aggrieved by an interpretation of this Section or decision of the Town 
made in the administration of this Section, may appeal the interpretation or decision to the 
Board of Appeals pursuant to the review procedure of Section 6-1-5 of the Ridgway 
Municipal Code upon payment of a $250.00 application fee. 

 
(B) (1) Any person may apply for a variance to the Planning Commission from the 
provisions of this Section upon payment of the $250.00 application fee in accordance with 
the review procedure of Section 7-3-18 of the Ridgway Municipal Code. 

 
(2) The Planning Commission may grant a variance only upon a determination that 

the following criteria are met: 
 

(a) The variance will be consistent with the public health, safety and welfare. 
 
(b) The variance is justified by unreasonable hardship not created by the 

activities of the applicant or strict compliance is unfeasible. 
 
(c) The variance will be substantially consistent with the purposes of this Section 

to avoid nuisances to others, preserve the ability to observe the night sky, 
conserve energy, reduce glare, promote traffic and pedestrian safety, 
preserve the small town character of Ridgway and promote the Town's 
master plan. 

 
(d) The variance will not compromise any Dark Skies Certification, if such 

certification is in place at the time the variance is requested.  
 

6-5-5          PURPOSE 

219



 
To protect the dark sky resource, maintain nighttime visibility, minimize light pollution 
and glare, promote energy conservation, promote traffic and pedestrian safety, help 
mitigate wildlife sleep and mitigation related issues, and preserve the small-town 
character of the Town.    
 

6-5-6          DEFINITIONS  

 
(A) Adaptive Controls: devices such as timers, motion-sensors and light-sensitive 

switches used to actively regulate the emission of light from light fixtures. 

(B) Mixed-Use Site: an undivided or combination of undivided lots under one or more 
ownership or lease agreement used for a mixture of commercial, industrial, 
institutional, and residential uses. 

(C) Multi-Family Residential Site: an undivided or combination of undivided lots under 
one or more ownership or lease arrangements occupied by multiple dwelling units.  

(D) Non-Residential Site: an undivided or combination of undivided lots under one or 
more ownership or lease agreement used for commercial, industrial, or institutional 
uses.  

(E) Single-Family Residential Site: an undivided or combination of undivided lots under 
one ownership occupied by a single-family residential structure and related accessory 
structures. 

* * * 
SECTION 2.  ORDINANCE EFFECT 

 
 All Ordinances of the Town, or parts thereof, inconsistent or in conflict with this 
Ordinance are hereby repealed, replaced and superseded to the extent only of such 
inconsistency or conflict.   
 

SECTION 3.  SEVERABILITY 
 

The Provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and the invalidity of any section, phrase, 
clause or portion of this Ordinance as determined by a court of competent jurisdiction shall not 
affect the validity or effectiveness of the remainder of this Ordinance.  
 

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 This Ordinance shall take effect 30 days after adoption.     

 
SECTION 5. PUBLIC HEARING. 

220



 
A public hearing on this Ordinance was held on the _____ day of ________________, 2019, 

in the Town Council Chambers, 201 N. Railroad Street, Ridgway, CO 81432. 
 

INTRODUCED, READ AND REFERRED to public hearing before the Town Council of the 

Town of Ridgway, Colorado, on the 14th day of August, 2019. 

 
TOWN OF RIDGWAY, COLORADO, A HOME 
RULE MUNICIPALITY 

 
 

      By:________________________________ 
       JOHN CLARK, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
PAM KRAFT, Town Clerk 
 
 
HEARD AND FINALLY ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Ridgway, Colorado, this 
_____ day of ___________________, 2019. 
 
 

TOWN OF RIDGWAY, COLORADO, A HOME 
RULE MUNICIPALITY 

 
 

      By:________________________________ 
      JOHN CLARK, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
PAM KRAFT, Town Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
BO JAMES NERLIN, Town Attorney 

221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235


	Board of Trustees March 20 2024 Memo
	RICO TOWN BOARD MINUTES February 15 2024 docx
	RICO TOWN BOARD MINUTES Feb 2024 docx
	RICO TOWN BOARD MINUTES March 6 2024 docx
	RICO TOWN BOARD MINUTES March 7 2024 docx
	Hancock alley disturbance permit staff memo
	20240206 Hancock alley road building staff memo
	SGM Review Comments-2
	Road Buliding Application_LC
	Disturbance Permit (Buffer to Wetlands)_LC
	20240312_Leah Lane  -Comment Response Letter - Town Engineer-FD
	20240312_Leah Lane_Civil
	Sheets and Views
	24X36 PLAN


	Fig2b.Chmielewski-WetlandDelineation_Lots15-16
	20231017091142-Adjacent props
	Affadavit Of Mailing
	Chmielewski 200' buffer lots 15-16 blk 18 excel
	Export_Output_3

	Chmielewski 200' buffer Lots 15-16 BLK 18
	Public Notice Letter Leah
	Statement Describing Use of the Road
	Warranty Deed Lots 15-16, Block 18 Rico
	Leah Lane Letter and Narritave 
	274_Ordinance Regulating Use of Land and Structures
	275 Ordinance - Classifying and Regulating Streets w Highlights
	283_Ordinance - Amends 274 to add penalties 
	Scanned from Town of Rico.pdf

	285_Ordinance - Amends 274 w enforcement measures
	Scanned from Town of Rico.pdf

	310 Ordinance- Temp Dev Restriction Ref 274
	Scanned from Town of Rico.pdf

	315_Ordinance - Temporary Development Restriction on Excavations in ROWs and Town Property
	Ordinances 1996.pdf

	334_Ordinance repeals temporary Ordinance 315
	Ordinances 1998.pdf

	1999-7_Ordinance adopting LUC and repealing 275
	Ordinances 1999.pdf

	1996 Year Built of residence on Lots 21-24 block 18
	19931109 Mtg Min - Water Line and  Taps approved indefinitely
	19950729 -270-137-138 Deed Kathy
	19960417 Mtg Min -Ordinance 315 Accepted w applicability description w highlights
	19960508 Mtg Min - Contingent Approval to build in flood zone upon engineer review w highlights
	20221229 Town of Rico Water Fund Check Reg
	102654773-Public Record Dolores County - maintainace
	Major Street Plan- Maintenance Plan
	Winter 2023 Photos of Town Maintenance Right of Way  2
	20240226 Exhibit A - Water System Improvement Fee Ordinance
	20240226 Ordinance 2024-01 Water System Improvement Fees
	AN ORDINANCE OF THE Town of rico, colorado amending the rico Water Operations Rules and Regulations to provide for PAYMENT of WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT FEES.
	Section 1. The recitals above are hereby adopted as findings and incorporated herein.
	Section 2. The Water Rules, Article VIII shall be and are hereby amended as set forth in Exhibit A to this Ordinance, which is incorporated by this reference.
	Section 3. Any ordinances or resolutions or parts thereof, which are in conflict with this ordinance, are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict only.
	Section 4. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately on final adoption.


	20240226 Resolution 2024-01 Water System Improvement Fee
	Lot 6 Deed Restrictions - Original
	HOUSING RESTRICTION COVENANT FOR LOT 6, BEDROCK SUBDIVISION, TOWN OF RICO, COLORADO, A HOME RULE MUNICIPALITY
	RECITALS
	A. Owner owns the real property located in the Town of Rico, Dolores County, State of Colorado that is more particularly described as Lot 6, Bedrock Subdivision, according to the plat recorded on ________ at reception number _______, with the Dolores ...
	COVENANT
	PROVISION OF DEED RESTRICTED HOUSING COVENANTS:
	IN WITNESS THEREOF, the Parties have executed this Covenant on the date first set forth above:

	Lot 6 Deed Restrictions - Proposed Red Lined
	HOUSING RESTRICTION COVENANT FOR LOT 6, BEDROCK SUBDIVISION, TOWN OF RICO, COLORADO, A HOME RULE MUNICIPALITY
	RECITALS
	A. Owner owns the real property located in the Town of Rico, Dolores County, State of Colorado that is more particularly described as Lot 6, Bedrock Subdivision, according to the plat recorded on ________ at reception number _______, with the Dolores ...
	COVENANT
	PROVISION OF DEED RESTRICTED HOUSING COVENANTS:
	IN WITNESS THEREOF, the Parties have executed this Covenant on the date first set forth above:

	Lot 6 Deed Restrictions - Proposed Clean
	HOUSING RESTRICTION COVENANT FOR LOT 6, BEDROCK SUBDIVISION, TOWN OF RICO, COLORADO, A HOME RULE MUNICIPALITY
	RECITALS
	A. Owner owns the real property located in the Town of Rico, Dolores County, State of Colorado that is more particularly described as Lot 6, Bedrock Subdivision, according to the plat recorded on ________ at reception number _______, with the Dolores ...
	COVENANT
	PROVISION OF DEED RESTRICTED HOUSING COVENANTS:
	IN WITNESS THEREOF, the Parties have executed this Covenant on the date first set forth above:

	Letter 3_13
	Town letter
	Town of Rico, CO Mail - Objection to the VCUP Lead Plan Smith
	VCUP_LTR
	2024-03-08 DRAFT letter to Council
	Newsletter_Summer06
	Elements of an Operations Ma...
	5
	Goodbye-Good Luck
	
	Mailing List Update
	Geographic Information Systems
	Work Zone Safety for New Dri...
	You Show Us 2006 
	Ideas That Work 
	Upcoming Events 
	16

	Surface economy_ pavement vs. gravel roads - The UpStater
	to-pave-or-not-to-pave
	Introduction
	The Issue
	Using this report in your agency
	Accessing and using the computerized tool
	Using this report in your agency
	Summary
	Additional Resources


	Dark Sky
	Dark sky petition
	Dark sky letter zeller
	Community (IDSC) Applicant Self-Checklist (Sept 2023)
	LO_PreScreen_2018
	2019-06 Revisions to RMC 6-5 for adoption (1) Ridgway
	Ordinance No. 2019-06
	An ordinance of the Town of Ridgway, Colorado REPEALING AND REPLACING Chapter 6, Section 5 of the Ridgway Municipal Code regarding Outdoor lighting regulations.
	WHEREAS, The Town of Ridgway established dark skies-oriented regulations for outdoor lighting via Ordinance 3-1997; and
	WHEREAS, the Ridgway Town Council amended the Outdoor Lighting Regulations by Ordinance 4-2017 that provide for appropriate illumination of public art on public property that respects the “dark skies” desire of the community while providing for some i...
	WHEREAS, the 2019 Ridgway Master Plan contains the following:
	Policy ENV-4.4 Dark Skies: Continue to prioritize efforts to reduce light pollution and enhance the appearance of the night sky.
	Action ENV-4f: Continue to protect our dark skies as a valuable community resource; and
	WHEREAS, glare and light pollution can result in safety concerns, diminish the ability to view the night sky, and impact community character; and
	WHEREAS, the Ridgway Town Council desires to pursue certification through the International Dark-Sky Association to become an International Dark Sky Community; and
	WHEREAS, the Ridgway Planning Commission reviewed previous drafts of edits to the Outdoor Lighting Regulations at the March 5th, June 25th, and July 30th, 2019 meetings which provided opportunity for public feedback and input; and
	WHEREAS, the Town of Ridgway has invested, and continues to invest, in protecting the important dark sky resource.
	NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF RIDGWAY, COLORADO, as follows:
	Section 1. Ridgway Municipal Code Chapter 6, Section 5 is repealed and replaced as follows:
	6-5-1 GENERAL PROVISIONS.
	6-5-2 NONCONFORMING LIGHTS.
	6-5-3 ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT.
	6-5-4 APPEALS AND VARIANCES.

	US_Crestone_Crestone-Lighting-Ordinance_288

	ADP693C.tmp
	HOUSING RESTRICTION COVENANT FOR LOT 6, BEDROCK SUBDIVISION, TOWN OF RICO, COLORADO, A HOME RULE MUNICIPALITY
	RECITALS
	A. Owner owns the real property located in the Town of Rico, Dolores County, State of Colorado that is more particularly described as Lot 6, Bedrock Subdivision, according to the plat recorded on ________ at reception number _______, with the Dolores ...
	COVENANT
	PROVISION OF DEED RESTRICTED HOUSING COVENANTS:
	IN WITNESS THEREOF, the Parties have executed this Covenant on the date first set forth above:




